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encounter, T76.02XA (ICD-10) (Active).'

To provide this Court with a better understanding of the children’s behaviors and
statements when they were placed in Kimberly's care in November of 2021. Xaia was very
depressed. She would only provide one word answers, she was barely speaking and had
a very flat affect. She would constantly repeat “I'm sad. I'm always sad. I'm sad about
family stuff.”

Xy’ Shone exhihited extreme anxiety when he had to speak with Tamika, on the phone
and following the calls he would have horrible nightmares that Kimberly would spend
significant time calming and soothing him and assuring him that he was safe and everything
was going to be alright.

As time passed, the children disclosed abuse issues with their family in Michigan
describing them as “brutal” and the children were fearful believing that“they’re going to
kill us.” Again. just one more issue that caused her very serious concerns of whether the
children were safc and whether there will come a time when she receives a dreadful calt
ihat something very bad happens to one. or all. of the children. or that one. or all, are dead.

After the children began therapy and they were discussing some of these issues. the
therapist suggested working with Kimberly to come up with a reasonabie telephone
schedule that would benefit the children and be in their best interest, rather than Tamika

forcing Kimberly to acquiesce to her unreasonable demands of muliiple phone and/or video

| See Exhibit A (January 17. letter from Jazmine Lopez, LSW. CSW-Intern from Hope

Counseling).
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calls each day. Kimberly reached out to Tamika to notify her that the therapist was
working with the children to arrive at a schedule that would be in their best interest —
Tamika’s response was to restate her demands and inform Kimberly that she had no right
to take the children to a therapist. Uliimately the therapist advised Kimberly to limit calls
to occurring when the children requested to speak to Tamika and to implement a schedule
that would not cause them undue anxiety or to make them upset.

As clearly stated in the therapist’s letter. Xy Shone was very concerned during the
entire tine he was in Las Vegas for the salety and well being of his baby brother who
remained in Tamika’s care.

1t was not until January of 2022, immediately before the children were ordered to return
to Tamika's custody that both Xy Shene and Xaia reported being beaten by a “switch”
which left scars.

Kimberly believes that the investigation referred to in this letter is that what was
reported to CPS in Michigan, after retrieving the children.” To the best of Kimberty's
recollection. Michigan did not close the case. however. they were not actively conducting

their investigation after she reported the allegations, sent pictures of the abuse. and

*To the best of Kimberly's knowledge there may be at least two reports to CPS in
Nevada, as she was advised to make a report in January, as she was finding out information,
however, she believes that because the allegations stemmed from incidents in Michigan, Nevada
did not proceed with an investigation and she believes there is at least one other CPS allegation
previously in Nevada, from 2019, Counsel will agempt to get Mr. McGowan to sign a
Stipulation for the Court to request the CPS records, as it is very difficult for counsel to receive
subpoena responses directly from the agency. as this Court is aware.
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informed the investigators what the children were reporting of abuse and neglect they were
encountering by the Mother. Maternal Grandmother, and Maternal Aunt — whom Kimberly
believes were all residing with the children - at that time — and have continued residing
with the children since they were returned to Tamika’s custody.’

Xaia was also seen by the therapist and diagnosed with anxiety. however. was not as
bad as Xy Shone. Kimberly was in the process of getting Xaia in to regular appointments.
as recommended by the therapist around the time that Kimberly was ordered to return the
minor children to Tamika. Kimberly does not believe that Tamika folfowed through with
any therapeutic services for Xaia.

Kimberly also wants to ensure that the children continue recetving therapeutic treatment
to resolve their diagnosed. and any additional issues. including their food insecurity, which
she was informed if the children continued exhibiting signs what they would need
additional counseling to assist them with this issue.

The therapist recommended that the child may require further counseling to address
their issues with food insecurity

Kimberly believes that, as the children’s mother, Tamika should have immediately
recognized the fear and anxiety both of the older children were exhibiting and she should

have enrolled the children in therapy when they were in her care — that never happened.

7 See Exhibit B (Two of the pictures that Kmbetly sent to CPS, which show what appears

{0 be abuse that the children eacountered). Due to scanning the pictures they may not be clear. if
the Court is not able to see the injuries the children sustained. counsel can produce color
photographs 1o this Court and Mr, McGanon.

-
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Kimberly does not believe that she has enrolled them in any therapy since they returned and
she believes that the reason Tamika is failing the child by not ensuring that their mental
health and well being is taken care of is out of fear of what the children may report to a
therapist of the dangers and possible abuse that they are receiving in Tamika's care and by
the household members she and the children reside with. which causes Kimberly grave
concern and leads 1o her helief that it is detrimental to these children’s health and welfare,
and not in their best interest to remain in her care.
2. Medical Issues for the Minor Children

During the time that the children were in Kimberly's care from Nevada of 2021,
through January, 2022, she became very alarmed when Xy Shone reported that he was
experiencing bilateral leg pain caused by falling off a roof at his aunt’s home. Kimberly
also noticed that he was walking abnormally. Based on this Kimberly sought medical care
to make sure the child was not injured. Xy Shone underwent a physical assessment and a
treatment plan was created. which inctuded a referral for physical therapy. Unfortunately.
Kimberly was not able to take Xy’ Shone to begin physical therapy as she was ordered to

return him to Tamika's care.
The fact that Tamika was aware of this incident, which Kimberly believes occurred a

significant period of time - close to a year — before she retrieved Xy Shone, and yet failed
to even take him to see a doctor. or make anyone aware of the situation is uncalled for and

simply medical neglect. The fact that Xy Shone has needed physical therapy for over a
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year and Tamika is most likely completely unaware and unconcerned with the pain he is
in and that he walks abnormal. The children should not be forced to live under these
conditions. It's not only unacceptable and unfit parenting — it amounts to abuse and
neglect.

On January 12, 2022, Kimberly also took Xaia 1o the dentist as she fell at school.
During the appointment. several cavities were discovered. Kimberly does not believe that
Tamika takes proper care of the children’s dental needs. as she is unsure that Xaia has been
to a dentist since she was a toddler, Xy Shone has never went to a dentist. and Kimberly
is unsure whether Xionne has ever been to a dentist appointment, however. doubts the
likelihood.

Xaia's asthma was acting up and Kimberly requested the copy of the insurance card.
initially. 1o obtain inhalers — Tamika refused to respond to this request.

The two children both ended up with ear impactions. Kimberly informed Tamika that
the children had ear impactions from lack of cleaning and she was requesting a copy of
their insurance cards and Tamika’s home address. The response from Tamika — rather than
concern and questions about the children’s health and welfare - consisted of blame:
derogatory statements and comments about Kimberly: her refusal to provide the insurance

cards; and her refusal to respond to Kimberly's request for her address.’

* §a¢ Cxhibit C(Text messages regarding phone calls and medical issues regarding their
insurance and health care issues that Tamika refused to assist with). These text messages were
previously produced by Kimberly in her Opposition to Tamika's motion to stay the order which
was heard in January, 2022, However, due to the amount of text messages that were produced
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Xy Shone’s impacted ear. which was the worst of the two, and needed extra care was
caused from a qtip being stuck in his ear several weeks prior to him being placed in
Kimberlys care.’

Due to the short visitation that Kimberly had with the children during their spring break
she is aware that these children are not okay. All of their fears and behaviors that were
exhibited and provided to this Court when Kimberly was finally able to obtain assistance
from law enforcement and retrieve the two oldest children were obvious during her
visilation. Unfortunately. the children are not willing. or allowed. (o discuss their concerns:
they are not allowed to be themselves and it is apparent that there is absolutely something
being hidden. Kimberly viewed marks on Xy"Shone. which appeared to be burns — which
caused her grave concern, however. the burns or injury were on his body and the entire time
that he spent with Kimberly he refused to remove his coat, therefore, she was not able to
take photographs and when she tried to get Xy Shone to speak to her he completely shut
down and refused. There is something going on and her concerns stem back to prior
conversations she had with both older children when they alleged abuse and informed her
that they would get in trouble if their mom knew they were telling her things. She and
XyShone have always had a very, very close relationship as she has been his primary

caretaker and has provided the only stability he knows throughout his life. They were

counsel only used the relevant texts to the issues discussed in this Opposition.
5 See Exhibit D (Notes from the doctor’s visit for Xy'Shone’s appointment).
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always inseparable and he always knows that he can discuss anything with his Granty and
she will protect him — as stated in his child interview report. however, this is not at all how
he acted during his visitation .

Tamika made the exchange extremely difficult for Kimberly to the point where she
threatened multiple times that she was not going to allow Kimberly to take the children and
exercise her visitation. All of this was stated at the police station which is the location as
Tamika refuses to provide her address to this Court, or Kimberly — despite it being a
requirement of this Court. Since retaining Mr. McGanen, Tamika is using his address as
a shield to attempt to keep her from providing the actual address the children are residing.
Mr. McGanon has never filed a Notice of Change of Address on her behalf and when
Kimberly requested. informally. to be provided it, Mr. McGanon will only provide his
office address.

3. Brief Recitation of the Issues that Kimberly Is Aware that Amount to Abuse
and/or Neglect

* Tamika leaves the children alone with her sister, Talisha Jones, whoin 2016 was in
a fight with Tamika. leaving her severely beaten and was arrested for the incident.
* Approximately a year ago. Xy Shone was allowed to pay in a dangerous
environment when he was at Talisha Jones' home and fell from the roof. with no

medical care or treatment for his injuries causing damage that resulted in his

needing physical therapy.
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Upon information and belief, Kimberly does not believe that Tamika regularly uses
a car seat for Xionne. who is two years old. or a booster seat for Xaia. who is six
years old.

Lack of ability to provide food for the children in which the children’s school sent
food home when the children informed someone that they had no food at home.
This has caused both Xy Shone and Xaia to hide food: and exhibii meal anxicty
where they appear to not be able to get enough food to eat.

Lack of ability to provide stable housing for herself and the children. After
abducting the children a year ago. Tamika moved between hatels and from house
to house. sleeping on sofas. One of the places they stayed at was overrun by bugs
for a short time. To the best of Kimberly's knowledge. Tamika has still not secured
a stable home.

The children reported beatings by Talisha Jones, their aunt, with a switch and
informed Kimberly that the scars on Xy Shones hip and Xaia’s knees were caused
by the beatings.

Both Xaia and XyShone reported a bearting by their maternal grandmother and
Tamika related to a missing jacket which was later found in the laundry. The
children discussed the severity of this inctdent and described hearing Xaia shrieking
and screaming with their therapist.

Diagnoses by the therapist of each child hased on the behaviors they were exhibiting
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such as Xy Shene’s major changes in behavior, i.e. withdrawn, avoiding coping
mechanisms. sleep issues (both trouble falling asleep and stying asleep: and severe
nightmares).

* Xy Shone’s last report card from Ferndale Elementary School stated that he does
not express himself'in his art. Prior to this. expressing himself through his art was
his coping therapy. This should have alerted Tamika that something was wrong
with him and caused her to immediately intervene and get him the help he needs.

*  The children are left in the care of Xy Shone who has to walk Xaia home from
school through a neighborhood with safety issues.

Kimberly believes that the following instances would be classified as emotional abuse:

= Xionne. at two to three years old. should be able to articulate between 500 and 900

words and speak in sentences. however, he barely says any words at all.

*  Alienation of the affection from great grandparents; grandmother: and other
extended paternal family members.

* Repeatedly telling Xy Shone that he doesn’t have a brain.

* Telling the children that she should put them up for adoption.

* Brainwashing and manipulating the children by making them to make false
statements such as Xy’ Shone lying about Kimberly trying to kill him; coupled with
extended maternal family members making untrue statements to the children about

their paternal family in order to alienate affection toward the family.
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*  Immediately removing all of the children’s toys when they returned from Nevada.
which included their Christmas and birthday gifts because their grandmother did not
want them in her house.

*  Refusing to improve Xy Shone’s self image by taking him to a dentist to reduce his
self consciousness about his teeth. When he was in Nevada, Kimberly bought him
a teeth whitening set which Tamika threw away immediately upon his return to her
custody.

4. Issues with Spring Break Visitation

On. or about. March 22, Tamika started raising issues and making excuses about
potentially not releasing the children to Kimberly for her spring break visitation which was
ordered to begin on March 26. Among these excuses. Tamika was making verv
unreasonable demands such as that Kimberly was required to provide Tamika a list of each
and every person the children may possibly encounter or spend time with during her
visitation, along with their contact information. She also began demanding a list of a daily
schedule listing everything Kimberly intended to do with the children. and a detailed list
of each and every place Kimberly intended to take the children with addresses.

This is not what the Court ordered. Kimberly complied with the Court’s orders and

provided Tamika the information she was ordered to provide but refused to her
unreasonable demands. Tamika was so demanding that in order to resolve some of the

issue, Kimberly just agreed to spend her weck visiting the children in Detroit.
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When they arrived at the police station. Tamika caused a scene and informed her that
unless Kimberly acquiesced with the demands. as stated above, Tamika was not going to
release the children. This caused a scene and was extremely unhealthy for the children.
which did not affect Tamika.

Ulimately Kimberly left the police station with all three children to begin what she
believed would be a much different spring break. Most noticeable, and concerning, was
Xy"Shone. as he refused to speak with Kimberly or be alone with her during the visit. He
wore a coat and refused to take it off — he slept in it. Kimberly could not get him to remove
his coat at any time that week. After finally getting Xy"Shone to remove one arm from his
coat. she remarked about a burn scar on his right forearm. immediately thereafter his arm
was put back in the sleeve of his coat and he refused the rest of the visit to remove his coat.

Also concerning was Xionne, who is two years old, and Kimberly has not seen for
almost a year and a half, as he was not as verbal as ¢xpected. He only made grunting noises
and pointed instead of speaking words. Kimberly focused a lot of her attention to working
with him during the week and there was a rapid increase in his vocabulary during that time.
This was shocking to Kimberly after raising Xy Shone and Xaia and remembering
Xy'Shone being able to read at three years old and that Xaia was counting and knew her
alphabet by the time she was two years old. This breaks Kimberly's heart as she is well
aware that no one is spending time and working with this child, in Tamika's care.

During the visit Kimberly became atarmed when Xaia said she sleeps with Big
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Xy Shone and another male cousin. She would not provide any additional information as
to who the male is or his age.

At the end of the visit. Tamika sent a git] to pick up the children. When they saw her
the children seemed very uneasy big and Kimberly realized it was Talisha Jones, Tamika's
sister whom the kids accused of beating them.

Since the children returned to Michigan in January, Kimberly's calls have not occurred
as they are supposed to, if they occur at all. Tamika has prohibited Kimberly or her parents
from speaking with the children and many times when they are allowed to speak to her it
may be one or two — never all three. Many of the calls are 60 to 90 seconds and Tamika
hangs up or disconnects the calt. Kimberly has kept records of each call. or a log that the
call did not oceur, or the excuse Tamika had for not allowing the call to oceur.®

This Opposition follows.

V. OPPOSITION
A. Kimberly is Requesting that if Trial Is Confinued She Be Awarded
Temporary Physical Custody of the Minor Children

Counsel does not dispute that the Court can grant a Motion to Continue a Trial — for
good cause. Here. however. based on Kimberly’s concerns for the safety and well being
of the minor children she is opposed to any continuance — for months on end. This trial

was set months ago and she questions the reason that Mr. McGewan waited until the last

¢ See Exhibit E (Call Logs}.
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several weeks to request this continuance. as she believes he knew that by waiting it would
most certainly cause an additional six, or more. month delay 1o these proceedings.

The main concern for Kimberly is the safety and well being of her grandchildren and
for this Court, to hear the evidence that will be produced at trial to make the determination
of whether remaining in the custody of Tamika is detrimental.

At this time, if this Court is going to grant Mr. McGowan's request to continue this
trial. Kimberly is requesting that based on the information that is now before this Court. it
award her temporary custody of the minor children. As the children will be on their
summer break. and it is clear from Xy Shone’s interview that he wants to live with
Kimbertly. that she be awarded temporary custody to ensure that the safety and protection
of these children is maintained.

Kimberly is requesting that if the Court does not have a full day trial, however, can find
two half days to hear this matter. prior to the start of school, that the trial be briefly
continued.

V. COUNTERMOTION
A. This Court Should Grant Kimberly's Request For Custody

This Court has the ability to make orders at any time. under NRS 125C.0045(1) which
staies:

NRS 125C.0045(1):

i. In any action for determining the custody of a minor child. the court may.
except as otherwise provided in this section and NRS 125C.0601 to 125C.0693.
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inclusive, and chapter 130 of NRS:

(a) During the pendency of the action. at the final hearing or at any time
thereafter. during the minority of the child, make such an order for the custody. care.
education. maintenance and support of the minor child as appears in his or her best
interest:

{Emphasis Added].

Based on this, this Court can. and should. grant Kimberly’s request to temporarily
modify the current custodial orders to award her primary physical custody of the minor
children pending the evidentiary hearing.

The Court should Order that Kimberly and Tamika share joint kegal custody, however.
if the children need medical care and therapy that Kimberly be allowed to continue to
obtain it in order to meet the children’s needs. as that is in their best interest.

While Kimberly is aware that parents have a fundamental right in the care and custody
of their children’. she is also aware that if the disteict court finds that the parent is unfit or
that there are other extraordinary circumstances that result in serious detriment (o the child.
it can award custody to a third party

Kimberly is well aware that it is her burden to overcome the parental presumption.
however. in this case she believes she can prevail.

Before awarding custody — legal or physical — to a nonparent, the district court must

find that awarding custody to the parent would be detrimental to the child and the award

TNRS 126.036(1). See also Rico v Rodriguez, 121 Nev. 695,704,120 P.3d 812, 818

(2003).

8 itz v Benmum, 111 Nev. 35,38, 888 P.2d 438. 440 {1 905).: NRS 128.018: Locklin v

Locklin, 112 Nev. At 1495-96, 929 P.2d at 934
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to & nonparent is required to serve the best interest of the child.*
In making that decision. the district court must consider any one or combination of the
Locklin factors, as follows:

1) abandonment or persistent neglect of the chifd by the parent. Tamika has
beern in and out of these children’s lives for significant periods of time and
Kimberly previously provided this Court a list of issues that have been
ongoing that raise to the level of parental neglect. Kimberly believes that
this Court can find that Tamika has abandoned and neglected these children
throughout their lives.

2y Tikelihood of serious physical or emotional harm to the child if placed in
the parent’s custody. Again. Kimberly has provided this Court with
photographic evidence and medical records of the serious physical harm the
children have endured while in Tamika's care. A child falling off a roof'is
serious physical harm; beatings with a switch is serious physical harm. and
even if Tamika did not beat the children herself. it is happening by her agent
and the third party she is leaving the children in the care of while they are in
her physical custody; and the scars that the children have from prior physical
abuse they have endured. Kinberly has proof that both Xy’ Shone and Xania
have been diagnosed with mental health disorders and need therapy based on
the trauma and emotional harm that has been caused while living in Tamika’s
custody.

3) extended unjustifiable absence of parentai custody. Here Tamika left these
children with both Kimberly and Christopher for significant periods of time.

4) continuing neglect or abdication of parental responsibilities. Tamika has
never been able to provide the children stability and if it has not already been
shown it will be shown that Kimberly has had to take on the parental
responsibilities for the children. Kimberly is the one who worked with the
older two to teach them their alphabet and how to read: Kimberly has made
sure that they are getting an education; Kimberly makes sure that they have
food. clothing, and shelter. On the other hand. Tamika has never been able
to provide a home for the children — her history speaks for itself she moves
from one short term housing to the next: she stays with family or friends in

“NRS 125C.004(1).

[
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small units that are not large enough to house the amount of people residing
in them: she has had the children living in bug infested units; the school has
had to provide food for the children because Tamika is incapable of doing
this for her children: Tamika has not been able to maintain steady
employment; and she absolutely has not shown that she can take care of their
medical needs.

5} provision of the child’s physical, emotional and other needs by persons

6)

7)

8)

other than the parent over a significant period of time. Here, Kimberly has
taken care of the children’s needs since their birth. She has. for years.
provided for Tamika's needs as well.

the existence of a honded relationship between the child and the nonparent
custodian sufficient 1o cause significant emotional harm to the childin the
event of a change in custody. All three of these children have a bond with
Kimberly, the youngest does not have as strong of a bond due to being
withheld from contact with Kimberly for almost 18 menths. however, she is
well aware that the love and support she can provide him will quickly grow
into a very strong bond. Kimberly and Xy"Shone are very close, although the
last visit was somewhat strained. Kimberly believes that it is more than
Xv'Shone is not getting the emotional help that he needs. She also has
concerns that Xy* Shone shared information with her knowing that she would
protect him and unfortunately, after the information was provided to Tamika
through these proceedings, and shared with her family members. that
Xy*Shone may have incurred sorme beatings. There is no other explanation
for the drastic change in his behavior in a very short period of time. The
interview which was just a few weeks before the spring break visit was clear
that Xy Shone wants to reside with Kimberly in Las Vegas. Kimberly ts
questioning what Xy Shone was told would happen if he spoke to Kimberly
or took his coat off and any injury would have been more exposed.

age of the child during the period when his or her care is provided by a
non-parent. Kimberly provided care for these children for the majority of
their lives.

the child’s well being has been substantially enhanced under the care of
the nonparent. Here, Kimberly has absolutely substantially enhanced the
children’s well being under her care. As stated previously Kimberly is the
only one who can provide for the children housing, food. clothing. medical.
dental. therapy, and anything elsc they need or will need in the future.
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9) the extent of the parent’s delay in secing to acquire custody of the child.

10)

)

13)

Tamika did not file for custody of the children until after her plot to open a
criminal investigation against Kimberly or Christopher failed. Then she
requested full custody of the minor children. which she lost.

the demonstrated quality of the parent’s commitment to raising the
child. Tamika has never demonstrated any such quality.

the likely degree of stability and security in the child’s future with the
parent. There is. realistically. no degree of stability and security in any
of the children’s future if they are left in Tamika’s custody.

the extent to which the child’s right to an education would be impaired
while in the custody of the parent. Tamika did enroll the children in
public school, however. as stated through pleadings and in the children’s
interview. Kimberly can provide the children a better educational
experience. Kimberly further has concerns after spending spring break
with the baby. that Tamika has no skills with which to ensure that the
children’s educational needs are met or that she will push the children to
excel in their educational experience,

any other circumstances that wonld substantially and adversely impact
the welfare of the child. Here Kimberly believes that she has shown the
Court through the examples that she previously provided the multitude
of ways that the children’s welfare has been substantiaily and adversely
impacted in Tamika's custody.

In determining that the placement of the children in Kimberly's custody. the Court must

look at the factors in NRS 125C.0035(4) as follows:

(@) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capuacity to form

an intelligent preference as to his custody. The only child who was of a sufficient
age and capacity to form a preference as to his custody was Xy'Shone, who clearly
wants to be raised by Kimberly. Although he wants to spend time with Tamika he
is well aware that it is in his best interest to be placed in Kimberly's custody.
Xy*Shone was very clear in the amount of time he wanis to spend with everyone
based on the circumstances that each party has provided him throughout his life.

(b) Any nomination by a parent of a guardian for the child. Based on the history.
Kimberly nominates herself.
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(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent associations
and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. Here. Tamika has
shown that she has no problem withholding these children for extended periods of
time and not complying with Court orders to ensure that the children’s relationship
with Kimberly is maintained.

(d) The level of conflict between the parents. There is an increased level of conflict
between Kimberly and Tamika, that was not always present. Kimberly does not see
this improving if Tamika maintains custody of the children.

(¢) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the child, Kimberly
is the only party who has ever met the needs of the children.

{f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 1t does not appear that either
party has mental or physical health issues.

{g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. These children
all exhibit emotional needs. Kimberly is also concerned that the baby is undergoing
developmental needs as well.

{h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. The children are
very close and well bonded with Kimberly. 1t is believed that the children love
Tamika because of her being their mom. however. they do not trust her the way that
they trust Kimberly. They do not have the same open relationship with Tamika and
they have a safety and security with Kimberly that they do not share with Tamika.

(i) The ability of the child to maintain o relationship with any sibling. The
children should all remain together.

(i) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of the child,
Kimberly believes that the children are physically and emotionally abused by
Tamika, as well as being severely neglected when they are in her custody.

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has engaged in an
act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or any other
person residing with the child. Tamika and her sister were involved in a domestic
violence relationship where a beating and arrest occurred a few years ago.

() Whether either parent or any other person secking custody has committed any act
of abduction against the child or any other child. Wimberly still believes that af the
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time Tamika fled to Michigan, it was the form of an abduction and that, at that time.

Christopher was unaware. This was also the second time that Tamika fled Nevada and

abducted the children to Michigan.

Kimberly believes that this Court will find that almost every factor weighs in her favor
and that it is in the bes: interest of this Court to grant her custody of the minor children.

As stated previously. Kimbetly is requesting that if the Court does not agree with her,
that she is granted permission to re-open her guardianship action.

B. Tamika Should be Found in Contempt of Her Refusal to Comply With

Kimberly’s Ordered Phone Contact

In the Order from the February 24, 2021, hearing, entered March 29, 2021, Kimberly
was awarded phone contact with the minor children on Tuesday and Thursday evenings,
at 6:00 pm. or 6:30 p.m.. at Page 2, lines 15-18.

Since the children were returned to Tamika’s custody, through April 26. Kimberly has
had difficulty with compliance of this Order. There have been eight calls that have not
oceurred on the following days: February 8. 2022: March 1: March 3: March &; March 15;
March 24; April 5; and April 26.

Many of the other calls are limited to only speaking to one or two children and the
duration is normally 60 or 90 seconds before Tamika terminates the call.

Not only is this behavior and the games Tamika is playing harmful to Kimberly. it is
causing emotional damage to the children. The children want to keep and maintain their

relationship and bond with Kimberly, yet Tamika interferes and makes every attempt 1o
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terminate if.
Nevada Civil Practice Manual §2732:

Contempt and arrest. Disobedience of an order of the master or court in
supplementary proceedings is contempt.

NRS 22.010:
Acts or omissions continuting contfempts. The following acts or omissions shall be

deemed contempis:

3. Disobedience or resistance to any lawful writ, order, rule or process issued by the
court or judge at chambers.

NRS 22.100 Penalty for contempt.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 22.110. if a person is found guilty of
contempt. a fine may be imposed on the person not exceeding $500 or the person
may be imprisoned not exceeding 25 days. or both.

3. In addition to the penalties provided in subsection 2. if a person is found
guilty of contempt pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS22.010, the court may require the
person to pay to the party seeking to enforce the writ, order, rule or process the
reasonable expenses, including, without limitation. attorney’s fees, incurred by the
party as a result of the contempt.

This Court previously stated that if Tamika continued to disobey it's Orders it would
issue another pickup Order. that is what Kimberly is requesting in lieu of other sanctions.
however. if the Court is not inclined to issue a pick up Order. Kimberly is requesting that
this Court sanction Tamika appropriately, by awarding Kimberly a fine of $500 per count

of contempt Tamika is found guilty of, and/or an award of attorney’s fees for having her

Orders violated once again.

]
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C. Ki
Imberly Shouid Be Awarded Attorney’s Fees and Costs

This Cowrt has the ability to award attorney’s fees nnder NRCP 18.010, NRS
22.100, and EDCR 7.60.

With specific reference to F amily Law matters, the Supreme Court has recently, re-
adopted “well-known basic elements.” which in addition to hourly time schedules kept by
the attorney. are to be considered in determining the reasonable value of an atforney’s
services qualities, comimonly referred to as the Brunzell factors:'®

1. The Qualities of the Advocate: his ability. his training, education. experience,

professional standing and skill.

2. The Character of the Work to Be Done: its difficulty, its intricacy. its

importance. time and skill required, the respensibility imposed and the prominence

and character of the parties where they affect the importance of the litigation.

3. The Work Actually Performed by the Lawyer: the skill, time and attention given

to the work.

4. The Result: whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were derived.

Each of these factors should be given consideration, and no one element should

predominate or be given undue weight.!" Additional guidance is provided by reviewing the

Y Bryneell v Golden Gate National Bank 85 Nev, 345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969).
" Miller v. Wilfong. 12 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005).
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“attorney’s fees” cases most often cited in Family Law.?

The Brunzell factors require counsel to rather immodestly make a representation as to
the “qualities of the advocate,” the character and difficulty of the work performed, and the
work actually performed by the attorney.

Ms. Molnar has practiced primarily family law for the last 17 years and has handled
hundreds of custody, guardianship, and visitation cases.

As to the “character and quality of the work performed,” we believe this Opposition is
adequate, both factually and legally; we have diligently reviewed the applicable law,
explored the relevant facts, and believe that we have properly applied one to the other.

Ifthis Courtis inclined to grant Kimberly’s requests, a Memorandum of Fees and Costs
can be submitted.

DATED this 11" day of May, 2022.

Respectfully submitted by:
MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

/s/ Kari T. Molnar

KARIT. MOLNAR., ESQ).

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

(702) 534-2558

Attorney for Intervenor

12 awards of fees are neither automatic nor compuisory, but within the sound discretion of the Court, and

evidence must suppost the request. Fletcher v. Fletcher, 89 Nev. 540, 516 P.2d 103 (1973). Levy v Lavy, 96 Nev.
902, 620 P.2d 860 {1980), Hybarger v. Hybarger, 103 Nev. 255, 737 P.2d 889 (1987}.
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b DECLARATION OF KM Bz Ry WHTE g
AR
] 1L Kimberly White. declare that am competent o testify e the facts contamned in

" i1 the preceding filing
Bl 3. 1 have read the preceding filing. and T have personal knowledge ol the facts |
‘ |
1 . - 5

contined therem. nnless stated otherwise Further. the factual averments contamed theren

i
| are truc and correct to the bestalmy knowledge. except those matiers based on information |
|
¢ |, and betiet, and as 1o those marters, I beheve them 1o be true
o . N .
" [ deelare under penalty of perjnry. ander the laws of the State of Nevada (NRS
| ) perjnr)

51045 and 28 1.S.C. § 1740), that the foregoing is true and correct.

I+ EXECUTED this _ dayof May, 2022
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1 HEREBY CERTIFY service of the following Oppesition and Countermotion was
electronically served on the i M day of May. 2022, pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by
electronic service through the Eighth Judicial District Court’s ¢-Filing System (EFS),

addressed to the following registered users:

mark (¢ megannoniav office.com

jeang@megannonlawolfice.com

efile ¢ mcgannon]awotfice.com
Auorney for Plaintiff

tamika 8092 ¢ omarf.com
Plaintiff

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Opposition and Countermotion was served

thereof, in the United States Mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

Christopher Judson
8447 Sequoia Grove Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89149

Defendant

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law
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MOF1
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

Tamike Beatrice Jones

inti 1 Case No.  D-19-504°3-C
Plaintuff/Petitioner

v ! Dept. s
Christopher Judson | MOTION/OPPOSITION
Defendant/Respondent ; FEE INFORMATION SHEET

Notice: Motions and Oppositions filed after entry of a final order 1ssued pursuant 1o NRS 125, 1258 or 125C are
subject to the reopen filing fee of $25. unless specitically excluded by NRS 19.0312, Additionally. Motions and
Qppositions filed 1n cases inihated by joint petition may be subject to an additional filimg fee of $129 or 557 in
accordance with Senate Bill 388 of the 2015 Legislative Session,

Step 1. Sclect either the $25 or $0 filing fee in the box below.

$25 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is suhject to the 325 reepen fee.
-OR-
‘|:|$0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen
e because:
Iijhe Motion/Opposition is being filed before a Divorce:Custody Decree has been
| entered.
The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support
established in a final order.
The Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed
within 10 days after a final judgment ot decree was entered. The final order was
entered on .
L Other Excluded Motion {must specify)

Step 2. Select the 80. $129 or $57 filing fec in the box below.

‘$0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $129 or the
$57 fee because:
The Maotion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was nat initiated by joint petition.

Thc party filing the Motion/Oppusition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57.

-OR-
I:l$129 The Mation being filed with this form is subject Lo the $129 fee because it 15 & motion
to medify, adjust or enforce a final order.
~OR-
D §57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject 1o the $57 fee because i is
an opposition to a motion to modify, adjust or enforce a final order. or it is a motion
and the opposing party has already paid a fee of $129.

Step 3. Add the filing fees from Step | and Step 2.

e total filing fee for the molion/opposition T am filing with this form is:
0|V B231  B57 82 5129 154

Party filing Motion/Opposition: Kari T. Malnar Date 05/11/2022

Signature of Party or Preparer s/ Kari T. Mclnar
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EXH

MOLNAR FAMILY Law

KARI T. MOLNAR. ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

Phone: {702) 534-2558

Fax: (702)964-1373
kari@meolnarfamilylaw.com

Attomney for Intervenor

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, (Case No.:
Plaintift, Dept. No-
Vs,
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant,

VS,

KIMBERLY WHITE.

[ntervenor.

Electronically Filed
5/12{2022 1:52 AM
Steven D. Griersen

CLER; OF THE COUE

D-19-594413-C
S

[ {earing Date: 06/08/2022

Hearing Time: 09:15 AM.

APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION AND

COUNTERMOTION

Description
Exhibit No.

Case Number: D-19-594413-C
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A Letter from Jazmine Lopez at Hope Counseling, bates stamp

no. KW001.

B Pictures of Injuries to the kids, bates stamp nos. KW002-
KW003.

C Text messages between Tamika and Kimberly, bates stamp

nos. KW004-K Woos.

D Xy'Shone's medical report, bates stamp nos. KW009-KW013.

E Call Logs, bates stamp nos. KWO014-K W015.

DATED this 11" _day of May, 2022.

Respectfully submitted by:
MOLNAR EAMILY LAW

/s/ Kari T. Molnar

KARIT. MOLNAR, ESO.

Nevada Bar No. 009869 .

1489 W. Warm Sprm%s Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

(702) 534-2538

Attorney for Intervenor
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
1 hereby certify that service of the Appendix of Exhibits to Opposition and
Countermotion were served on the 12™ day of May, 2022, by U.S. Mail, by depositing
a true and cotrect copy thereof, in the United States Mail, first class mail, postage
prepaid, addressed as follows:
3447 Sequbia Grows Ave.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89149
efendant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
T HEREBY CERTIFY service of the following Appendix of Exhibits 1o the
Opposition and Countermotion was electronically served on the 12" day of May,
2022, pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by electronic service through the Eighth Judicial

District Court’s e-Filing System (EFS), addressed to the following registered users:

tamikai8092(¢ﬁ%mail.com
Plaintift

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law

b
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Counschng Services

€01 S Rancho Dr Swie ALD, Las Vegan, NV 88106 T (7023 4174671 F (702 4384672 . H.O.PE

v HopeComelun er i

Heatmg, Duveicomma,
Meovenning, Empouweon:

lanuvary 17 2022

To Whom it may concers,

The following information it in rogarding to Judson, Xy'Shone he has been engaging in services since 12/6/2021
Clinician recommendation include that Xy'Shane engage in sessions once 3 week for individual session to help
pracess feelings ha identifies. Caregiver session are also recommended to helg provide future support
Xy'Shone.

Judson, Xy'Shone meets the following diagnosis

Major depressive disorder, single episode, mild, F32 8 (1£D-10) {Active) evident by the feeling sadness, loneness
anger, helpless, fear of abandonment, ingrease worries, difficulty trusting others and difficubty focusing, These
symatoms have been consistent for the last 2 years based on Xy'shone reporting,

Oisruption of family by separation and diverce, 263.5 {ICD-10) {Active] evident by Xy'Shone expressed difficulty
being separated from his younger brother and will express wornes. He alsc express feeling sadness from being
separated from his grandmather Xy'Shane has nat been able to share feeling relsted to separation from
biotogical parents.

Child neglect or abandonment, suspected, \nitial encounter, T76.02XA (1CD-10} (Active) evident by reparts that
guardian provided te clinician based on Xy'Shone behavior as he will worry about how much food he is able to
eat and fear of not having it. When ask Xy'Shone he was unable to express why he become anxious about food

Clinician’s current observation include that Judson, Xy'Shone has difficulty buikding trust with others including
clinician and new providers such as teacher This has been observed by Xy'Shone in session as he has exprassed
difficulty engaging in sessions without grandmother Recently during our last session 1/17/2022 he agreed
meeting with clinician individually without grandmother being prese at. He has verbally exaressed difficulty
trusting his aew teacher and will worty about her response Additional observation include Xy'Shone is very
guarded in talking about hts family he will often share his relationship with grandmother and her sister hawever,
he will become guarded talking about the time he was with bioiogical mother He will only express worries about
youngar brother yet has not express other warries beside being separated and family problem yet has not
elsborate any future. Clinician obsarves that he will become anxious and engagINg in fidgeting behavior, tense
ruscle, and attempt to hide his facial expression when discussing relationship and feelings he experiences.

Sincerely,
Jazmine Lopez, LSW, CSW-Intern
H.OPE Counseling Servives

L

$ HoPE

Hustms, Oussrmeony
P T
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D322 054 AM 10R0a1F-a2CT-I0AR-02F(-EE 235208 Ang

ahils Agreement

3:29 PM

Sunday?22 I'm sorry. Did not
receive it. As soon as they can

3.32 PM
Thank you
Tamika
3:33 PM
16:18 AM

@ Send message..

hitps deead google camimaliuises chikimbarly»whits NI ST S 2w PTG nosiV
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S22 10 bE AN BATAF D TOF dDTROICAL 0T

7:43 o 5G: Em

Agreement

Can | please talk to my

childreng?

9:07 Pm

12:11 AN

Mondays 7pm your time

Tarmiko
3.30 AM

1 meant Monday through Friday

7pm on the wknd 12pm and 7pm

3:40 AM

5:53 Pm

Tamika
5:54 PM
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@mk Agreement

900 AM

T fs e

03 AM

i DID NOT CONFIRM FOR MY
CHILDREM TO SPEAK TO A
THERAPIST OF YOUR CHOICEN
YOU WERE TOLD NOT TO MOVE
FORWARD WiTH ANY TYPE OF

MEDICAL ACTIVITIES OF MY
CHILDRENI

Have your lawyer coll my lawyer
on this situation

Tomika
9:07 A

QN9 AM
@ Sond messoge..
o M

oghe conimatCitsearch:kmbery +whils QUL (P eI zenlSPwPTIRAMGGsnpalYaxlZWkgRHED T PaRAMYZCni Ptwnkn DIMkig 11

htipg hmail go
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G_?ails Agreement

909 AM

Ma'am the judge told you not to
moke medical advises for my
children, You temporary sole
physical custody, not legal or fulll
So you are not allowsd to foke
my children to ¢ doctor’s office

nor are you ullowed to give ony
medicafions. | would like to tatk
to my children in 30 minutesl
Piease have lynn or your new
counsel get in touch with my
counsel.

Tamika
4:29 PM

o Send messags...

hips - Tanaoge L STk TRsedicn b ey Fue e TR R R AL S et B E TR G0 et TR H STILIR AT TN PR 1
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322 10 50 AM BS513AD85-0774-463F-8082-AEEITIBIE IAE png

& 45 PM

With everything you did to me# |
would not give you any of my
information] | don't trust youl |
could have sworn you hed all the
credentials and alf the education
to be a doctor! But you can't
clean an impacted ear?? Well us
hosdrats know how to do thatll
This is why you don't need my
children| They definitely did rot
leave with impacted sars! So
once ogain have whom aver your
recent lawyer is call mine. Fll be
calling you arcund 7:10Q your
time if | don't receive o call from
you at Tpm.

Tamike
6:52 PM

https./imail.gaoule. c,nmﬁmaﬂlu.‘omsean:h-kw.'nberly+whwLeﬂ'vnmeXszlxznnst'wPW(zMrGGsnpsufqnzNwmgﬁ|~|c.;?zerMVchKnF‘wwwknDJkag 1"
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Data Portability for Xy’ Shone Judson

Table of Contents

Dgmographics

.are Team Mambers
Asgessmant

Flan of Treatment
Reason for Referral
Resulls

Problems
Procedure
Medical Equiprment
Alleraies
Medicabons

Yitals

Sog:al History
Funchonat Slatus
Mantal Stats
Famuly History
Medical History
immunzations
Past Encounters
Goals Section

Heal QCem clion
Arlvance Directves
Payers
Demographics
Sex: Male
DOB: 1172002011
Preferred Informatan not available
language:

Previous Name

10461 Hartford Hills Averie La
Home)

Contact:

Care Team Membars
Cther
None Recorded

Infarmation not available
nfarmaton nat avalable
Informatan Aot available

Ethnicity:
Race:
Marital status.

s Vegas Nv 89186-6510 Ph fel+1-702-534-9692 (Pamary

KW009
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Assessment

Encountar Assessment Assessment

Dats Bate

12/20/2021 1220/2021  Overview/History
This ic a pleasant 10 year old maie thats new o myself and Dispalsh Health. His
Grandmother belisvas there is a piece of a Q Tip that is stuck in night ear This ocourred
potentally a few wagks ago It has not been hurting just "feels like there 18 something in
thare® There is no fever decreased heanng. ear dranage

Exam
He is alert. inferactive. non-toxic appearing Vital signs unfemarkable Bilateral ear canal
cerumenous. Ma LAD Pharyni is clear

DDx considared but notmied to
cerumen impaciion

FB8 garcanal

olits media

masteiditis

olis extema

Work upfResulis
Bilateral ear canals wmgated with complste removat of coplous amount of cerumen. No FB
found TMs peary gray. Ear canals clear

Plan/Discussion

Discussed routne sar care for patient ! recommend using debrox (sar wax sofiener] once
ar twice a week and using warm water n the showsr in clezr gars o avold excess wax
build up

Please establish care with new pediatician Xy'Shone is new Io Las vegas Mace
recommendation of Desert Valley Pediatics due to ciose proximity

Please follow up with pedatician if sympioms retur

For mild @ madarate ear paln ear drainage fevers please fokow up with us or
pediayician
For severe gar pan acuie loss of hearing. please repor to the ER.

Patant Targe

Encounter Instructions

Dete

1242072021 Discussed routne ear care for patent | recommend using debrox {ear wax soflener) once or wice
a week and using warm water in the shower ta clean ears 0 3void BXCess waX build up

Please establish care with new pediatcian. Xy Shone is new Las Vegas Made

recommendation of Desert Valley Pediames due lo close proximity

Please follow up with pediatician it symptoms retum

For mild o moderate ear pain ear dranage fevers please follow up with us or pedialnc:an For

severe gar pain, acute loss af hearning please report to the ER

Goals

KWO10
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Pian of Treatment
Raminders
Appointments

Imaging

hone recorded

More regarded

waone recorderd

1

recorded
Nore recardsa

Reason for Referral

Nane Rapared
Results

None recorded

Problems
No information

Procedures
Surguzal Hhistory

None recarded

mzging Resulls

None recordad

Medical Equipmant
Nane Reparted

Allergies

No krown drug allesgies -

Maedications
Mo infarmadion:

Vitals
Date Body Heart
Raecorded Lemparature rete rata

Social History

none recerded

Functional Siatus
None recardad

Trug

Respiratory

Order Date

Dxygen sateratt

Submit Date

oximetry

a7 "

Provider
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Mental Status
None racorded

Family History

felationship Descriptian Onset Age Diedof this Age  Rasolved Age  Notes

Father No current problems ar disabrity

Mother ' o ' - o

Medical History

Condition Response

Pulmonary Embolism N

Parkinson's Disease N e

Cancer B i

High Cholestero! W

Dementia N

Coronary Artary Disease N

Rhegumatoid Adhritis N

Osteoporosis 7 N

Asthma v ) '

Stroke N

Diabetes N

CHF N

A-fb N

Hypertansion N

Depression N

Hypothyrokdism N

COFD N

Kidney Disease N

Immunizations

None recorded

Past Encounters ) _

Encounter Date Diagnosis Name  Diagnhosis SNOMED-
€T Code

122042021 impacted cerumen 108324 1000118108

Cathenne Goebet, CO - DispaikchHealth LAS - HOME 3841 W aftilateral ears

CHARLESTON BLVD. | AS VEGAS NV 83102- 1858 Ph. (702} BAB-4443

Goals Section
Goat Dascription $tatus Stant Date

None Retorded

Updated by Updated on

Kwi12
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Health Concerns Section
Related Qbsecvation
None Recorded

Concern Status
None Recorded

Advance Directives

Diractive

None Recorded

Payers

Encountar Sequancelnsurance Folicy
Date Name Number
1202002021 1 “SELF PAY"

{pdated by
Pollcy Coverad
Helder Member ID
Kimbedy 75
White

Updatsd bn

Holdar MemberGuarantor
iD Name
Xy' Shane
Jugson

KW013

997



EXHIBIT E

998



Kimbariy Yhie
101461 Hartford Hills Ave
Las Vegas. NV 80166

Date & Yime of C Phene Number  Dashination Length of Cail
A11%2022 to Detroitdl GGM called
4114:2022 to Datroit/MI 1 min
AM22022 ta Delroithi 2 mmin

/712022 Text Rec'd carealling call
a15/2022 15 31 (313) 452-5009  to Delrait'ml 2 Min

373142022 1901 (313)452-5008  Incoming 5 Min

3/30/2022 19 56 (313) 452-5009  to Dalroilibdl 5 hin
3(30/2022 18 45 (313)452-5008 o DewroivMi 2 Min
32920272 18 55 (313) 452-5008  to Detrohlt 14 Min
32812022 13:56 (313) 4525009  to Detrotitl 8 Mm
3/28/2022 19°03 (313} 45%-5008  Incoming 11 Min
32702022 18 5€ (313]452-5009  ta Deiroit'MI ¢ Mm
2612022 22°30 {312) 452 5009 1o DatrowM 2 Min
3/26/2022 22 28 {313} 4525008 10 DetroitMi 2 Min
UPEII022 18 55 (313! 4525008  to DetroitMl 4 han

3424/2022 15 27 (3133 452-5008 o DetroMi 1 Min
222022 17 30 (313} 452-5008 10 Detroit! 2 Min
3742022 15 54 (313)452-5009  Incoming 2 Men
311742022 5 37 (313) 452-5009 o Delreil/Mh * Min

3162022 15 30 (313)452.5008 o DetroigMi 2 Min
1012022 15 85 (3131 452-5000 1o Detrod/l aMin
Wa/2022 17 37 (313;452-5000 to Delroiwddl 1 b0
2022 1529 (313) 452-5069  ta DatroiwMI i M
A1p2002 15 31 (313)452-500% o Delroi/Ml 1 Mt
24/2022 15 30 {313) 452-5009 o DetroitiMi 1 Min
272402072 15 30 (313} 452-5009 10 DetroitMi 4 Min
2122/2022 15 33 (313) 4526009 to Oetroith| 2 Bhin
21172022 15 35 (313)452-5009  to DevoilMI 2 MR
201572027 15.97 (313) 452-5009 1o Detroit'Mi 3 Min
2/3/2022 16 34 (313]452-5008 o Detroitihli 4 M
20172022 17 50 {313} 452-5608 Incaming AMin
2/1/2022 17 49 (313) 452-500%  coming 1 hin
27112022 17 45 (3121 452-5009% to Derrait!M! 1 Mia
212022 15 33 {313)452-5004 0 DetroskiMIL 1 Wi
1/19/2022 18 31 (313} 452-5069  Incorng Z Min
1/49i2022 18,26 (313) 452-5009 10 DeleatMI Z Men
112022 *8°05 (313) 452-5008 o DetrolME 21 bn
120262021 18 07 (3131 4525008 10 Detro/MI 15 8hin

Kin 14
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513122 1108 AW

Date

February 1
2022

Fabruary 3.
2022
February &
2022

February 8
2022

Fabroary 10.
2022

February 15
2022

Fabruary 17
2022

February 22,
2022

Feabruary 24
2022

March 1 2622
Rarcn 3. 2022
Atarct 8, 2022
higre 10. 2022

March 15 2022
March 17 2022
March 22. 2022

March 24 2022

March 20 2022

Fwe Count Orerad Phone "me Cail Lag - + sn@molnardamilylas.com  Molnar Family Law M
Details
Phane call o kids. left message x2 Phone call from Xy Shone lor 3 minutes
Spoke with Xy'Shane for 4 minutes
Text from Janes saying kids ware Ino busy 16 1alk and they would all tamorraw
No cali from children
Xy'Shone and Xala spoks with great-grandmether
Spoka (0 Xy'Shone Call ended when | asked Xy'Shone if he suk draws comics 60 seconds
3poke with Xaia 60 seconds.
Spake with Xaia 1 minute 32 seconds

Great-grandmother spoke o Xy'Shone and Xaie for 90 seconds

Phone calt ta kids x 2: left messages
Phona calite kids |eft message
Phone call to kids left mezsage
Spoke to xaa for 2 minutes

Phane call 1o kids: left massage.
Phone call 1o kids, ieft message. Phone call from kids for 2 minutes.
Spoke ta Xy Shone for 60 seconds

Phone cal o kids. [sf messaga. mistakenly called early because traveling n different time zane Text frem
Jones complaimng

Spoke to all 3 kids for 13 minules

Phone call to kids lefl message. Phone message from Xy'Shone stating he and Xaia sick an they wil cab

Apnl 5 2022 hyreday Text from Jones wilh same message.
Apnl 7 2022 Text fiom Jones stating sne's in nospial and wif have Ihe kids call tomorrow
Aprit 8. 2022 Ng phone call.
Aprd 12,2022 Spoke o Xy'Shane for 60 seconds
April 14 2022 Spoke with Xy'Shone and Xaia for 60 seconds
Aprl 19,2022 Great grandmolher and Greal grandfather spoke with Xaia,
ppmb 21 2022 Prone call o kids loft message Phane call from Xy'Shone spoke for 60 seconds
Aprit 25, 2022 Phong cali to kids ieft message
: Greal grandmother called kids late. left message Text from Jones stating no call received on 3/21/2022 and
Apfil 28 2022 o great grandraother 1o call on lime
hitps +mal paogle comimal hva ) GXDTK: L ZHRHC SRS DKo LWV T nGDBIOMDNgRZpL et g8 1z
KWo15
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Electronically Filed
5/12{2022 6:43 AM
Steven D. Grierson

OPPC

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

KARI T. MOLNAR. ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 0609869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road. Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

Phone: (702) 534-2558

Fax: (702)964-1373
karir@'molnarfamilylaw.com

Attorney for Intervenor. Kimberly White

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES. (Case No.: D-19-594413-C

Plaintiff, Dept. No.: S
VS.

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON.

Defendant. Hearing Date:
V. Hearing Time:
KIMBERLY WHITE.
Intervenor.
OPPOSITION TO
“MOTION TO CONTINUE EVIDENTIARY HEARING
AND

COUNTERMOTION FOR THE COURT TO PROCEED WITH ALLOWING
THE INTERVENOR TO REQUEST CUSTODY OF THE MINOR CHILDREN
OR/TO REINSTATE OR RE-OPEN THE GUARDIANSHIP CASE THAT WAS

PREVIOUSLY INITIATED BY THE INTERVENOR
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L. INTRODUCTION

The first seven pages ot the Motion is repetitive of every Motion Tamika has filed
since retaining Mark McGannon to represent her in this matter. Kimberly may briefly
respond to some of these allegations. if necessary. however, she believes that she has
previously provided this Court an Opposition to most. if not all. and does not want to be
repetitive. This Court can take judicial notice of her prior response(s).

Kimberly does not dispute that at the January 20, hearing, this Court ruled that an
evidentiary hearing would proceed on the issues of Grandparent visitation on July 22, 2022,
however. at that hearing this Court made that ruling based on Tamika’'s argument that this
Court was violating her fundamental. constitutional rights as a parent and that it could not
proceed in that way, as there was no Petition seeking custody of the children and the father
signed under oath that it is in the children’s best interest to have permission to relocate with
Mom to Michigan.

This Court stated that it did not see this case as a Termination of Parental Rights.
however. it was absolutely correct when it found that the statue is clear that if the Court
finds it is in the best interest of the children that it can award them to a third party. The
Court further provided the cases of Lawrimore v. Lawrimore. 461 P.3d 896 (2020} and
Hudson v Jones, 122 Nev, 709 (2006), as guidance of proceeding with this matter.

This Court further Ordered that Kimberly could file for custody or guardianship

prior to the evidentiary hearing. Within just a few days. on January 25. 2022. Kimberly

[

1002




b2

complied with the Court by initiating a guardianship action in Case No. D-22-641477-V.
Based on counsel’s review of that case. it appears the case was voluntarily dismissed due
to lack of service.

Kimberly does not have to tile another Petition for Custody. as this Court already
granted her Motion to Intervene — which Tamika never objected. Tamika continues to
refuse to take responsibility for her actions. as shown in her pleadings. and wants to blame
everyone else on what has occurred since initiating this action in 2019, Tamika has
repeatedly argued that Kimberly has refused to serve her or notify her ot pleadings. hearing
dates, and orders. however. it is Tamika’s fault that she failed to comply with the Rules by
filing a Notice of Change of Address. Based on counsel’s review of the pleadings it is
obvious that Tamika is aware that this was necessary and that she knows how to file the
Notice. as she filed a Notice of Change of Address with an email address on September 23.
2019. The fact that a litigant refuses to comply with Rules. or in this case — Orders —
cannot be blamed on anyone else. Kimberly's only duty throughout this casc was to serve
Tamika at her last known address with the Court — which she complied with,

At the time that Kimberly filed her Motion to Intervene. on July 13. 2020. it clearly
discussed the law of not only intervention. but also the law on this Court granting her
Motion for Custody of the three minor children.

Due to the holdings in both the Lawrimore and Hudson v. Jones cases. counsel will

discuss the specific factors in Locklin v. Duka, 112 Nev. 1489. 929 P.2d 930 (1996).

()
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however. Kimberly disagrees with Tamika’s position that this Court is somehow prohibited
from determining the custody or guardianship of the minor children at the evidentiary
hearing and that it can only determine grandparent’s visitation.

There are concerns that need to be addressed by this Court. and counsel notified Mr.
McGanon that there were additional issues brought to light. during Kimberly's most recent
visitation with the children during their spring break. Counsel was just retained by
Kimberly to represent her through the trial in this matter on. or about April 19. when the
Notice of Appearance was filed and the full payment was made. a few days later.
Immediately following her entering this case. counsel flew to Tennessec and was gone in
amulti day proceeding. which included a trial. for approximately five days. Upon returning
on April 25. counsel was attempting to catch up and work on two emergency issues that
arose.

Mr. McGannon has produced the communication with counsel, however. due to just
getting back to work this week and having issues with the Attorney Portal blocking
counsel's full access to this file and with the extensive filings and proceedings that have
occurred. counsel belicves she is up to speed. Counsel agrees that she informed Mr.
McGannon that the reason she was hired was to file the necessary documents and provide
this Court with proper notice of the issues that arose to properly represent Ms, White and
provide this Court with necessary information to modify the current order based on a

showing that leaving the children in the care of Tamika is detrimental to their well being
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and not in their best interest. In order to have a detailed discussion with Mr. McGannon
counsel needed a few days to review the file and prepare for any such communication
and/or filing this request. As required. counsel put Mr. McGanon on notice that her
intention was to file and request a temporary Order that the three minor children be placed
in Kimberly's care — where all of their needs will be met. Counsel also wanted the
opportunity to review and discuss the child interview of Xy Shone and discuss that with
Kimberly. while allowing Mr. McGanon to review and discuss it with Tamika. prior to
scheduling a time to talk. Counsel was only notified and provided a copy of the Interview
three judicial days ago — after sending an inquiry to the Court.

Not only has Kimberly, while representing herself. attempted to put this Court on
notice that there were issues by filing a Motion for an Order Shortening Time for the
evidentiary hearing after finding out from Mr. McGanon's office that he would be
unavailable in July. Kimberly's position is that Mr. McGanon had to be aware of an out
of couniry wedding prior to a liitle over two months before and the fact that she was just
noticed and informed that the trial would be continucd for almost five or six more months
was unacceplable for an attorney (o do to an unrepresented party.

At 9. Tamika states that her attornev advised counsel of “serious concerns” of a
possible issue with the paternity of the parties’ youngest child. However. the Court can
review the email which stated that the youngest child’s paternity may be at issue and Mr.

McGanon would like to discuss this issue with counsel. Counsel addressed this briefly by

h
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requesting his availability and informing him that she was interested to hear what he had
to say. that she would discuss the continuance with Kimberly. however. counsel did not
believe that Kimberly would agree without having the issues and her request for temporary
custody addressed by the Court. After fullv reviewing this file. it 1s apparent to counsel that
Tamika would never agree to give Kimberly temporary custody of the minor children
pending an evidentiary hearing and that counsel would be forced to tile a motion.

A response was requested in which a stipulation was sent to counsel to continue the
trial. however. no dates for availability for a further discussion were ever provided.
Counsel intended to reach out to Mr. McGannon in the next 48 hours, however., it appears
his preference is litigation.

This Opposition and Countermotion follows.

II. FACTS

A.  Brief Procedural History

Counsel previously addressed Kimberly's compliance with this Court’s direction.
initially when she filed her Motion to Intervene to Request a Motion for Custody. Despite
there being ne Opposition filed, this Court did not make any order, permanent or otherwise.
on this request and the request was never denied. therefore. Kimberly incorporates that
Motion into this Countermotion in requesting that this Court make a determination. on a
temporary basis. pending the evidentiary hearing that is in the best interest of the three

minor children.

6
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Kimberly is going to provide a very basic recitation of the parties” and children’s
past living arrangements. to assist this Court’s recollection of what was previously
discussed in detail:

From 2011 through 2019. both parties and the children were residing with Kimberly.
There were times during the eight vear period that the parties would move from Kimberly s
residence, however, the children always resided with Kimberly and spent more time with
her than their parents.

During this time, Kimberly also provided the stability for the parties and their
children — emotional. financial. and ensured their basic needs were met, among additional
assistance with education. housing. and employment. Kimberly maintained daily and full
financial responsibility for the children during this time.

In 2016, was the first time Tamika fled the State of Nevada with the children. This
lasted for six months with no contact with Kimberly until they returned.

During July and August of 2019. Tamika rented an apartment. however. she threw
Christopher and the three minor children out of the home on two separate occasions. After
the second time. Christopher said he and the children wcre not returning.

It was also in August. that Tamika filed false kidnapping charges and sent the police
to Kimberly's home. where the children were residing with their father. After a brief
discussion/investigation. the police determined there was no further action to take. As

Tamika did not achieve the resulis she wanted. she opened this litigation by requesting full
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custody of the three children.

At their initial hearing. Christopher was awarded primary custody of the minor
children from Monday through Fridav and Tamika received visitation from Friday at 5:00
p.m until Sunday at 5:00 p.m.

By December of 2019. the parties decided to reconcile and Christopher returned to
Tamika's apartment with their children. Initially. the kids were still spending almost every
dav in Kimberly's care. however. she noticed that this slowly deteriorated as the parties
began leaving the children in her custody for less time and began decreasing her
communication.

By June of 2020. Christopher never came to Kimberly's and by that time, the
children were spending no time with her and she was not allowed to speak with them.
Kimberly was very concerned for the children during this time and she proceeded to file
her Motion to Intervene in this action. Following hearings and a mediation Kimberly
successfullv obtained a visitation order.

On November 3. 2020, there was a hearing wherein Tamika represented that the
visitation was going well. however. she disappeared the [ollowing weekend,

At the time of Tamika's disappearance. Kimberly was awarded visitation one
weekend a month and during the months with a fifth weekend. she was awarded that

weekend as well. two calls cach week. on Tuesday and Thursday. at 6:00 p.m. or 6:30 p.m..

and two weeks during the summer.

1008




b2

After Tamika's disappearance. Kimberly's visitation and phone contact was not
complied with and she was forced to return to Court to obtain an Order. At the February.
2021. hearing. this Court issued a pickup Order. The Order was not entered until March
and from the time that Kimberly received a copy. she searched for her grandchildren until
November, 2021, with the assistance of law enforcement. the school district. the Nevada
Attorney General. and others to finally be able to retrieve the two oldest children. She
unsuccessfully retrieved her youngest grandson.

The children remained in Kimberly's care where they were enrolled in school. and
were finally obtaining the medical and mental health treatment they needed. In January.
2022. the parties participated in additional litigation. There were two days of hearings.
January 20. and January 21. At the first hearing. Tamika was awarded one daily phone call.
one video call, and one supervised visit during the weekend. The next day. the Judge
ordered that the children were to be returned to Tamika's custody and Kimberly s visitation
was reinstated. A child interview with Xy Shone was granted.

Further. on January 20. when this Court directed Kimberly to cither file for Custody
or Guardianship and provided the case law. Kimberly took that advice and proceeded with
opening a Guardianship case on January 25. It is believed that due to her counsel’s
awareness that her request for custody was already before this Court, no further request was

necessary.

Unfortunately. due to service issues, the Guardianship case had to be voluntarily

1009




dismissed.

As this Court is well versed in the factual background of the parties and children.
it does not appear necessary to go back through a complete recitation of the history.

Tamika continues to state. throughout this Motion. that a continuance of the trial -
that was scheduled months ago — will not prejudice the Intervenor. However. Kimberly
disagrees. This case has never been about Kimberly. This case has only been about the
children and their needs; their welfare: safety: educational and medical needs being met;
and that their best interests are heard and decisions are made with all of this taken into
account.

1. Counseling for the Minor Children

At the proceedings in January. the children’s counseling. issues. and fears that they were
exhibiting were discussed. however. at that time. Kimberly had not yet received a statement
from the counselor.

During that proceeding Mr. McGanon argued that Kimberly had no right to take the
children to counseling and that the counseling never should have occurred. however. at the
time that Kimberly put the children in counseling. it was necessary. Due to the short time
that Xy*Shone was involved in counseling. between December 6. 2022 and January 17.
2022. he engaged in sessions once a week. after being diagnosed with Major Depressive
Disorder. single episode mild F32.0 (ICD-10) (Active): Disruption of family by separation

and divorce, Z63.5(ICD-10) (Active): and Child neglect or abandonment. suspected. initial

10

1010




[ ]

R R = = N =

encounter. T76.02XA (ICD-10) (Active).'

To provide this Court with a better understanding of the children’s behaviors and
statements when they were placed in Kimberly's care in November of 202 1. Xaia was very
depressed. She would only provide one word answers, she was barely speaking and had
a very flat affect. She would constantly repeat “I'm sad. ['m always sad. 1I'm sad about
family stuft.”

Xy Shone exhibited extreme anxiety when he had to speak with Tamika. on the phone
and following the calls he would have horrible nightmares that Kimberly would spend
significant time calming and soothing him and assuring him that he was safe and everything
was going to be alright.

As time passed. the children disclosed abuse issues with their family in Michigan
describing them as “brutal” and the children were fearful believing that™they re going to
kill us.” Again. just one more issue that caused her very serious concerns of whether the
children were safe and whether there will come a time when she reccives a dreadfut call
that something very bad happens to one, or all. of the children. or that one. or all. are dead.

Afler the children began therapy and they were discussing some of these issues. the
therapist suggested working with Kimberly to come up with a reasonable telephone
schedule that would benefit the children and be in their best interest. rather than Tamika

forcing Kimberly to acquiesce to her unreasonable demands of multiple phone and/or video

! See Tixhibit A (January 17. letter [rom Jazmine Lopez. LSW. CSW-Intern from Hope

Counseling).
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calls each day. Kimberly reached out to Tamika to notify her that the therapist was
working with the children to arrive at a schedule that would be in their best interest —
Tamika’s response was to restate her demands and inform Kimberly that she had no right
to take the children to a therapist. Ultimately the therapist advised Kimberly to limit calls
to occurring when the children requested to speak to Tamika and to implement a schedule
that would not cause them undue anxjety or to make them upset.

As clearly stated in the therapist's letter. Xy Shone was very concerned during the
entire time he was in Las Vegas for the safety and well being of his baby brother who
remained in Tamika's care.

It was not untit January ot 2022. immediately before the children were ordered to return
to Tamika’s custody that both Xy Shone and Xaia reported being beaten by a “switch”
which left scars.

Kimberly believes that the investigation referred to in this letter is that what was
reported to CPS in Michigan. afier retrieving the children.” To the best of Kimberly's
recollection. Michigan did not close the case. however. they were not actively conducting

their investigation after she reported the allegations. sent pictures of the abuse. and

2 To the best of Kimberly's knowledge there may be at least two reports to CPS in

Nevada. as she was advised to make a report in January. as she was finding out information.
however. she believes that because the allegations stemmed from incidents in Michigan. Nevada
did not proceed with an investigation and she believes there is at least one other CPS allegation
previously in Nevada. from 2019. Counsel will altempt to get Mr. McGowan to sign a
Stipulation for the Court to request the CPS records. as it is very difficult for counscl to receive
subpoena responses directly from the ageney. as this Court 1s aware.
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informed the investigators what the children were reporting of abuse and neglect they were
encountering by the Mother. Maternal Grandmother. and Maternal Aunt — whom Kimberly
believes were all residing with the children — at that time — and have continued residing
with the children since they were returned to Tamika's custody.”

Xaia was also seen by the therapist and diagnosed with anxiety, however, was not as
bad as Xy"Shone. Kimberly was in the process of getting Xaia in to regular appointments.
as recommended by the therapist around the time that Kimberly was ordered to return the
minor children to Tamika. Kimberly does not believe that Tamika followed through with
any therapeutic services for Xaia.

Kimberly also wants to ensure that the children continue receiving therapeutic treatment
to resolve their diagnosed. and any additional issues, including their food insecurity. which
she was informed if the children continued exhibiting signs what they would need
additional counseling to assist them with this issue.

The therapist recommended that the child may require further counseling to address
their issues with food insccurity

Kimberly believes that. as the children’s mother. Tamika should have immediately
recognized the fear and anxiety both of the older children were exhibiting and she should

have enrolled the children in therapy when thev were in her care ~ that never happened.

s See Exhibit B (Two of the pictures that Kmberly sent to CPS. which show what appears

t0 be abuse that the children encountered). Due to scanning the pictures they may not be clear. if
the Court is not able to see the injurics the children sustained. counsel can produce color

photographs to this Court and Mr. McGanon.
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Kimberly does not believe that she has enrolled them in any therapy since they returned and
she believes that the reason Tamika is failing the child by not ensuring that their mental
health and well being is taken care of is out of fear of what the children may report to a
therapist ot the dangers and possible abuse that they are receiving in Tamika s care and by
the household members she and the children reside with. which causes Kimberly grave
concern and leads to her belief that it is detrimental to these children’s health and welfare.
and not in their best interest to remain in her care.

2. Medical Issues for the Minor Children

During the time that the children were in Kimberly's care from Nevada of 2021.
through January. 2022, she became very alarmed when Xy Shone reported that he was
experiencing bilateral leg pain caused by falling off a roof at his aunt’s home. Kimberly
also noticed that he was walking abnormally. Based on this Kimberly sought medical care
to make sure the child was not injured. Xy Shone underwent a physical assessment and a
treatment plan was created, which included a referral for physical therapy. Unfortunately.
Kimberly was not able to take Xy Shone to begin physical therapy as she was ordered to

return him to Tamika's care.

The fact that Tamika was aware of this incident. which Kimberly believes occurred a
significant period of time — close to a year — before she retrieved Xy 'Shone. and yet failed
to even take him to see a doctor. or make anyone aware of the situation is uncalled for and

simply medical neglect. The fact that Xy'Shone has needed physical therapy for over a
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vear and Tamika is most likely completely unaware and unconcerned with the pain he is
in and that he walks abnormal. The children should not be forced to live under these
conditions. 1t's not only unacceptable and unfit parenting — it amounts to abuse and
neglect.

On January 12. 2022, Kimberly also took Xaia to the dentist as she fell at school.
During the appointment. several cavities were discovered. Kimberly does not believe that
Tamika takes proper care of the children’s dental needs. as she is unsure that Xaia has been
to a dentist since she was a toddler. Xy Shone has never went to a dentist. and Kimberly
is unsure whether Xionne has ever been to a dentist appointment. however. doubts the
likelihood.

Xaia's asthma was acting up and Kimberly requested the copy of the insurance card.
initially. to obtain inhalers — Tamika refused to respond to this request.

The two children both ended up with ear impactions. Kimberly informed Tamika that
the children had ear impactions from lack of cleaning and she was requesting a copy of
their insurance cards and Tamika’s home address. The response from Tamika - rather than
concern and questions about the children’s health and welfarc — consisted of blame:
derogatory statements and comments about Kimberly: her refusal to provide the insurance

cards: and her refusal to respond to Kimberly's request for her address.*

1 See Exhibit C(Text messages regarding phone calls and medical issues regarding their
insurance and health care issucs that Tamika refused to assist with). These text messages were
previously produced by Kimberly in her Opposition to Tamika's motion to stay the order which
was heard in January, 2022. However. duc to the amount of text messages that were produced
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Xy'Shone’s impacted ear. which was the worst of the two. and needed extra care was
caused from a gtip being stuck in his ear several weeks prior to him being placed in
Kimberly's care.”

Due to the short visitation that Kimberlv had with the children during their spring break
she is aware that these children are not okay. All of their fears and behaviors that were
exhibited and provided 1o this Court when Kimberly was finally able to obtain assistance
from law enforcement and reirieve the two oldest children were obvious during her
visitation. Unfortunately. the children are not willing. or allowed. to discuss their concerns;
they are not allowed to be themselves and it is apparent that there is absolutely something
being hidden. Kimberly viewed marks on Xy Shone. which appeared to be burns — which
caused her grave concern. however. the burns or injury were on his body and the entire time
that he spent with Kimberly he refused to remove his coat. therefore. she was not able to
take photographs and when she tried to get Xy Shone to speak to her he completely shut
down and refused. There is something going on and her concerns stem back to prior
conversations she had with both older children when they alleged abusc and informed her
that they would get in trouble if their mom knew they were telling her things. She and
XyShone have always had a very. very close relationship as she has been his primary

caretaker and has provided the only stability he knows throughout his life. They were

counsel only used the relevant texts to the issues discussed in this Opposition.

* See Exhibit D (Notes from the doctor’s visit for Xy Shone’s appointment).
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always inseparable and he always knows that he can discuss anything with his Granny and
she will protect him — as stated in his child interview report. however. this is not at all how
he acted during his visitation .

I'amika made the exchange extremely difficult for Kimberly to the point where she
threatened multiple times that she was not going to allow Kimberly to take the children and
exercise her visitation. All of this was stated at the police station which is the location as
Tamika refuses to provide her address to this Court. or Kimberly — despite it being a
requirement of this Court. Since retaining Mr. McGanon. Tamika is using his address as
a shield to attempt to keep her from providing the actual address the children are residing.
Mr. McGanon has never filed a Notice of Change of Address on her behalf and when
Kimberly requested. informally. to be provided it. Mr. McGanon will only provide his

office address.

3. BriefRecitation of the Issues that Kimberty Is Aware that Amount to Abuse
and/or Neglect

*  Tamika leaves the children alone with her sister. Talisha Jones. who in 2016 was in
a tight with Tamika, leaving her severely beaten and was arrested for the incident.

*  Approximately a year ago. Xy Shone was allowed to pay in a dangerous
environment when he was at Talisha Jones™ home and fell from the roof. with no
medical care or treatment for his injuries causing damage that resulted in his
needing physical therapy.

17
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Upon information and beliet. Kimberly does not believe that Tamika regularly uses
a car seat for Xionne., who is two years old. or a booster seat for Xaia. who is six
years old.

Lack of ability to provide food for the children in which the children’s schoot sent
food home when the children informed someone that they had no food at home.
This has caused both Xy Shone and Xaia to hide food: and exhibit meal anxiety
where they appear to not be able to get enough food to ¢at.

Lack of ability to provide stable housing for herself and the children. After
abducting the children a year ago. Tamika moved between hotels and from house
to house. sleeping on sofas. One of the places they stayed at was overrun by bugs
for a short time. To the best of Kimberly's knowledge. Tamika has still not secured
a stable home.

The children reported beatings by Talisha Jones. their aunt. with a switch and
informed Kimberly that the scars on Xy Shones hip and Xaia's knccs werc caused
by the beatings.

Both Xaia and Xy Shone reported a bearting by their maternal grandmother and
Tamika related to a missing jacket which was later found in the laundry. The
children discussed the severity of this incident and described hearing Xaia shrieking

and screaming with their therapist.

* Diagnoses by the therapist of each child based on the behaviors they were exhibiting
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such as Xy Shone's major changes in behavior. i.e. withdrawn. avoiding coping
mechanisms. sleep issues (both trouble falling asleep and stying asleep: and severe
nightmares).

Xy'Shone's last report card trom Ferndale Elementary School stated that he does
not express himself in his art. Prior to this. expressing himself through his art was
his coping therapy. This should have alerted Tamika that something was wrong
with him and caused her to immediately intervene and get him the help he needs.

The children are left in the care of Xy Shone who has to walk Xaia home from

school through a neighborhood with safety issues.

Kimberly believes that the following instances would be classified as emotional abuse:

*

Xionne. at two to three years old. should be able to articulate between 500 and 900

words and speak in sentences, however. he barely says any words at all.

*

*

*

*

Alienation of the affection from great grandparents: grandmother: and other
extended paternal family members.

Repeatedly telling Xy Shone that he doesn’t have a brain.

Telling the children that she should put them up for adoption.

Brainwashing and manipulating the children by making them to make false
statements such as Xy Shone lying about Kimberly trying to kill him: coupled with
extended maternal family members making untrue statements to the children about

their paternal family in order to alienate affection toward the tamily.
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*  Immediately removing all of the children’s toys when they returned from Nevada.
which included their Christmas and birthday gifts because their grandmother did not
want them in her house.

* Refusing to improve Xy Shone’s self image by taking him to a dentist to reduce his
self consciousness about his teeth. When he was in Nevada. Kimberly bought him
a teeth whilening set which Tamika threw away immediately upon his return to her
custody.

4. TIssues with Spring Break Visitation

On. or about. March 22. Tamika started raising issues and making excuses about
potentially not releasing the children to Kimberly for her spring break visitation which was
ordered to begin on March 26. Among these excuses. Tamika was making very
unreasonable demands such as that Kimberly was required to provide Tamika a list of each
and every person the children may possibly encounter or spend time with during her
visitation. along with their contact information, She also began demanding a list ofa daily
schedule listing everything Kimberly intended to do with the children. and a detailed list
of each and every place Kimberly intended to take the children with addresses.

This is not what the Court ordered. Kimberly complied with the Court’s orders and

provided Tamika the information she was ordered to provide but refused to her
unreasonable demands. Tamika was so demanding that in order to resolve some of the

issue. Kimberly just agreed to spend her week visiting the children in Detroit.
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When they arrived at the police station. Tamika caused a scene and informed her that
unless Kimberly acquiesced with the demands. as stated above. Tamika was not going to
release the children. This caused a scene and was extremely unhealthy for the children,
which did not atfect 1amika.

Ultimately Kimberly left the police station with all three children to begin what she
helieved would be a much different spring break. Most noticeable. and concerning, was
Xy*Shone. as he refused to speak with Kimberly or be alone with her during the visit. He
wore a coat and refused to take it off - he sleptin it. Kimberly could not get him to remove
his coat at any time that week. After finally getting Xy Shone to remove one arm from his
coat. she remarked about a burn scar on his right forearm. immediatelv thereafter his arm
was put back in the sleeve of his coat and he refused the rest of the visit to remove his coat.

Also concerning was Xionne. who is two years old. and Kimberly has not seen for
almost a year and a half, as he was not as verbal as expected. He only made grunting noises
and pointed instead of speaking words. Kimberly focused a lot of her attention to working
with him during the week and there was arapid increase in his vocabulary during that time.
This was shocking to Kimberly after raising Xy Shone and Xaia and remembering
Xv'Shone being able to read at three years old and that Xaia was counting and knew her
alphabet by the time she was two years old. This breaks Kimberly's heart as she is well
aware that no one is spending time and working with this child. in Tamika’s care.

During the visit Kimberly became alarmed when Xaia said she sleeps with Big
21
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Xv'Shone and another male cousin. She would not provide any additional information as
to who the male is or his age.

At the end of the visit. Tamika sent a girl to pick up the children. When they saw her
the children seemed very uneasy big and Kimberly realized it was Talisha Jones. Tamika's
sister whom the kids accused of beating them.

Since the children returned to Michigan in January. Kimberly's calls have not occurred
as they are supposed to, if they occur at all. Tamika has prohibited Kimberly or her parents
from speaking with the children and many times when they are allowed to speak to her it
may be one or two — never all three. Many of the calls are 60 to 90 seconds and Tamika
hangs up or disconnects the call. Kimberly has kept records of each call. or a log that the
call did not occur. or the excuse Tamika had for not allowing the call to occur.”

This Opposition follows.

IV. OPPOSITION

A. Kimberly is Requesting that if Trial Is Continued She Be Awarded
Temporary Physical Custody of the Minor Children

Counsel docs not dispute that the Court can grant a Motion to Continue a Trial — for

good cause. Here. however. based on Kimberly's concerns for the safety and well being

of the minor children she is opposed to any continuance — for months on end. This trial

was set months ago and she questions the reason that Mr. McGowan waited until the last

® See Exhibit E (Call Logs).
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several weeks to request this continuance. as she believes he knew that by waiting it would
most certainly cause an additional six. or more, month delay to these proceedings.

The main concern for Kimberly is the safety and well being of her grandchildren and
for this Court. to hear the evidence that will be produced at trial to make the determination
of whether remaining in the custody of Tamika is detrimental.

Al this time. if this Court is going to grant Mr. McGowan's request to continue this
trial, Kimberly is requesting that based on the information that is now before this Court. it
award her temporary custody of the minor children. As the children will be on their
summer break. and it is clear from Xy Shone's interview that he wants to live with
Kimberly. that she be awarded temporary custody to ensure that the safety and protection
of these children is maintained.

Kimberly is requesting that if the Court does not have a full day trial. however. can find
two half days to hear this matter. prior to the start of school. that the trial be briefly
continued.

V. COUNTERMOTION
A. This Court Should Grant Kimberly’s Request For Custody

This Court has the ability to make orders at any time. under NRS 125C.0045(1) which
states:

NRS 125C.0045(1):

1. In any action for determining the custody of a minor child. the court may.
except as otherwise provided in this section and NRS 125C.0601 to 125C.0693.
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inclusive. and chapter 130 of NRS:

(a) During the pendency of the action. at the final hearing or at any time
thereafter. during the minority of the child. make such an order for the custody. care.
education, maintenance and support of the minor child as appears in his or her best
interest;

[Emphasis Added].

Based on this. this Court can. and should. grant Kimberly's request to temporarily
modify the current custodial orders to award her primary physical custody of the minor
children pending the evidentiary hearing.

The Court should Order that Kimberly and Tarnika share joint legal custody. however.
if the children need medical care and therapy that Kimberly be allowed to continue to
obtain it in order to meet the children’s needs. as that is in their best interest.

While Kimberly is aware that parents have a fundamental right in the care and custody
of their children’. she is also aware that if the district court finds that the parent is unfit or
that there are other extraordinary circumstances that result in serious detriment to the child,
it can award custody to a third party.®

Kimberly is well awarc that it is her burden to overcome the parental presumption.
however. in this case she believes she can prevail.

Before awarding custody — legal or physical — to a nonparent. the district court must

find that awarding custody to the parent would be detrimental to the child and the award

TNRS 126.036(1). See also Rico v Rodriguez. 121 Nev. 695. 704. 120 P.3d 812, 818
(2005).

8 I~y Bennum, 111 Nev. 35, 38. 888 P.2d 438. 440 (1995).: NRS 128.018: Locklin v
Locklin. 112 Nev. At 1495-96, 929 P.2d at 934.
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to a nonparent is required to serve the best interest of the child.”
In making that decision. the district court must consider any one or combination of the
Locklin factors, as follows:

1) abandonment or persistent neglect of the child by the parent. Tamika has
been in and out of these children’s lives for significant periods of time and
Kimberly previously provided this Court a list of issues that have been
ongoing that raise to the level of parental neglect. Kimberly believes that
this Court can find that Tamika has abandoned and neglected these children
throughout their lives.

2) likelihood of serious physical or emotional harm fo the child if placed in
the parent’s custody. Again. Kimberly has provided this Court with
photographic evidence and medical records of the serious physical harm the
children have endured while in Tamika’s care. A child falling off a roof is
serious physical harm: beatings with a switch is serious physical harm, and
even if Tamika did not beat the children herself. it is happening by her agent
and the third party she is leaving the children in the care of while they are in
her physical custody: and the scars that the children have [rom prior physical
abuse thev have endured. Kimberly has proof that both Xy Shone and Xania
have been diagnosed with mental health disorders and need therapy based on
the trauma and emotional harm that has been caused while living in Tamika's
custody.

3} extended unjustifiable absence of parental custody. Here Tamika left these
children with both Kimberly and Christopher for significant periods of time.

4y continuing neglect or abdication of parental responsibilities. Tamika has
never been able to provide the children stability and if it has not already been
shown it will be shown that Kimberly has had to take on the parental
responsibilities for the children. Kimberly is the one who worked with the
older two to teach them their alphabet and how to read: Kimberly has made
sure that they are getting an education: Kimberly makes sure that they have
food. clothing. and shelter. On the other hand. Tarnika has never been able
to provide a home for the children - her history speaks for itself she moves
from one short term housing to the next: she stays with family or friends in

NRS 125C.004 1.
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small units that are not large enough to house the amount of people residing
in them: she has had the children living in bug infested units: the school has
had to provide food for the children because Tamika is incapable of doing
this for her children; Tamika has not been able to maintain steady
employment; and she absolutely has not shown that she can take care of their
medical needs.

5) provision of the child’s physical, emotional and other needs by persons

6)

7)

8)

other than the parent over a significant period of time. Here. Kimberly has
taken care of the children’s needs since their birth. She has. for years,
provided for Tamika's needs as well.

the existence of a bonded relationship between the child and the nonparent
custodian sufficient to cause significant emotional harm to the childin the
event of a change in custody. All three of these children have a bond with
Kimberly, the youngest does not have as strong of a bond due to being
withheld from contact with Kimberly for almost 18 months. however. she is
well aware that the love and support she can provide him will quickly grow
into a very strong bond. Kimberly and Xy’ Shone are very close. although the
last visit was somewhat strained. Kimberly believes that it is more than
Xy'Shone is not getting the emotional help that he needs. She also has
concerns that Xy*Shone shared information with her knowing that she would
protect him and unfortunately. atter the information was provided to Tamika
through these proceedings. and shared with her family members. that
Xy'Shone may have incurred some beatings. There is no other explanation
for the drastic change in his behavior in a very short period of time. The
interview which was just a few weeks before the spring break visit was clear
that Xy Shone wants to reside with Kimberly in Las Vegas. Kimberly is
questioning what Xy Shone was told would happen if he spoke to Kimberly
or took his coat off and any injury would have been more exposed.

age of the child during the period when his or her care is provided by a
non-parent. Kimberly provided care for these children for the majority of
their lives.

the child’s well being has been substantially enhanced under the care of
the nonparent. Here, Kimberly has absolutely substantially enhanced the
children's well being under her care. As stated previously Kimberly is the
only one who can provide for the children housing. food. clothing. medical.
dental. therapy. and anything else they need or will need in the future.

26
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9) the extent of the parent’s delay in seeing to acquire custody of the child.
Tamika did not file for custody of the children until after her plot to open a
criminal investigation against Kimberly or Christopher failed. Then she
requested full custody of the minor children. which she lost.

10)

11

12)

13)

In determining that the placement of the children in Kimberly's custody. the Court must

the demonstrated quality of the parent’s commitment 1o raising the
child, Tamika has never demonstrated any such quality.

the likely degree of stability and security in the child’s future with the
parent. There is. realistically. no degree of stability and security in any
of the children’s future il they are left in Tamika's custody.

the extent to which the child’s right to an education would be impaired
while in the custody of the parent. Tamika did enroll the children in
public school. however, as stated through pleadings and in the children’s
interview., Kimberly can provide the children a better educational
experience. Kimberly further has concerns after spending spring break
with the baby. that Tamika has no skills with which to ensure that the
children’s educational needs are met or that she will push the children to
excel in their educational experience.

any other circumstances that would substantially and adversely impact
the welfare of the child. Here. Kimberly believes that she has shown the
Court through the examples that she previously provided the multitude
of ways that the children’s welfare has been substantially and adversely
impacted in Tamika's custody.

look at the factors in NRS 125C.0035(4) as follows:

() The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity to form
an intelligent preference as to his custody. The only child who was of a sufficient
age and capacity to form a preference as to his custody was Xy Shone. who clearly
wants to be raised by Kimberly. Although he wants to spend time with Tamika he
is well aware that it is in his best interest to be placed in Kimberly's custody.
Xy Shone was very clear in the amount of time he wants to spend with everyone
based on the circumstances that each party has provided him throughout his life.

(b) Any nomination by a parent of guardian for the child. Bascd on the history.
Kimberly nominates herself.
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(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent associations
and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. Here. Tamika has
shown that she has no problem withholding these children for extended periods of
fime and not complying with Court orders to ensure that the children’s relationship
with Kimberly is maintained.

(d) The level of conflict between the parents. There is an increased level of conflict
between Kimberly and Tamika. that was not always present. Kimberly docs not see
this improving if Tamika maintains custody of the children.

(¢) The ability of the parents to cooperate (o meet the needs of the child. Kimberly
is the only party who has ever met the needs of the children.

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. It does not appear that either
party has mental or physical health issues.

(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. These children
all exhibit emotional needs. Kimberly is also concerned that the baby is undergoing
developmental needs as well.

(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. The children are
very close and well bonded with Kimberly. 1t is believed that the children love
Tamika because of her being their mom. however. they do not trust her the way that
they trust Kimberly. They do not have the same open relationship with Tamika and
they have a safety and security with Kimberly that they do not share with Tamika.

(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. The
children should all remain together.

(i} Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of the child.
Kimberly believes that the children are physically and emotionally abused by
Tamika. as well as being severely neglected when they are in her custody.

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has engaged in an
act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or any other
person residing with the child. Tamika and her sister were involved in a domestic
violence relationship where a beating and arrest occurred a few vears ago.

() Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has committed any act
of abduction against the child or any other child. Kimberly still belicves that at the
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time Tamika fled to Michigan. it was the form of an abduction and that, at that time.

Christopher was unaware. This was also the second time that Tamika fled Nevada and

abducted the children to Michigan.

Kimberly believes that this Court will find that almost every factor weighs in her favor
and that it is in the best interest of this Court to grant her custody of the minor children.

As stated previously. Kimberly is requesting that if the Court docs not agree with her.

that she is granted permission to re-open her guardianship action.

B. Tamika Should be Found in Contempt of Her Refusal to Comply With
Kimberly’s Ordered Phone Contact

In the Order from the February 24. 2021. hearing. entered March 29. 2021. Kimberly
was awarded phone contact with the minor children on Tuesday and Thursday evenings.
at 6:00 pm. or 6:30 p.m.. at Page 2. lines 15-18.

The last for Kimberly’s contact with the minor children, filed January 25, 2022,
also awarded her temporary telephone contact with the minor children on Tuesday
and Thursday evenings at 6:30 p.m., Michigan time, at Page 3, lines 17-19.

Since the children were returned to Tamika's custody. through April 26. Kimberly has
had difficulty with compliance of this Order. There have been eight calls that have not
occurred on the following days: February 8. 2022: March 1: March 3: March 8: March 15:
March 24: April 5: and April 26.

Many of the other calls are limited to only speaking to one or two children and the

duration is normally 60 or 90 seconds before Tamika terminates the call.
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Not only is this behavior and the games Tamika is plaving harmful to Kimberly. it is
causing emotional damage to the children. The children want to keep and maintain their
relationship and bond with Kimberly. yet Tamika interferes and makes every attempt o
terminate 1t.

Nevada Civil Practice Manual §2732:

Contempt and arrest. Disobedience of an order of the master or court in
supplementary proceedings is contempt.

NRS 22.010:

Acts or omissions continuting contempts. The following acts or omissions shall be
deemed contempts:

3. Disobedience or resistance to any lawful writ. order. rule or process issued by the
court or judge at chambers.

NRS 22.100 Penalty for contempt.
2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 22.110. if'a person is found guilty of
contempt, a fine may be imposed on the person not exceeding $500 or the person

may be imprisoned not exceeding 25 days. or both.

3. In addition to the penalties provided in subsection 2. if a person is found
guilty of contempt pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS22.010. the court may require the
person to pay to the party seeking to enforce the writ. order. rule or process the
reasonable expenses. including. without Himitation. attorney s fees. incurred by the
party as a result of the contempt.

This Court previously stated that if Tamika continued to disobey it’s Orders it would

issue another pickup Order. that is what Kimberly is requesting in lieu of other sanctions.

however. if the Court is not inclined to issue a pick up Order. Kimberly is requesting that
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this Court sanction Tamika appropriately. by awarding Kimberly a fine of $500 per count
of contempt Tamika is found guilty of. and/or an award of attorney’s fees for having her
Orders violated once again.
C. Kimberly Should Be Awarded Attorney’s Fees and Costs
This Court has the ability to award attorney’s fees under NRCP 18.010. NRS
22.100. and EDCR 7.60.

With specific reference to Family Law matters. the Supreme Court has recently. re-
adopted “well-known basic elements.” which in addition to hourly time schedules kept by
the attorney. are to be considered in determining the reasonable value of an attorney s
services qualities, commeonly referred to as the Brunzell factors:"

\. The Qualities of the Advocate: his ability. his training. education. expericnce.

professional standing and skill.

2. The Character of the Work to Be Done. its difficulty, its intricacy. its

importance. time and skill required. the responsibility imposed and the prominence

and character of the parties where they affect the importance of the litigation.

3. The Work Actually Performed by the Lawyer. the skill. time and attention given

to the work.

4. The Result: whether the attorney was successtul and what benefits were derived.

Each of these factors should be given consideration. and no one element should

0 peizelt v. Golden Gate National Bank.83 Nev. 395, 349, 455 P.2d 31,33 (1969).

-

31

1031




o]

predominate or be given undue weight. 't Additional guidance is provided by reviewing the
~attorney’s fees” cases most often cited in Family Law.'

The Brunzell factors require counsel to rather immodestly make a representation as to
the “qualities of the advocate.” the character and difficulty of the work performed. and the
work actually performed by the attorney.

Ms. Molnar has practiced primarily family law for the last 17 years and has handled
hundreds of custody. guardianship. and visitation cases.

As to the “character and quality of the work performed,” we believe this Opposition is
adequate. both factually and legally: we have diligently reviewed the applicable law.

explored the relevant facts. and believe that we have properly applied one to the other.

e o e o ok o R oKk
koo ook ok ok

ok ok ok ok ok

W Milier v Wilfong. 121 Nev. 619,119 P.3d 727 (2005).

]2Awmdsof&esmenaﬂwramomaﬁcmncompubmyjnnthnﬂwsmmddﬁm@ﬁonofmeCOmtand
evidence must support the request. Fleicher v. Flotcher. 89 Nev. 540. 516 P.2d 103 (1973). Levy v, Levi. 96 Nev,
902, 620 P.2d 860 (1980). Hyharger v. Hyvbarger, 103 Nev 253, 737 P.2d 889 (1987).
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[fthis Court is inclined to grant Kimberly™s requests. a Memorandum of Tees and Costs
can be submitted.
DATED this 11" day of May. 2022.

Respectfully submitied by
MOLNAR FAMILY [LAW

s/ Kari T. Molnar

KARI T. MOLNAR. [:5Q.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

[189 W, Warm Springs Road. Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

(702) 334-2338

Attorney for Intervenor

)
Tt

1033




a2

L

DECLARATION OF ATTORNEY

1. L Kari T. Molnar. declare that I am competent to testifv to the facts contained in the
preceding filing.

2. 1am the attorney retained to represent Kimberly White. the Intervenor. in this action.

3. 1 have read the preceding filing. and T have personal knowledge of the facts
contained therein. unless stated otherwise. Further, the factual averments contained therein
are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. except those matters based on information
and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

4. The Amended Opposition was filed as the information from the last filed Order
granting Ms. White telephone contact with the minor children was not included in the
Opposition that was filed on May 11.

5 No facts or other information was filed which is why this Declaration of Attorney.
is being filed in lieu of another Declaration from Kimberly White.

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of Nevada (NRS

53.045 and 28 U.S.C. § 1746), that the foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED this 5% day of May. 2022.

vl Skl Vi

KARI T. MOLNAR
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1 HEREBY CERTIFY service of the following Amended Opposition and
Countermotion was electronically served on the 17" - day of May. 2022. pursuant to
NEFCR 9(d). by electronic service through the Eighth Judicial District Court's e-Filing
System (EFS). addressed to the following registered users:
mark/¢ megannoniawoftice.com
jeani'megannenlawoffice.com

efile:d@megannonlawoltice.com
Attorney for Plaintff

tamikaj8092:g gmail.com
Plaintiff

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
| hereby certify that service ol the foregoing Amended Opposition and Countermotion
was served on the 27 day of May. 2022. by U.S. Mail by depositing a true and
correct copy thereof. in the United States Mail. first class mail. postage prepaid. addressed

as follows:

Christopher Judson
8447 Sequoia Grove Ave.
Las Vegas. Nevada 89149

Defendant

/s/ K. Molnar

Emplovee of Molnar Family Law
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Electronically Filed
05/23/2022 4:06 PM

s K tnin

CLERK OF THE COURT

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE. P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: marki@megannonlawoftice.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES,

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C

PLAINTIFF.

V.

DEPT NO.: §

DEFENDANT,

V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR.

)
)
)
)
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON. )
)
}
)
)
)
)

STIPULATION AND ORDER TO CONTINUE JUNE 8, 2022, HEARING

Plaintiff, TAMIKA JONES, by and through her attorney. MARK McGANNON, ESQ., of

the law firm of McGANNON LAW OFFICE and Intervenor, KIMBERLY WHITE by and through

her attorney, KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.. of MOLNAR FAMILY LAW hereby stipulate and agrees

as follows:

i

"

1/

1

IT [S HEREBY AGREED that the Hearing presently set for June 8, 2022, at 9:15 a.m. be




10
11
12

14
15
16
17

19
20
21
22

23
24

25
26
27
28

continued to soonest available date soonest except for the following dates due to conflicts: June 1.
2022 thru June 14, 2022 and July 18, 2022.

DATED this 20" day of May 2022.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C. MOLNAR FAMILY LAW
. o r ,’r ? 1.0
/s/Ma_rkJ. McGamiqn ‘}5 Gt \J V)/&MZMI
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ. KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419 Nevada Bar No. 009869
5550 Painted Mirage Rd.. Suite 320 1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Las Vegas, NV 89149 Henderson, Nevada 89014
Attorney for Plaintiff (702) 534-2558

Attorney for Intervenor

ORDER
IT IS ORDERED that upon stipulation of counsel and good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that the

Hearing currently set for June 8, 2022, at 9:15 a.m. shall be continued to __June 16, 2022

Dated this 23rd day of May, 2022

s [k

_ BDA E94 431D 7634
Respectfully submitted by: Vincent Ochoa

District Court Judge

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

siMark J. McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 003419

5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149

Attorney for Plamnniff
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Stipulation and Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system
to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date; 5/23/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean@megannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
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Electronically Filed
5/23/2022 9:18 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COU

NEO

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: markiemegannonlawotfice.com

“Unbundled” Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C

PLAINTIFF,

v DEPT NO.: §

DEFENDANT,
V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,

)
)
)
;
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, )
)
)
)
)
)
INTERVENOR. )

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

Please take notice that “Stipulation and Order to Continue June 8, 2022, Hearing” in the
above referenced case was duly entered on May 23, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto and
by reference fully incorporated herein and labeled as Exhibit 1.

DATED this 23" day of May, 2022, McGANNON LAW OFFICE P.C,

BY: /f/MarkJ McGannon
MARK J. McGANNON
Nevada State Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vcgas, NV §9149
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Certificate of Service

The undersigned hercby certifics that on the 23" day of May, 2022, a truc and correct
copy of the forcgoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was served to the following at thetr
last known address(cs), facsimile number and/or ecmail/other clectronic means, pursuant to
Eighth Judicial Dustrict Court Administrative Order 14-2, Effcctive June 1, 2014, as
identificd in Rule 9 of the NLE.F.C.R. as having conscnted to clectromic scrvice, I served via

¢-mail or other clectronic means (Wiznet) to the ¢-mail address(cs) of the addressee(s).

ATTORNEY/PARTIES EMAIL
Janice Jacovino info@jacovinolaw.com
Julic Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw@gmail.com
Kristy Young secretaryjvigoreauxlaw@gmail.com

/a/ Thenesa D. Lucians

[R]
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
52312022 4:07 PM

SAO

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE. P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: marki@megannonlawoftice.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES,
PLAINTIFF.

V.

DEFENDANT,

V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,

)
)
)
)
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON. )
)
}
)
)
)
INTERVENOR. )

DEPT NO.: §

Electronically Filed
05/23/2022 4:06 PM

s K tnin

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C

STIPULATION AND ORDER TO CONTINUE JUNE 8, 2022, HEARING

Plaintiff, TAMIKA JONES, by and through her attorney. MARK McGANNON, ESQ., of
the law firm of McGANNON LAW OFFICE and Intervenor, KIMBERLY WHITE by and through

her attorney, KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.. of MOLNAR FAMILY LAW hereby stipulate and agrees

as follows:

IT [S HEREBY AGREED that the Hearing presently set for June 8, 2022, at 9:15 a.m. be

i

"

1/

1
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continued to soonest available date soonest except for the following dates due to conflicts: June 1.
2022 thru June 14, 2022 and July 18, 2022.

DATED this 20" day of May 2022.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C. MOLNAR FAMILY LAW
. o r ,’r ? 1.0
/s/Ma_rkJ. McGamiqn ‘}5 Gt \J V)/&MZMI
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ. KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419 Nevada Bar No. 009869
5550 Painted Mirage Rd.. Suite 320 1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Las Vegas, NV 89149 Henderson, Nevada 89014
Attorney for Plaintiff (702) 534-2558

Attorney for Intervenor

ORDER
IT IS ORDERED that upon stipulation of counsel and good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that the

Hearing currently set for June 8, 2022, at 9:15 a.m. shall be continued to __June 16, 2022

Dated this 23rd day of May, 2022

s [k

_ BDA E94 431D 7634
Respectfully submitted by: Vincent Ochoa

District Court Judge

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

siMark J. McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 003419

5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149

Attorney for Plamnniff
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Stipulation and Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system
to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date; 5/23/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean@megannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
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Electronically Filed
5/31/2022 3:34 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
RPLY w

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
Unbundled Attorney for Plaintift

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES,
PLAINTIFF,

CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
DEPT NO.: S

V.

Hearing Date: June 16, 2022

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, : .
Hearing Time: 10:15 am.

DEFENDANT,

V- ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED: YES

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR.

Tt et et et et et et ettt it et ot

PLAINTIFF'S REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONTINUE
EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND OPPOSITION TQO COUNTERMOTION TO
PROCEED WITH ALLOWING THE INTERVENOR TO REQUEST CUSTODY
OF THE MINOR CHILDREN OR/TO REINSTATE OR RE-OPEN THE
GUARDIANSHIP CASE THAT WAS PREVIOUSLY INITITIATED BY THE
INTERVENOR

COMES NOW, Plaintiff, TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES (“PLAINTIFF”, “MOM” or
“TAMIKA?), by and through her counsel of record, Mark J. McGannen, Esq. of the
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C., appearing in an unbundled capacity, and hereby submits her
Reply to Opposition to Motion to Continue Evidentiary Hearing and Opposition to
Countermotion to Procced with Allowing the Intervenor to request Custody of the Minor
Children or/to Reinstate or Re-Open the Guardianship Case That was previously Initiated by the

Intcrvenor.

FAGE 1
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This Reply and Opposition 1s made and based upon all the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, papers and pleadings on file and oral arguments as allowed at the time of the
hearing.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I.

INTRODUCTION

Unfortunately, this is the case in which Kimberly White (“INTERVENOR” or
“KIMBERLY?™), the obsessed, delusional paternal grandmother, is inappropriately and without
any legal basis seeking full custody of the Minor Children and she is willing to do anything and
everything to get it, including filing specious, vexatious litigation after vexatious litigation and
false applications for temporary protection order prohibiting any and all contact with the Minor
Children from their MOM, who has been the most consistent parent since the day they were
born. Natural Parents have constitutional rights in the care, custody and control of their children
who cannot be taken away from them without extreme detrimental circumstances to the Minor
Children. The Court system was designed to protect parents from individuals such as
KIMBERLY, and TAMIKA respectfully requests that the Court protect her constitutional rights
to her Minor Children.

Il.

ADDITIONAL RECENT PERTINENT FACTS

The procedural facts in this matter have been previously sct forth in detail in Plaintiff’s
Motion to Continue, as such to avoid needless duplication, Plaintitf respectfully requests the

Court thoroughly review the facts set forth therein.
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As the Court 1s aware, prior to the January 2022 hearings, INTERVENOR had never
alleged any type of abuse and/or neglect of the Minor Children by TAMIKA. In fact,
INTERVENOR s pleadings and actions to date sets forth her true intention that were never about
visitation rights, but she disturbingly believes its in Minor Children’s best interest that she be
awarded _Sole Physical Custody of the Minor Children without one 10ta of evidence to support
this absurd claim and has been on a relentless pursuit and 1s willing to do or say anything in
order to get 1it. As of the January 2022 hearings, the Court stated repeatedly that this 1s a
grandparents visitation case and grandmother was granted the ability to intervene as to visitation
and not custody. Importantly, the Court further stated that although it could give custody of a
child to a nonparent if it serves the best interest of the child, however the Court further stated that
“all I am looking for right now is visitation for the grandparents. Obviously, counsel for
grandparent’s is talking move about change in custody, which is a difficult situation under

Nevada law and very hard standard to meet and I do not see any reason for it at this time”

January 20, 2022, Time Stamp [10:43:10]. The Court further stated, “f am not here to terminate
custody of the parents. I wanted an agreement that grandmother was going to get visitation....”
January 20, 2022, Time Stamp [10:27:50]. “I will give the attorney’s one week to provide

visitation under grandparent’s rights, it is not a change of custody case it is just to provide some

limited visitation... ” January 20, 2022, Time Stamp [10:35:30]

During the January 20, 2022 hearing, when it became apparent that the Court was going
to allow the Minor Children to return to their mother so long as INTERVENOR was able to have
out of state visitation, INTERVENOR’s counsel misrepresented to the Court that Minor Children
were now displaying severe anxiety and having nightmares at the thought of going home with

their Mother. The Court then ordered that XYSHONE be referred to Family Mediation Center

FAGE 3
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(FMC) for a child interview that could be done in person or by video conference. Importantly,
the FMC report, following the March 4, 2022, video conference interview did not reveal any
abuse or neglect by their Mother or anxiety or fear of being with Mother.

A. NOTHING NEW

As stated previously, in an effort to keep the Minor Children from returning to Michigan,
INTERVENOR claimed that someone had filed a claim of abuse and neglect with Michigan CPS
and INTERVENOR advised the Nevada Court that Michigan CPS had been in contact with her
and were investigating child neglect and abuse against TAMIKA and requested that she be given
temporary custody of the Minor Children in Nevada. This was also a complete lie as it was
INTERVENOR who was the one who initiated the Michigan CPS claim with false
misrepresentations of abuse, and this was why Michigan CPS was contacting her.
Notwithstanding, the Court denied the request and stated that “if Michigan CPS has concerns,
they shall submit documentation to this Court. The children shall refirn to Michigan unless the
Nevada or Michigan CPS ask the children remain in Nevada”. Importantly, Nevada FMC
mediation, Nevada CPS and Michigan CPS performed and completed in person and at
home inspections and have not substantiated any claims of child abuse or neglect hy
TAMIKA. If they had, it is certain that Michigan CPS would have taken the Minor Children
into custody and/or notified the Nevada court.

There are no new allegations of abuse or neglect of any kind. In fact, in
INTERVENOR’s own Ex Parte Application for and Order Shortening Time filed on April 18,
2022, there 13 not one mention of any “new’ issues as disingenuously stated on page 4 of
INTERVENOR s Opposition that states, “there were additional issues brought to light during

Kimberly’s most recent visitation with the children during their spring break. INTERVENOR is

FAGE 4
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simply vexatiously fabricating and grasping at anything and everything in a desperate attempt to
obtain custody of these Minor Children from their natural mother. Intervenor’s misrepresented
allegations of poor living conditions, inadequate food supply and other outlandish accusations
have all been thoroughly investigated and nothing was observed and/or substantiated by anyone
especially Michigan/Nevada CPS. Furthermore, if INTERVENOR had such concerns of
additional abuse and neglect why did she not contact CPS while she was in Michigan for her
most recent visitation? Why because there is absolutely no basis to her contrived lies for which
she should be sanctioned!

INTERVENOR is now simply grasping at straws and throwing anything against the wall
to see it it will stick. For example, INTERVENOR now claims that she 1s being denied adequate
phone contact hoping that if she is believed TAMIKA will be punished by the Court, however
she provides no actual evidence of any such “missed” phone contact except her self-prepared
phone log without any verification of authenticity. The truth is that it has been INTERVENOR
that has deliberately missed her scheduled calls on numerous occasions or called outside the
scheduled call times or had her mother call instead in attempt to make it appear that it is
TAMIKA that is violating the Courts Orders regarding the schedule phone calls. With the
exception of TAMIKA being hospitalized briefly, any missed calls were given make up calls.
This is simply another attempt to misrepresent the facts and portray TAMIKA in a negative light
to the Court. INTERVENOR’s argument about allegedly not receiving her telephone calls with
Minor Children is also completely hypocritical given her complete deprivation of telephonic
access to TAMIKA while the Minor Children were in INTERVENOR s care! As the Court will
recall, INTERVENOR cut off all communication with TAMIKA and the Minor Children for

nearly 60 days and then filed a fraudulent TPO (Case No.T-21-219814-T}) against TAMIKA

FAGE 5
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simply because TAMIKA was attempting to contact her Minor Children. TAMIKA was forced
to file a Motion to Dissolve the TPO which was granted on the basis that a mother attempting to
contact her children is not considered harassment.

Additionally, INTERVENOR never even mentions it in her April 18, 2022, Ex Parte
Application for and Order Shortening Time. INTERVENOR has never contacted TAMIKA’s
counsel either through her counsel or herself when self-represented and communicated there
were calls being missed. The fact is INTERVENOR, by her own choice began calling at
undesignated times, had other tamily members calling at different times and tailed to call at all.
B. GUARDIANSHIP

As with everything that INTERVENOR has filed with this Honorable Court her
Countermotion is again littered with complete fabrication and misrepresentation of the facts. As
INTERVENOR states 1n her Countermotion, there was a Guardianship filed by INTERVENOR
on January 23, 2022, and that 1s accurate; however, it was voluntarily dismissed by the
Intervenor/Petitioner only one day after it was filed and not dismissed due to lack of service as
disingenuously misrepresented to the Court and to which they are now asking for the case to be
reopened.

C. INTERVENOR CLAIMS SHE DOES NOT WANT CUSTODY

INTERVENOR unabashedly misrepresents during the Januvary 21, 2022, hearing that she
15 not seeking to take custody of the Minor Children Time Stamp [2:21:58] “I'm not worried
about the visitation or anything I completely agree with that. I never wanted custody of the kids
that is why I helped Christopher and Tamika a hundred percent, anything [ could do to gef them

stable on their feet. Idon’t want custody of the kids. From day one all I have asked you for is

Justvisitation. However, over the last week what came to light with the therapist is there's been
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some issues with phvsical abuse and neglect and now CPS in Michigan is calling me telling me
there is problems with the two kids that are here and a problem with the child that is there. I am
not quite sure what it is but...”

As can easily be seen from every Court document filed by her since her Motion to
Intervene, in her eyes this entire case is about her wanting custody of the Minor Children at all
costs even if it 1s to the extreme detriment of the Minor Children!

D. REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE

As stated in TAMIKA's Motion to Continue, TAMIKA’s counsel gave INTERVENOR
as much notice as possible as to his recently discovered conflict. In fact, INTERVENOR was
given over 90 days notice about the contlict; however, like usual, INTERVENOR failed to
respond at all and did not even attempt to work with TAMIKA’s counsel in order to work with
the Court on alternative options that may have been available. Unfortunately, TAMIKA’s
counsel has no control over the Court’s trial availability. However, considering the trial was set
for grandparent visitation only and INTERVENOR was given out of state visitation pending trial
she 1s would not be prejudiced whatsoever by the continuance. In light of the fact, that she
conveniently claims at times that she never wanted custody of the Minor Children in the first
place and CPS has not substantiated any of the allegations that were made previously it seems
reasonable to grant the continuance for that reason alone.

I11.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. OPPOSITION
Plaintiff had valid, good causc rcasons nccessitating the request for continuing the July
evidentiary Hearing which were set forth in her Motion: “Plaintiff’s counsel had notified

INTERVENOR and her counscl over 90 days in advance that Plaintitf’s counscl would be out of
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the country attending a wedding. Additional discovery 1s also needed once the Michigan CPS
report is produced and even more importantly the paternity of the youngest Minor Child,
XIONNE JUDSON needs to be resolved.”

Instead of addressing the reasons given by Plaintiff in her Motion and the cases cited,
INTERVENOR merely attempts to take yet another jab at requesting custody of the Minor
Children who are thriving in Michigan, again without submitting any type of evidence that any
type of abuse or neglect has taken place. Pursuant to Rule 5.503. (a) Every motion, opposition,
countermotion, and reply shall include points and authorities supporting each position asserted.
Points and authorities lacking citation to relevant authority, or consisting of bare citations to
statutes, rules, or case authority, do not comply with this rule. The absence or deficiency of
points and authorities may be construed as an admission that the filing is not meritorious, as
cause for denial of all positions not supported.

Again, there 1s also no prejudice to INTERVENOR in continuing the Evidentiary
Hearing as all the Court set the matter as to only grandparent visitation and at this time
INTERVENOR has been awarded temporary visitation. Thus, Plaintiff’s request for
Continuance of the Evidentiary Hearing in the absence of any authority or argument and for the
valid reasons set forth, should be granted.

B. COUNTERMOTION

1. INTEVENOR’S REQUEST FOR CUSTODY

Importantly, as previously brought to this Court’s attention under well established
Nevada law, INTERVENOR is not entitled to either physical custody. In Nevada usually, only
parents can ask for custody of a child. However, non-parents can apply to the court for visitation

or guardianship of a child.
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As stated by the Nevada Supreme Court in Hudson v. Jones, 122 Nev. 708, 712, 138 P.3d

429, 431-32 (2006):

“In determining the custody of a minor child, ‘the sole consideration of the court is the
best interest of the child.” According to NRS 125.480(3), unless the child’s best interest requires
otherwise, the district court shall award custody in the following order of preference:

(a) To both parents jointly pursuant to NRS 125.490 or to either parent. If the
court does not enter an order awarding joint custody of a child after either parent has
applied for joint custody, the court shall state in its decision the reason for its denial of the
parent's application.

(b} To a person or persons in whose home the child has been living and where the
child has had a wholesome and stable environment.

(¢) To any person related within the third degree of consanguinity to the child whom
the court finds suitable and able to provide proper care and guidance for the child, regardless of
whether the relative resides within this State.

(d) To any other person or persons whom the court finds suitable and able to provide
proper care and guidance for the child.

Further, Nevada’s guardianship statute provides that the parents or either parent of a
minor child, ‘if qualified and suitable, are preferred over all others for appointment as guardian
for the minor.” Interpreting the former version of these two statutes, we have concluded that they|
create ‘a rebuttable presumption that a fit parent is to be preferred over nonparents with
respect to child custody.” We have also stated that *[t]he best interest of the child is usually
served by awarding his custody to a fit parent.’ The so-called parental preference doctrine

recognizes that a parent has a constitutionally protected liberty interest in the care,
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custody, and control of his or her child. Based upon this liberty interest, NRS 125.500(1)

requires that the court ‘make a finding that an award of custody to a parent would be

detrimental to the child and the award to a nonparent is required to serve the best interest

of the child’ before the district court awards custody to a nonparent without the consent of
the parents.” /d. (Emphasis added.)

Importantly, INTERVENOR s initial misrepresentations of parental unfitness (not abuse}
in her motion for Intervention were completely unsupported by any evidence of abuse, neglect,
abandonment and certainly no records of any police or CPS involvement. Moreover, her self-
serving recitation of the things that INTERVENOR provided for the benefit of the Minor
Children were no more than what any other child’s grandparents would do. Counsel for Plaintiff
repeatedly pointed this out to the Court; so low and behold INTERVENOR started attempting to
fabricate a neglect and abuse case against TAMIKA, the natural mother of the Minor Children by
initiating and making false reports to CP’S and the Court. After again previously pleading her

case to the Court in January 2022 for custody, the Court clarified that it “will not terminate

custody of the parents”. Then in a last-ditch effort, KIMBERLY took things even further and

filed a false claim of abuse and neglect with Michigan CPS and advised the Nevada Court that
Michigan CPS had been in contact with her and were investigating child neglect and abuse
against TAMIKA and requested that she be given temporary custody of the Minor Children in
Nevada. The Court denied the request and stated that “if Michigan CPS has concerns, they
shall submit documentation to this Court. The children shall return to Michigan unless the
Nevada or Michigan CPS ask the children remain in Nevada".

Notwithstanding, that neither Michigan nor Las Vegas CPS has made any type of finding

of neglect or abuse, INTERVENOR when she was temporarily granted primary custedy went so
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far as to inappropriately retain the services of a therapist without MOM''s or the Court’s
permission for the sole purpose of attempting to further fabricate an abuse and neglect case
against the natural mother.

Rule 5.305. entitled: Expert testimony and reports. Explicitly states;

(a) No party to an action pending before the court may cause a child who is
subject to the jurisdiction of the court to be examined by a therapist, counselor,
psychologist, or similar professional for the purpose of obtaining an expert opinion for trial
or hearing except upon court order, upon written stipulation of the parties, or pursuant to
the procedure prescribed by the NRCP.

Nevertheless, atter INTERVENOR protested to the Court in January that she never
sought custody of the Minor Children she now spuriously attempts to submit inadmissible
evidence obtained from a therapist without Court or parental permission in blatant contravention
of this Court’s rules. Hence, in this matter, INTERVENOR has her own false unsubstantiated
allegations, the inadmissible false allegations from iappropriately obtained expert, but nothing
from either CPS, FMC or law enforcement investigations! Therefore, there is nothing admissible
in the record that would support removing the Minor Children from their Natural Parent’s
custody under well-established Nevada law.

A district court must hold an evidentiary hearing on a request to modify custodial orders

if the moving party demonstrates “adequate cause.” Arcella v. Arcella, 407 P.3d 341 (Nev.

2017), quoting, Rooney v. Roonev, 109 Nev. 540, 542, 853 P.2d 123, 124 (1993). “*Adequate
cause’ requires something more than allegations which, if proven, might permit inferences
sufficient to establish grounds for a custody change.” “"Adequate cause arises where the moving

party presents a prima facie case” that the requested relief is in the child's best interest. To
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demonstrate a prima facie case, a movant must show that *“(1} the facts alleged in the affidavits
are relevant to the [relief requested]; and (2) the evidence is not merely cumulative or
impeaching.” Rooney, supra, 853 P.2d at 124.

As such her completely unsubstantiated allegations do not even support an evidentiary
hearing on whether she is entitled to any type of custodial rights. Nevada law simply does not
allow a grandparent or other third-party the right to strip the custody rights away from the natural
parents just because they feel they could serve as better parents without substantial evidence of
abuse or neglect or that the natural parents were truly unfit parents! To allow this matter to
proceed further without immediate Court intervention would be a manifest denial of the Natural
Parents rights to liberty and justice while opening up the flood gates for imappropriate third-party
custodial intervention claims! “The United States Supreme Court has recognized several
fundamental interests including the interest of parents in the care, custody, and control of their

children.” Rico v. Rodriguez, 121 Nev. 695, 704 120 P.3d 812, 818 (2005).

Thus, the Court should deny INTERVENOR s Motion for failing to establish adequate
cause. The “new” evidence is cumulative at best and is insufficient to justify an evidentiary
hearing to in essence terminate TAMIKA’s constitutionally protected parental rights, and
INTERVENOR should be severely sanctioned for her continued vexatious attempts, through her
fourth counsel, to steal the Minor Children from their natural mother.

2. INTERVENOR’S REQUEST FOR CONTMEPT

Further in regard to INTERVENOR s Countermotion for Contempt, as the Court is
aware, NRS 22.030 entitled: “Summary punishment of contempt committed in immediate
view and presence of court; affidavit or statement to be filed when contempt committed

outside immediate view and presence of court; disqualification of judge” states in pertinent
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part as follows: 2. If a contempt is not committed in the immediate view and presence of the
court or judge at chambers, an affidavit must be presented to the court or judge of the facts
constituting the contempt, or a statement of the facts by the masters or arbitrators.

Further, Rule 5.510. “Motions and procedure for orders to show cause” states in
pertinent part: (a4} A motion seeking an Order to Show Cause (OSC) for contempt must be
accompanied by a detailed affidavit complying with NRS 22.030(2) that identifies the specific
provisions, pages and lines of the existing order(s) alleged to have been violated, the acts or
omissions constituting the alleged violation, any harm suffered or anticipated, and the need for a
contempt ruling, which should be filed and served as any other motion. (b) The party seeking
the OSC shall submit an ex parte application for issnance of the OSC to the court, accompanied
by a copy of the filed motion for OSC and a copy of the proposed OSC.

The Nevada Supreme Court has clearly indicated that a motion alleging contemptuous
conduct must be supported by a written affidavit detailing contemptuous behavior when the
complained of conduct is not committed in the immediate view and presence of the court or

judge in chambers. Awad v. Wright, 106 Nev. 407, 794 P.2d 713 (1990). With INTERVENOR

having failed to submit a jurisdictional affidavit specifically outlining any of the contempt by
TAMIKA and having failed to cite any specific orders that he 15 alleging have been violated by
page number and line number as required by EDCR 5.510, her present request for contempt is
Jurisdictionally defective and frivolous in nature and should be denied in its entirety.

Thus, pursuant to NRS 22.030 and EDCR 5.510(a), INTERVENOR s lack of

affidavit/declaration is absolutely legally deficient, and INTERVENOR's request should be

PAGE 13

1057




FoO VS T

WO =] ~1 == Lh

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

denied and she should be aggressively sanctioned.'
C. ATTORNEY’S FEES

NRS 125C.250 Attorney’s fees and costs. Except as otherwise provided in NRS
125C.0689, in an action to determine legal custody, physical custody or visitation with respect to
a child, the court may order reasonable fees of counsel and experts and other costs of the
proceeding to be paid in proportions and at times determined by the court.

NRS 18.010 Award of attorney’s fees.

1. The compensation of an attorney and counselor for his or her services 1s governed by
agreement, express or implied, which is not restrained by law.

2. In addition to the cases where an allowance is authorized by specific statute, the court
may make an allowance of attorney’s fees to a prevailing party:

(a) When the prevailing party has not recovered more than $20,000; or

(b) Without regard to the recovery sought, when the court finds that the claim, counterclaim,
cross-claim or third-party complaint or defense of the opposing party was brought or maintained
without reasonable ground or to harass the prevailing party. The court shall liberally construe the
provisions of this paragraph in favor of awarding attorney’s fees in all appropriate situations. It
is the intent of the Legislature that the court award attorney’s fees pursuant to this
paragraph and impose sanctions pursuant to Rule 11 of the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure in all appropriate situations to punish for and deter frivolous or vexatious
claims and defenses because such claims and defenses overburden limited judicial
resources, hinder the timely resolution of meritorious claims and increase the costs of
engaging in business and providing professional services to the public.

3. In awarding attorney’s fees, the court may pronounce its decision on the fees at the
conclusion of the trial or special proceeding without written motion and with or without
presentation of additional evidence.

4. Subsections 2 and 3 do not apply to any action arising out of a written instrument or
agreement which entitles the prevailing party to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees.
(Emphasis added.)

NRS 7.085 entitled: "Payment of additional costs, expenses and attorney’s fees by
attorney who files, maintains or defends certain civil actions or extends civil actions in certain
circumstances” states:

1. If a court finds that an attorncy has:
(a) Filed, maintained or defended a civil action or proceeding in any court in this State and
such action or defense is not well-grounded in fact or is not warranted by existing law or by an|

1 At trial on whether INTERVENOR should be allowed grandparent visitation rights, Plaintiff

will introduce evidence on the complete deprivation of telephonic access TAMIKA was
maliciously allowed with her Minor Children while in INTERVENOR’s care!
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argument for changing the existing law that 18 made in good faith; or

(b) Unreasonably and vexatiously extended a civil action or proceeding before any court inl
this State, the court shall require the attorney personally to pay the additional costs, expenses and
attorney’s fees reasonably incurred because of such conduct.

2. The court shall liberally construe the provisions of this section in favor of awarding costs,
expenses and attorney’s fees in all appropriate situations. It is the intent of the Legislature that the
court award costs, expenses and attorney’s fees pursuant to this section and impose sanctions
pursuant to Rule 11 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure in all appropriate situations to punish
tor and deter frivolous or vexatious claims and defenses because such claims and defenses
overburden limited judicial resources, hinder the timely resolution of meritorious claims and
increase the costs of engaging in business and providing professional services to the public.
(Emphasis added.)

Importantly, EDCR Rule 7.60. entitled: “Sanctions” states:

(a) If without just excuse or because of failure to give reasonable attention to the matter, no
appearance 18 made on behalf of a party on the call of a calendar, at the time set for the hearing
of any matter, at a pre-trial conference, or on the date of trial, the court may order any one or

more of the following:

(1) Payment by the delinquent attorney or party of costs, in such amount as the court
may fix, to the clerk or to the adverse party.

(2) Payment by the delinquent attorney or party of the reasonable expenses, including
attorney’s fees, to any aggrieved party.

(3) Dismissal of the complaint, cross-claim, counter-claim or motion or the striking of
the answer and entry of judgment by default, or the granting of the motion.

(4) Any other action it deems appropriate, including, without limitation, imposition of
fines.

(b) The court may, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, impose upon an attorney or a
party any and all sanctions which may, under the facts of the case, be reasonable, including the

imposition of fines, costs or attorney’s fees when an attorney or a party without just cause:

(1) Presents to the court a motion or an opposition to a motion which is obviously
frivolous, unnecessary or unwarranted.

(2) Fails to preparc for a prescentation.

(3) So multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs unreasonably and
vexatiously.

(4) Fails or refuses to comply with these rules.

-
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(5) Fails or refuses to comply with any order of a judge of the court.

As set forth in EDCR 7.60, NRS 7.085, NRS 18.010 and NRS 125.250, this Court has
discretion to award attorney’s fees for the cost and expense of Plaintiff having to defend and
prosecute vexatious allegations, and fraudulent misrepresentations and contemptuous behavior
with the Court. Based on the above egregious facts, it is requested that the INTERVENOR be
ordered to pay attorney’s fees for the cost and expense of having to respond to this matter with
the Court.

IV.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, it is in the best interest of the Minor Children that the INTERVENOR s
malicious Motion be denied in its entirety, including Plaintiff be awarded all of her attorney’s
fees and INTERVENOR be severely sanctioned for her continued vexatious attempts to
inappropriately take away her constitutionally protected parental rights. Further, Plaintiff’s
Motion to Continue the Evidentiary Hearing on grandparent rights should be continued until the
Court’s next open trial date.

Dated this 31* day of May 2022.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

BY: s/ Mark J McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON
Nevada State Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vcgas, NV §9149
Ph.: (702)888-6606
Attorneys for Defendant

PAGE 16

1060




FoO VS T

WO =] ~1 == Lh

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

IHEREBY CERTIFY that [ am an employee of the law office of McGANNON LAW

OFFICE, P.C. that service of the foregoing PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO

MOTION TO CONTINUE EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND OPPOSITION TO

COUNTERMOTION TO PROCEED WITH ALLOWING THE INTERVENOR TO REQUEST

CUSTODY OF THE MINOR CHILDREN OR/TO REINSTATE OR RE-OPEN THE

GUARDIANSHIP CASE THAT WAS PREVIOUSLY INITITIATED BY THE INTERVENOR

was made on this 1% day of June 2022, pursuant to EDCR 8.05, by electronic service via the

Court’s E-Filing System, or if not on the service list by depositing the same in the United States

Mail 1n Las Vegas, Nevada, postage paid addressed as follows:

ATTORNEY/PARTIES

EMAIL

KARIT. MOLNAR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

{702) 534-2558

Attorney for Intervenor

Email: karigmo_narfamiZylaw.cor

Christopher Judson

1309 N 22" Street #3

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Defendant

s/ Mark J. McGannon

An cmployce or agent of
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
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Electronically Filed
9/M14/2022 7:28 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
MOT ,

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

KARI T. MOLNAR., ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 8%0] 4

(702) 534-2558; FAX (702) 964-1373
Attorney for Zpinvampy

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES. CASE NO: D-19-594413-C
Plaintift, DEPT. NO:S
VS,
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant, DATL OF
HEARING:
VS, TIME OF No
] HEARING: appearance
KIMBERLY WIITE,
Intervenor.
ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED: Yes No X _

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS MOTION WITH THE CLERK
OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN
FOURTEEN ¢13) DAYS OF YOUR RECETPT OF THIS MOTION. FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN
RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN FOURTERN (14) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF
THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTLED BY TIHE COURT
WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO TIIE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE,

MOTION TO WITHDRAW AS ATTORNEY OF RECORD
Kari T. Molnar. Esq., attorney for the Intervenor, Kimberly White, petitions

1
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A

this Honorable Court for an Order permitting her to withdraw as counsel of record
on the grounds set torth in the attached Declaration, the Memorandum of Points

and Authorities, pleadings, papers, and documents on file herein.

NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: TAMIKA JONES, PlaintifT;
TO: MARK MCGANNON. ESQ.:
TO: CHRISTOPHER JUDSON, Defendant; and
TO: KIMBERLY WHITE, Intervenor.
YOU AND EACH OF YOU will please take notice that the foregoing Motion
will be heard in the Family Courts & Services Center, 601 N. Pecos, Las Vegas,

Nevada 89101, onthe _ dayof .2022 atthe hourof  o'clock

__.M. during this Court’s chambers calendar, and. therefore, no appearance is

necessary at the hearing.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. FACTS

The Intervenor, Kimberly White, notified counsel to stop all work on the case,
therefore, counsel ensured that the outstanding order from the June hearing was
submitted to this Court for review and signature. The Plaintiff’s counsel submitted
a competing order. and both orders are currently under review.

At this time, there is nothing outstanding during the time counsel represented
Ms. White and based on Ms. White's direction, counsel is prohibitted from
continuing any work on this matter and an Order trom this Court is necessary.

[I. GOVERNING LAW AND ARGUMENT

Pursuant to Nevada Supreme Court Rule 46:

|
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The attorney in an action or special proceeding may be changed at any
time before judgment or final determination as follows:

1. Upon consent of the attorney, approved by the client.
2. Upon the order of the court or f'_uclge thereol on the
application of the attorney or the client.

[Emphasis added.]

At this time, counsel cannot represent Ms. White further in this matter and she
respectfully asks this Court to grant the motion o withdraw from this case.

Ms. White's last known address is 10461 Hartford Hills Avenue. Las Vegas,
Nevada 89166, her email address is kwhite writer@hotmail.com. and her phone

number is (702) 534-9692.

M. CONCLUSION

Because Ms. White has directed counsel to do no further work on her case, the
Order granting withdrawal is necessary.

DATED this l‘;f‘h day of September. 2022.

’ 2.
J< wid ) /E/@/fﬁm
KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869
1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Ste 110
[Tenderson, Nevada 89014
(702) 534-2558
Attorney for Zafervls &)
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DECILARATION OF ATTORNEY

1. [, Kari T. Molnar, Esq.. declare that | am competent to testily to the facts

contained in the proceeding tiling.

2. I am the attorney of record for the Intervenor. Kimberly White, and I am
duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada.

3. [ have read the preceding filing, and it is true to the best of my
knowledge, except those matters based on information and belief, and as to those
matters, 1 believe them to be true. The factual averments contained in the preceding
filing are incorporated herein as if set forth in tull.

4. Based on Ms. White’s notice to immediately stop working on her case,
counsel needs 10 withdraw.

5. I have read the preceding filing, and it is true to the best of my
knowledge, except those matters based on information and belief, and as to those
matters, [ believe them 1o be true.

6. The factual averments contained in the preceding filing are incorporated
herein as if set forth in full.

l declare under penalty of ged under the laws of the State of

Nevada (NRS 53.045 and 2 . § 1746), that the foregoing is
true and correct.

EXECUTED this 14" day of September. 2022.

{7 /1
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MOFI]
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY.NEVADA

Tamika .fones (_‘asc No_ D-19-584413-C
Plawtitt/Petitioner

v Dept. s

Christopher Judson MOTION/QPPOSITION
Defendant'Respondent FEE INFORMATION SHEET

Natice: Mottons and Oppositions filed alter emey of a finad order 1ssued pursuant lo NRS 125, 1258 or 125C are
subject 10 the reopen filing fee of 23, unless specitically excluded by NRS 19 0312 Addonally. Motions and
Opposttions filed in cases initiated by joint petinon may be subject 1o an addittonal filing fec oM 3129 or S37

aceordance with Senate Bill 358 of the 2015 Lepislatve Session,

Step 1. Select cither the $25 or SO tiling fec in the box below. i
I:I $25 The Motion/Opposition being tiled with this form is subject to the $25 reopen fee.
| {IR-
lS{} The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen

ee because:
I Tlu: Motion/Qpposition is being filed before a Divorce Custody Decree has been
: entered.
i The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support
| established in a final order.
r The Motion/Opposition is [or reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed
! within 10 days after a final judgment or decree was entered. The final order was
|
F

entered on o )
|:| Other Excluded Motion (must specity) - . .

Step 2. Select the 50. 5129 or $57 filing fee in the box below.

iM $0 The Motion/Opposition being (iled with this form is not subject to the $129 or the
S57 fee because:

Thc party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57.
OR-
|:|$129 The Motion being filed with this form is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion
10 modity. adjust or enforce a final erder.

-0OR-
D $57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject 1o the $57 fee because it is
an opposition to a motion to modify. adjust or enforce a final order, or it is a motion
and the opposing party has already paid a fec of $129.

The Motion/Qpposition is being filed in a case that was not mitiated by joint petition. .

v
'
I

Step 3. Add the filing fees from Step 1 and Step 2.
I

wiotal filing

Date 09/14/2022

Party filing Motion/Opposition: K. Molnar

Signature of Purty or Preparer /s! K. Molnar o o
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Electronically Filed
9/14/2022 8:01 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
NOTC Cﬁwj ﬂ»«w

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

KARIT. MOLNAR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Ste. 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014 _

Phone (702) 534-2558; Fax (702) 964-1373
kari@molnarfamilylaw.com

Attorney for Intervenor

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO: D-19-594413-C
Plaintift, DEPT: S
VS,
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant, DATE OF
VS. HEARING:
TIME OF
KIMBERLY WHITE, HEARING:
Intervenor.

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Motion to Withdraw as Attorney
of Record was served on the 14™ day of September, 2022, by U.S. Mail by depositing
a true and correct copy thereof, in the United States Mail, first class mail, postage
prepaid, addressed as follows:
3447 Sequbis Grove Ave.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89149
efendant
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Kimberly White
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89166
ntervenor
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY service of a copy of the Motion to Withdraw as
Attorney of Record was electronically served on the 14™ day of September, 2022,
pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by electronic service through the Eighth Judicial District
Court’s e-Filing System (EFS), addressed to the following registered users:
mark(@mcgannonlawoffice.com
jean@mcgannonlawoffice.com

efile(@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
Plaintiff

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Notice of Appearance was served on the 19
day of April, 2022, by U.S. Mail by depositing a true and correct copy thereof, in the United States

Mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

Christopher Judson
3447 Sequoia Grove Ave,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89149

Defendant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY service of a copy of the Notice of Appearance was electronically
served on the 19" day of April, 2022, pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court’s e-Filing System (EFS), addressed to the following registered users:
marki{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
jean(@megannonlawo{fice.com

cfile@megannonlawofficc.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

tamikai8092 i email.com
Plaintift

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law
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Electronicall

Filed

09/14/2022 8146 AM,_

s

CLERK OF THE

ORDR

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
“Unbundled” Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff,
V. DEPT NO.: S
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, Hearing Date: June 16, 2022
Defendant, Hearing Time: 10:15 am.
KIMBERLY WHITE,
Intervenor.

ORDER FROM THE JUNE 16, 2022. HEARING
The matter came before the Court for PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO CONTINUE

EVIDENTIARY HEARING, and INTERVENOR'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONTINUE
THE EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND COUNTERMOTION FOR THE COURT TO PROCEED
WITH ALLOWING THE INTERVENOR TO REQUEST CUSTODY OF THE MINOR
CHILDREN/OR TO REINSTATE OR RE-OPEN THE GUARDIANSHIP CASE THAT WAS
PREVIOUSLY INITIATED BY THE INTERVENOR on Junc 16, 2022, at 10:15 a.m,, before the
Honorable VINCENT OCHOA in Department S of the above-entitled Court. Plaintiff,
TAMIKA JONES, was prescent with her counsel, MARK T, McGANNON, ESQ. of the
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C., appearing in an unbundled capacity via BlueJeans video
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conferencing, and Intervenor, KIMBERLY WHITE, was also present with her counsel, KARI T.
MOLNAR, ESQ. of the MOLNAR FAMILY LAW, appearing via BlueJeans video
conferencing.

THE COURT CALLED THE CASE: Discussion took place regarding the Summer
Vacation. Attorney Molnar explained that the current visitation with the grandmother is set for
two weeks during the summer. Attorney McGannon stated the Minor Children were residing in
Michigan. Plaintiff veritied her address in Michigan at 21014 Reimanville Avenue, Ferndale,
MI 48220, where she has lived for the last two years.

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon request Paternity tests on all the children
to determine if they are full siblings and discovery. Attorney McGannon stated that the potential
fathers are apparently unwilling to participate. Attorney Molnar addressed the signature on the
Defendant’s Affidavit, stating that it did not resemble his signature from other documents.

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney Molnar request that the Court under Lawrimore and
Hudson grant grandmother temporary custody based on allegations that mom does not provide
adequate care for the minor children, including lack of dental care, medical care, and mental
health care. Attorney Molnar argued that the Child Interview shows that the oldest child wants
to be in grandma’s care and his concerns were for the youngest child that was never sent to
visitation. Attorney Molnar further argued that under NRS 126, the paternity statute, DAD had
60 days to disestablish his paternity, and no alleged father is coming forward to disestablish
paternity. [TIMESTAMP 10:57:00-11:00:20].

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon argue that Intervenor had all of this
evidence before the January Hearing, and that Intervenor had improperly submitted a therapy
report at that time in contravention of EDCR 5.305 and obtained a therapist to give an expert
opinion in this case without any approval of the Court or the parents which is unacceptable; this
is INTERVENOR s biased person’s report. Attorney McGannon further argued that there is no
legitimate evidence to prove those allegations, in addition to a comprehensive FMC interview
and CPS rcport which found cverything unsubstantiated and, therefore, does not necessitate an

evidentiary hearing [TIMESTAMP 11:00:20-11:01:25]. Attorney McGannon argued that it was
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clearly stated in the Michigan CPS report, grandmother instigated by contacting CPS and there

continues to be no evidence of any signs of neglect or abuse. Mr. McGannon argued that this 1s
getting vexatious, it 18 the third time she has attempted to get custody and it cannot be tolerated

as TAMIKA has constitutional rights [TIMESTAMP 11:01:25-11:02:27].

THE COURT CONFIRMED: with Plaintift’s counsel that Father resides in Nevada.
Plaintiff agrees to provide Father’s address to Attorney Mc(Gannon to provide to Attorney
Molnar [TIMESTAMP 11:03:00-11:03:40].

THE COURT NOTED: It is very difficult to change custody from one parent or two
parents, when both parents have agreed that mother should have the children. The Court also
granted INTERVENOR'’S Motion for Intervention as to grandparent rights not as to custody
rights [TIMESTAMP 11:05:09-11:06:00).

THE COURT FURTHER NOTED: It has always looked at this as a grandparent’s
rights case only, and it INTERVENOR thinks it is different that is fine, but the record is that
DAD has agreed that MOM shall have the children and gave permission for her to relocate to
Michigan; Michigan and Nevada has investigated and there have been no substantiation of any
issues 50 INTERVENOR can file her Complaint if she has the grounds [TIMESTAMP 11:06:22-
11:06:55].

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon further argues that there is a large income
disparity between both Parties and his concerns that with Grandmother’s numerous vexatious
attempts to gain custody, when nothing has changed, Plaintiff’s attorney’s fees have become
costly, and the Court should award attorney’s fees and costs if that is what the Court determines
[TIMESTAMP 11:08:00-11:08:25].

THE COURT NOTED: attorney’s fees and sanctions are a possibility. The Court
further advised Plaintiff to contact Southern Nevada Legal Services to see if they would like to
help on the case because of her limited income [TIMESTAMP 11:08:25-11:08:38].

THE COURT FURTHER NOTED: its concerns about whether this Court has
Jurisdiction because MOM and the children reside in Michigan [TIMESTAMP 11:09:00-

11:09:15].

"%
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THE COURT ORDERED:

Court re-confirmed that per the Orders filed and entered on January 25, 2022,
Grandmother/Intervenor shall have her Summer Visitation with the Minor Children from July
11, 2022 until July 25, 2022; Grandmother/Intervenor shall pay for the transportation of the
Mmor Children to and from Las Vegas [TIMESTAMP 10:53:00-10:53:05]; and
Grandmother/Intervenor shall also provide Plaintift with the ticket information, the time, where
she 1s taking the Minor Children, and a telephone number to reach in case of an emergency, the
address, whether she is going to stay in Michigan or come back to Nevada. This 1s all
information mother is entitled to [TIMESTAMP 11:11:30-11:11:55].

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: that Grandmother/Intervenor’s custody request
is DENIED. Grandmother/Intervenor may file a new complaint for custody, explain the reasons,
and the cases will be consolidated.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: that Plaintitf shall provide Defendant’s
address to her attorney, Mr. McGannon, and he shall provide the information to Attorney
Molnar.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Attorney McGannon shall prepare an Order
tor Paternity Test for the three Minor Children, XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20, 2011;
XATA JUDSON born August 13, 2015; and XIONNE JUDSON born May 3, 2019, and should
the Father not be located, Grandmother/Intervenor may be tested.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: The Evidentiary Hearing is reset from July 22,
2022, to February 3, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., and no further continuations shall be permitted.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Discovery may be done. Any discovery issue
will be dealt with the Discovery Commissioner.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: The Return Hearing is also set for February 3,
2023, at 9:00 a.m.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Attorney McGannon shall prepare the order
I
I
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from today's hearing; Attorney Molnar shall review and countersign.

IT IS SO ORDERED

Prepared and Submitted by:

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

/s/ Mark McGannon
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149
Attorney for Plaintiff

Dated this 14th day of September, 2022

/ o Odirer

30B DB2 3E9Q B547
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge

Approved as to form and content:

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

/s/
KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869
1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, NV 89014
Attorney for Intervenor
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CSERY

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 9/14/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com

Jean McGannon jean{wmegannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@megannonlawoffice.com
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MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
Unbundled Attorney for Plaintift

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES,
PLAINTIFF,

CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
DEPT NO.: S

V.

)
)
)
)
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, )
DEFENDANT, ; NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

)

)

)

)

V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR.

Please take notice that an Order from June 16, 2022, Hearing was duly entered in the
above referenced case on the 14" day of September 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto
and by reference fully incorporated herein.

DATED this 14" day of September 2022.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

BY: &/ Mark J McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON
Nevada State Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149
Ph.; (702)888-6606
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of the law office of MCGANNON LAW

OFFICE, P.C. that service of the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was made on

this 14" day of September 2022, pursuant to the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules

(NEFCR}, EDCR 5.206, and EDCR Part VIII, ef seq., by electronic service via the Court’s E-

Filing System, or if not on the service list by depositing the same in the United States Mail in Las

Vegas, Nevada, postage paid addressed as follows:

ATTORNEY/PARTIES

EMAIL

KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite [ 10
Henderson, Nevada 89014

{702) 534-2558

Attorney for Intervenor

Email: kari@molnarfamilylaw.com

Christopher Judson

1309 N 22" Street #3
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Defendant

24 Mark J McGannon

An employee or agent of MCGANNON LAW
OFFICE, P.C.
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
9/14/2022 8:47 AM

Electronicall

Filed

09/14/2022 8146 AM,_

s

CLERK OF THE

ORDR

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
“Unbundled” Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff,
V. DEPT NO.: S
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, Hearing Date: June 16, 2022
Defendant, Hearing Time: 10:15 am.
KIMBERLY WHITE,
Intervenor.

ORDER FROM THE JUNE 16, 2022. HEARING
The matter came before the Court for PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO CONTINUE

EVIDENTIARY HEARING, and INTERVENOR'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONTINUE
THE EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND COUNTERMOTION FOR THE COURT TO PROCEED
WITH ALLOWING THE INTERVENOR TO REQUEST CUSTODY OF THE MINOR
CHILDREN/OR TO REINSTATE OR RE-OPEN THE GUARDIANSHIP CASE THAT WAS
PREVIOUSLY INITIATED BY THE INTERVENOR on Junc 16, 2022, at 10:15 a.m,, before the
Honorable VINCENT OCHOA in Department S of the above-entitled Court. Plaintiff,
TAMIKA JONES, was prescent with her counsel, MARK T, McGANNON, ESQ. of the
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C., appearing in an unbundled capacity via BlueJeans video
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conferencing, and Intervenor, KIMBERLY WHITE, was also present with her counsel, KARI T.
MOLNAR, ESQ. of the MOLNAR FAMILY LAW, appearing via BlueJeans video
conferencing.

THE COURT CALLED THE CASE: Discussion took place regarding the Summer
Vacation. Attorney Molnar explained that the current visitation with the grandmother is set for
two weeks during the summer. Attorney McGannon stated the Minor Children were residing in
Michigan. Plaintiff veritied her address in Michigan at 21014 Reimanville Avenue, Ferndale,
MI 48220, where she has lived for the last two years.

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon request Paternity tests on all the children
to determine if they are full siblings and discovery. Attorney McGannon stated that the potential
fathers are apparently unwilling to participate. Attorney Molnar addressed the signature on the
Defendant’s Affidavit, stating that it did not resemble his signature from other documents.

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney Molnar request that the Court under Lawrimore and
Hudson grant grandmother temporary custody based on allegations that mom does not provide
adequate care for the minor children, including lack of dental care, medical care, and mental
health care. Attorney Molnar argued that the Child Interview shows that the oldest child wants
to be in grandma’s care and his concerns were for the youngest child that was never sent to
visitation. Attorney Molnar further argued that under NRS 126, the paternity statute, DAD had
60 days to disestablish his paternity, and no alleged father is coming forward to disestablish
paternity. [TIMESTAMP 10:57:00-11:00:20].

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon argue that Intervenor had all of this
evidence before the January Hearing, and that Intervenor had improperly submitted a therapy
report at that time in contravention of EDCR 5.305 and obtained a therapist to give an expert
opinion in this case without any approval of the Court or the parents which is unacceptable; this
is INTERVENOR s biased person’s report. Attorney McGannon further argued that there is no
legitimate evidence to prove those allegations, in addition to a comprehensive FMC interview
and CPS rcport which found cverything unsubstantiated and, therefore, does not necessitate an

evidentiary hearing [TIMESTAMP 11:00:20-11:01:25]. Attorney McGannon argued that it was
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clearly stated in the Michigan CPS report, grandmother instigated by contacting CPS and there

continues to be no evidence of any signs of neglect or abuse. Mr. McGannon argued that this 1s
getting vexatious, it 18 the third time she has attempted to get custody and it cannot be tolerated

as TAMIKA has constitutional rights [TIMESTAMP 11:01:25-11:02:27].

THE COURT CONFIRMED: with Plaintift’s counsel that Father resides in Nevada.
Plaintiff agrees to provide Father’s address to Attorney Mc(Gannon to provide to Attorney
Molnar [TIMESTAMP 11:03:00-11:03:40].

THE COURT NOTED: It is very difficult to change custody from one parent or two
parents, when both parents have agreed that mother should have the children. The Court also
granted INTERVENOR'’S Motion for Intervention as to grandparent rights not as to custody
rights [TIMESTAMP 11:05:09-11:06:00).

THE COURT FURTHER NOTED: It has always looked at this as a grandparent’s
rights case only, and it INTERVENOR thinks it is different that is fine, but the record is that
DAD has agreed that MOM shall have the children and gave permission for her to relocate to
Michigan; Michigan and Nevada has investigated and there have been no substantiation of any
issues 50 INTERVENOR can file her Complaint if she has the grounds [TIMESTAMP 11:06:22-
11:06:55].

THE COURT HEARD: Attorney McGannon further argues that there is a large income
disparity between both Parties and his concerns that with Grandmother’s numerous vexatious
attempts to gain custody, when nothing has changed, Plaintiff’s attorney’s fees have become
costly, and the Court should award attorney’s fees and costs if that is what the Court determines
[TIMESTAMP 11:08:00-11:08:25].

THE COURT NOTED: attorney’s fees and sanctions are a possibility. The Court
further advised Plaintiff to contact Southern Nevada Legal Services to see if they would like to
help on the case because of her limited income [TIMESTAMP 11:08:25-11:08:38].

THE COURT FURTHER NOTED: its concerns about whether this Court has
Jurisdiction because MOM and the children reside in Michigan [TIMESTAMP 11:09:00-

11:09:15].

"%

1081




FoO VS T

WO =] ~1 == Lh

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

THE COURT ORDERED:

Court re-confirmed that per the Orders filed and entered on January 25, 2022,
Grandmother/Intervenor shall have her Summer Visitation with the Minor Children from July
11, 2022 until July 25, 2022; Grandmother/Intervenor shall pay for the transportation of the
Mmor Children to and from Las Vegas [TIMESTAMP 10:53:00-10:53:05]; and
Grandmother/Intervenor shall also provide Plaintift with the ticket information, the time, where
she 1s taking the Minor Children, and a telephone number to reach in case of an emergency, the
address, whether she is going to stay in Michigan or come back to Nevada. This 1s all
information mother is entitled to [TIMESTAMP 11:11:30-11:11:55].

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: that Grandmother/Intervenor’s custody request
is DENIED. Grandmother/Intervenor may file a new complaint for custody, explain the reasons,
and the cases will be consolidated.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: that Plaintitf shall provide Defendant’s
address to her attorney, Mr. McGannon, and he shall provide the information to Attorney
Molnar.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Attorney McGannon shall prepare an Order
tor Paternity Test for the three Minor Children, XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20, 2011;
XATA JUDSON born August 13, 2015; and XIONNE JUDSON born May 3, 2019, and should
the Father not be located, Grandmother/Intervenor may be tested.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: The Evidentiary Hearing is reset from July 22,
2022, to February 3, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., and no further continuations shall be permitted.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Discovery may be done. Any discovery issue
will be dealt with the Discovery Commissioner.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: The Return Hearing is also set for February 3,
2023, at 9:00 a.m.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERED: Attorney McGannon shall prepare the order
I
I
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from today's hearing; Attorney Molnar shall review and countersign.

IT IS SO ORDERED

Prepared and Submitted by:

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

/s/ Mark McGannon
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149
Attorney for Plaintiff

Dated this 14th day of September, 2022

/ o Odirer

30B DB2 3E9Q B547
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge

Approved as to form and content:

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

/s/
KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869
1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, NV 89014
Attorney for Intervenor
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 9/14/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com

Jean McGannon jean{wmegannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@megannonlawoffice.com
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Electronically Filed
8/23/2022 3:.37 PM
Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA w ’3,.

E

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff. Case No.: D-19-594413-C
vs.
Christopher Charles Judson, Defendant. Department S

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record in the above-
entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date: November 01, 2022
Time: No Appearance Required

Location: Courtroom 07
Family Courts and Services Center
601 N. Pecos Road
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Cecilia Dixon
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Cecihia Dixon
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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NOTC

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW
KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Ste. 110

Henderson, Nevada 89014

Phone (702) 534-2558; Fax (702) 964-1373

kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Attorney for Intervenor

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES,
Plaintiff,

VS.

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,

Defendant,
VS.
KIMBERLY WHITE,
Intervenor.

Electronically Filed
8/26/2022 7:56 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUE#

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C
DEPT: S

DATE OF 11/01/2022
HEARING:

TIME OF No appearance
HEARING:  required.

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Notice of Hearing of Motion to
Withdraw as Attorney of Record was served on the 26" day of September, 2022, by
U.S. Mail by depositing a true and correct copy thereof, in the United States Mail,

first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

8447 Sequoia Grove Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89149

Christopher Judson

efendant

1086
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Kimberly White
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89166

ntervenor

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY service of a copy of the Notice of Hearing of Motion

to Withdraw as Attorney of Record was electronically served on the 26™ day of

September, 2022, pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by electronic service through the Eighth

Judicial District Court’s e-Filing System (EFS), addressed to the following registered

USCrs.

mark(@mcgannonlawoffice.com

jean@mecgannonlawoffice.com

efile(@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

tamikaj8092 (@ gmail.com
Plaintiff

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Notice of Appearance was served on the 19
day of April, 2022, by U.S. Mail by depositing a true and correct copy thereof, in the United States

Mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

Christopher Judson
3447 Sequoia Grove Ave,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89149

Defendant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY service of a copy of the Notice of Appearance was electronically
served on the 19" day of April, 2022, pursuant to NEFCR 9(d), by electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court’s e-Filing System (EFS), addressed to the following registered users:
mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
jean@mcgannonlawoffice.com

efilet@megannonlawoffice.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

tamikajR092 @ email.com
Plaintift

/s/ K. Molnar

Employee of Molnar Family Law
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ORDER GRANTING WITHDRAWAL
This matter came before the Hon. Vincent Ochoa, Eighth Judicial District

Court. Family Division on Kari T. Molnar’s Esq.. Motion to Withdraw as Attorney

Statistically closed: USJR-FWWithdrawn W/O Judicial Conf/fHearing Close Case

Filed

; 10:19:2022 381 PM,_
CLERK OF '.I'HE QOURT
ORDR
MOLNAR FAMILY LAW
KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869
1489 W. Warm Springs Road. Ste. 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014
Phone (702) 534-2558: Facsimile (702) 964-1373
hari ¢ molnartamily iy .com
Attorney for Intervenor, Kimberly White
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff. DEPT.: S
VS,
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant. DATE OF

HEARING:

TIME OF

HEARING:
Vs,
KIMBERLY WHITE,

Intervenor.

UWOJC)
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of Record.

The Motion was served via U.S. Mail on September 14, 2022 to the Defendant
and Intervenor at their last known address and to Mark McGannon, Esq.. and the
Plaintiff through electronic service on September 14. 2022. The Notice of Hearing
was mailed to the Defendant and Intervenor at their last known addresses on
September 26, 2022, and electronically served on Mr. McGannon and the Plaintift,

There was no Opposition filed by the Plaintiff, Defendant, or the Intervenor,
each of whom was properly served.

NRCP 1 and EDCR 1.10 state that the procedure in district courts shall be
administered to secure efficient, speedy. and inexpensive determinations in every
action. Pursuant to EDCR 2.23 ( c¢), this Court can consider a motion and issue a
decision on the papers at any time without a hearing.

This Court finds that there is good cause to grant the Motion.

ITISHEREBY ORDERED that Kari T. Molnar's. Esq.. Motion to Withdraw

as Attorney of Record for the Intervenor, Kimberly White, is granted.
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(702) 534-9692.

be vacated.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Intervenor can be served at her last

known address at 10461 Hartford Hills Avenue, Las Vegas. Nevada 89166. The

Intervenor's email address is kwhite_writere hounail.eom and her phone number is

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the matter on Chamber's Calendar for 11/01/222 shall

Dated this 19th day of October, 2022

L

Respecttully Submitted by:

j{\s'{-u W 44//’/)//’{/{/1
KART T. MOLNARTESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009869 .
1489 W. Warm Springs Road. Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014
Phone (702) 534-2558
Attorney for Intervenor

709 740 2F96 8D58
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge

‘st
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order to Withdraw as Attorney of Record was served via the court’s
electronic eFile system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as

listed below:

Service Date: 10/19/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark@@mecgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092@gmail.com

Jean McGannon Jean{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staft efile@megannonlawotfice.com
Kimberly White kwhite writer@hotmail.com
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Electronically Filed
10/20/2022 4:18 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
NEO .

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

KARI T. MOLNAR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada §9014

Phone (702) 534-2558; Fax (702) 964-1373
email; kari@molnarfamilylaw.com

Former Attorney of Intervenor

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONLS, CASE NO: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO:S

Vs.

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant, DATE OF

VS. HEARING:

KIMBERLY WHITE, TIME OF
[ntervenor. HEARING:

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

TO: TAMIKA JONES, Plaintiff:
TO: MARK MCGANNON. ESQ.. Attorney for Plaintitt;
TO: CHRISTOPHER JUDSON, Defendant; and
TO: KIMBERLY WHITE, Intervenor.
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Order Granting Withdrawal was duly

entered in the above action on the 19" day of October, 2022, by filing with the

clerk of the court; a true and correct copy is

ok Ak ki ok

o sk R R R
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attached.
DATED this 20™day of October, 2022.

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

A N ﬂﬂf% \,‘J/\/

KARIT. MOLNAR ESQ

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1489 W. Warm Springs Road, Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 89014

(702) 534-2558

Former Attorney for Intervenor
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1 HEREBY CERTIFY service of a copy of the Notice of Entry of Order
and the Order were electronically served on the 20™ day of October. 2022,
pursuant to EDCR 8.05 and NRCP 5(b)2)(D) by serving to the email address(es)

listed on the E-Filing System as follows:

mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com

jean@mcgannonlawotiice.com

ehilef@mcgzannonlawoffice.com

Attorney for Plainuff
tamikaj8092(wgmail.com
Plaintiff
kwhite writer@hotmail.com

Intervenor

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the foregoing Notice of Entry of Order and

Order was served on the 20" day of October, 2022, by U.S. Mail by depositing a true

and correct copy thereof, in the United States Mail, first class mail. postage prepaid,

addressed as follows:

Christopher Judson
8447 Sequoia Grove Ave.
Las Veras, Nevada 89149

efendant

/s/ K. Molnar

An Employee of MOLNAR FAMILY LAW
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
10/19/2022 3:42 PM

Elcctronicallvlialed
FO{19°2022 3.1 PM

CLERK OF THE (JOURT

ORDR

MOLNAR FAMILY LAW

KARI T. MOLNAR. ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009869

1480 W. Warm Springs Road. Ste. 110
Henderson, Nevada 80014

Phone (702) 534-2358: Facsimile (702) 064-1373
bt o molnartamily vy .com

Attorney for Intervenor. Kimberly White

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY GIVISION
CLARK COUN{Y,NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO: D-19-394-413-C
Plaintitf. DEPT. S
Vs.
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES TUDSON.
Defendant. DATE OF
HEARING:
TIME OF
HEARING:
VS,
KIMBERLY WHITE,
Intervenor.

ORDER GRANTING WIi HDRAWAL
This matter came before the Hon, Vincent Ochoa. Eighth Judicial District

Court, Family Division on Kari T. Molna-'s Esq.. Motion 10 Withdraw as Attorney

Case Numbe™ & 19-3044 17 .2
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of Record.

The Motion was served via U.S. Mail on Sepiember 14,2022, 10 the Defendant
and Intervenor at their last known address and ¢ Mark McGannon. Esq.. and the
Plaintiff through electronic service on September 4. 2022, The Notice of Hearing
was mailed to the Defendant and Intervenor a: their last known addresses on
September 26, 2022. and electronically served on Mr. McGannon and the Plaintiff.

There was no Opposition filed by the Plain iff. Defendant. or the Intervenor.
each of whom was properly served.

NRCP | and EDCR .10 state that the procedure in district COuUrts shall be
administered to secure efficient, speedy. and e (pensive determinations in every
action. Pursuant to EDCR 2.23 { ¢). this Court < an consider a motion and issue a
decision on the papers at any time without a heai ng.

This Court tinds that there is good cause grant the Motion.

IT ISHEREBY ORDERED that Kari T Nininar's. Esq.. Motion to Withdraw

as Attorney of Record for the Intervenor. Kimbe: v White, is granted,
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Intervenor can be served at her last
known address at 10461 Hartford Hills Avenue. Las Vegas. Nevada 89166. The

Intervenor's email address is ku it wr e el il and her phone number 1s

{702) 534-9692.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the matter on Chamber’s Calendar for 11/01/222 shall
be vacated.

Dated this 19th day of October, 2022

709 740 2F96 8D58
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge

Respectfully Submitted by:

SRR/ }///{,%
L Bt N, 003860"
evada Bar No. _
I1\[489 W. Warm Sprin%s Road. Suite 110
Henderson, Nevada 82014
Phone (702) 534-2558
Attorney for Intervenor
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintff. | CASE NO. D-19-394413-C
VS, DEPT. NQ. Department S

Christopher Charles Judson, !
Detendant.

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Fighth Judicial Disirict
Court. The foregoing Order to Withdraw as Attorney of Record was served via the court’s
electronic eFile system to all recipients registered tor e-Service on the above entitled case as
listed below:

Service Date: 10/19/2022

Kari Molnar karit molnartamih law com
Mark McGannon mark /s megannonkiwotlice com
Tamika Jones tamikaR092i gminl.com

Jean McGannon jeania megannonlawotlice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauslaw i gmatl com
Admin Staff efileia megannontas office com
Kimberly White kwhite _writer i« hormail.com
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Electronicall

11/18/2022 3

CLERK OF THE
ORDR
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149
Telephone: (702) 888-6606
Facsimile: (725) 502-2376
E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
“Unbundled” Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff,
V. DEPT NO.: §

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,

Defendant,

KIMBERLY WHITE,

Intervenor.

ORDER FOR PATERNITY TESTING

Pursuant to this Court’s Order trom the June 16, 2022, Hearing;:

THE COURT HEREBY ORDERED: that the three Minor Children, XYSHONE
JUDSON, born November 20, 2011; XAIA JUDSON born August 13, 2015; and XIONNE
JUDSON born May 3, 2019, shall participate in Paternity Testing by Any Lab Test Now, 30357
Woodward Avenue, Royal Oak, MI 48073 to determine whether the three minor children are full
I
i
I
Iy

1101
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siblings, i.e., that they share the same father.

IT IS SO ORDERED

Prepared and Submitted by:

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

/s Mark McGannon
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV §9149
Attorney for Plaintiff

Dated this 18th day of November, 2022

PO

74B 6AF 8943 9A93
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 11/18/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean@megannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
Kimberly White kwhite writer@hotmail.com
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Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
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MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
Unbundled Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C

PLAINTIFF,
DEPT NO.: S

V.

)
)
)
)
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, )
DEFENDANT, ; NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

)

)

)

)

V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR.

Please take notice that an Order for Paternity Testing was duly entered in the above
referenced case on the 18" day of November 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto and by
reference fully incorporated herein.

DATED this 18" day of November 2022.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C,

BY: &/ Mark J McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON
Nevada State Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149
Ph.; (702)888-6606
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of the law office of MCGANNON LAW

OFFICE, P.C. that service of the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was made on

this 18" day of November 2022, pursuant to the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules

(NEFCR}, EDCR 5.206, and EDCR Part VIII, ¢f seq., by electronic service via the Court’s E-

Filing System, or if not on the service list by depositing the same in the United States Mail in Las

Vegas, Nevada, postage paid addressed as follows:

ATTORNEY/PARTIES

EMAIL

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR

Email: kwhite writer(@hotmail.com

Christopher Judson

1309 N 22" Street #3
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Defendant

24 Mark J McGannon

An employee or agent of MCGANNON LAW
OFFICE, P.C.

1105




FoO VS T

WO =] ~1 == Lh

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
11118/2022 3:20 PM

Electronicall

11/18/2022 3

CLERK OF THE
ORDR
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149
Telephone: (702) 888-6606
Facsimile: (725) 502-2376
E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
“Unbundled” Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C
Plaintiff,
V. DEPT NO.: §

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,

Defendant,

KIMBERLY WHITE,

Intervenor.

ORDER FOR PATERNITY TESTING

Pursuant to this Court’s Order trom the June 16, 2022, Hearing;:

THE COURT HEREBY ORDERED: that the three Minor Children, XYSHONE
JUDSON, born November 20, 2011; XAIA JUDSON born August 13, 2015; and XIONNE
JUDSON born May 3, 2019, shall participate in Paternity Testing by Any Lab Test Now, 30357
Woodward Avenue, Royal Oak, MI 48073 to determine whether the three minor children are full
I
i
I
Iy
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siblings, i.e., that they share the same father.

IT IS SO ORDERED

Prepared and Submitted by:

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

/s Mark McGannon
MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 005419
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV §9149
Attorney for Plaintiff

Dated this 18th day of November, 2022

PO

74B 6AF 8943 9A93
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 11/18/2022

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark{@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean@megannonlawoffice.com
Julio Vigoreaux jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staff efile@mcgannonlawoffice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
Kimberly White kwhite writer@hotmail.com
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Electronically Filed
1/29/2023 7:31 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COU

PMEM

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

7495 W. Azure Drive, Suite 110

Las Vegas, NV 89130

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

E-mail: markiemegannonlawotfice.com

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT — FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, y  CASENO.: D-19-594413-C
PLAINTIFF, )
y DEPTNO.: S
V. )
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, )
DEFENDANT, )
)
V. )
)
KIMBERLY WHITE, )
INTERVENOR, )
PRETRIAL MEMORANDUM

COMES NOW Plaintiff, TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, by and through her attorney,
Mark J. McGannon, Esq., of the law firm of MCGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C. and hereby
submits her Pre-Trial Memorandum.
I. STATEMENT OF FACTS

A, Names of the Parties:

l. Plaintiff: TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES (hereinafter “TAMIKA” or
“PLAINTIFF” or “MOM?™).

2. Defendant: CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON (hereinafter
“CHRIS” or “DEFENDANT" or “DAD™)}.

3. Intcrvenor; KIMBERLY WHITE (hereinafter “KIMBERLY ™ or

1109
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“INTERVENOR? or “Paternal Grandmother™).

B. Children of the Parties:

I. XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20, 2011;
2. XAIA JUDSON born August 13, 2015;
3. and XIONNE JUDSON born May 3, 2019 (“*Minor Children”).

C. Resolved Issues:

Child Custody and Relocation; however, a Final Custody Decree has never been
issued by the Court in which child custody, statutory child support, medical
insurance and expenses and tax credits are finalized.
D. Unresolved Issues:
1. Grand Parent Visitation; and

2. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.

II.

LIST OF WITNESSES

Plaintiff identifies the following witnesses:
1. TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES/Plaintiff
c/o McGANNON LAW OFFICE
7495 W. Azure Drive, Suite 110
Las Vegas, NV 89130
Ms. JONES is expected to testify to the facts and circumstances surrounding this matter.
2. CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON/Defendant
Mr. JUDSON is expected to testify to the facts and circumstances surrounding this

matter.

3. KIMBERLY WHITE/Intervenor

1110
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Ms. WHITE is expected to testify to the facts and circumstances surrounding this

matter.
III.
LIST OF EXHIBITS
Not applicable.
IV.
FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Unfortunately, this is the case in which Intervenor, Kimberly White, the obsessed,
delusional paternal grandmother, who has been vexatiously and mappropriately and without any
legal basis been seeking full custody of the Minor Children and who is willing to do anything
and everything to get it, including filing false applications for temporary protection order,
making false CPS reports of abuse and neglect and prohibiting any and all contact with the
Minor Children from their natural parents and specifically their own Mother, who has been the
only consistent parent since the day they were born. Intervenor initially attempted to get those
rights by manipulating her own son, the Minor Children’s natural father by paying for his
counsel at the beginning of the case. When CHRIS and TAMIKA reconciled and united against
KIMBERLY, she evidently felt entitled to “Intervene” in order to get the custody of the Minor
Children that she always wanted.

Intervenor’s pleadings and actions to date sets forth her true intention that were never
about visitation rights, but she disturbingly believes its in Minor Children’s best intcrest that she
be awarded_Sole Physical Custody of the Minor Children without one iota of evidence to support
this absurd claim. Prior to the January 2022 hearings there was not one CPS report or
allegation, not one police report of abuse or neglect. Absolutely nothing but the crazed rants of a

3
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delusional women who failed miserably at parenting her other children and now wants a do over.
Intervenor is unequivocally not entitled to grandparent visitation of the Minor Children. In
Nevada usually, only parents can ask for custody of a child. However, non-parents can apply to
the court for visitation or guardianship of a child. Intervenor is so delusional that she believes
that because she provided her son and the mother of her grandchildren some periodic financial
assistance by allowing them to live with her intermittently or provided resources to cover the
cost of private schooling that she insisted they attend, like most any other grandparent would do
for their struggling family, that somehow that makes her the de facto primary care provider of
the Minor Children and gives her rights to visitation. Moreover, KIMBERLY has utterly failed
to demonstrate one instance of any kind of unfitness by MOM. There is not one substantiated
CPS report, police report, drug abuse or use by MOM. MOM is a young mother of three
children struggling to like many, especially following the global pandemic to make ends meet
with little or no support from DAD. MOM has been working to get her nursing degree and has
secured employment in that industry up until KIMBERLY took her children from her in
November 2021 and cut off nearly all communication with them. The stress of this situation has
been devastating for MOM and all the Minor Children. The actions taken in this case have not
been in the best interest of anyone but most importantly these Minor Children. TAMIKA has
suffered severe emotional distress and the Minor Children have all needed counseling as a result
of Intervenor’s malevolent actions.

Intervenor and her tour-prior counsel(s) have swindled this Court into believing that
MOM has been violating Court Orders and abducting her own children. When the truth of the
matter is that MOM and DAD have been denied due process multiple times throughout these

proceedings. There was no proper petition for grandparent’s rights filed pursuant to the statute,
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vet grandparent rights were given when none were even requested. The Court granted temporary
physical custody to a nonparent without the natural parent’s involvement whatsoever and
denying them due process. The Court issued a pickup Order based solely on the argument of
counsel that MOM left the state against Court Orders when in fact MOM not only had DAD's
permission to relocate to Michigan, but she relocated at DAD’s request. Pursuant to the Court’s
December 5, 2019, Order’s that state, “Plaintiff shail get Defendant's permission or a Court
order to relocate out of state.” MOM relocated to Michigan not only with DAD’s permission,
but at his request. MOM has never been in violation of the Courts Orders in that regard.

In September 2021 after learning about the Order for the Return of the Children through
the Attorney General’s office, MOM retained counsel and attempt to come to an amicable
resolution, but those efforts went unanswered. Intervenor never wanted “visitation” she wanted
sole physical custody and she was able to obtain a pickup Order giving her exactly what she
wanted from the start. She then proceeded to use the Judicial System to attempt to eliminate the
natural parents from the Minor Children’s lives. KIMBERLY was so emboldened that she
traumatized these children by having the police physically remove them from their school and
their MOM! Why? What was the purpose of removing the children from their school and their
MOM for “visitation”? How is that in their best interest? KIMBERLY then took it a step furthen
and denied them all contact from their parents, family, and friends. KIMBERLY, without the
legal authority to do so, enrolled them in school in Las Vegas, Nevada, put them in therapy and
demanded proot of insurance from their MOM in order to get them medical treatment and filed a
TPO against their MOM! This has had long term detrimental impact not just on MOM but on

the Minor Children as all have been significantly traumatized by these events and are
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experiencing significant signs of PTSD and anxiety. In fact, one of the Minor Children fears her
“granny will take her back to Las Vegas™!

In January 2022, the matter came before the Court, and heard testimony from all the
Parties, including the Defendant and natural father, CHRISTOPHER JUDSON who testified that
he had previously given TAMIKA permission to relocate to Michigan with the Minor Children.
The Court then issued 1ts Orders that the Minor Children were to be returned to Michigan where
they reside with their Mother. The Court further Ordered an evidentiary trial to be set for July

22,2022, regarding grandparent visitation for Intervenor and that temporarily *grandmother shall

get 2-3 weeks in the summer, one week in spring and one week in the winter”. This was not

acceptable to KIMBERLY as she was seeking a change in custody not “visitation”. Ina
deliberate etfort to maintain physical custody of the Minor Children in Nevada with her and
without previously disclosing to the Court, KIMBERLY stated the Parties oldest son,
XYSHONE was having nightmares and other issues about returning home with his Mother. The

Court clarified that 1t “will nof ferminate custody of the parents”. The Court then ordered that

XYSHONE be referred to Family Mediation Center {(FMC) for a child interview that could be
done in person or by video conference. Then in a last-ditch effort, KIMBERLY took things even
further and filed a false claim of abuse and neglect with Michigan CPS and advised the Nevada
Court that Michigan CPS had been in contact with her and were investigating child neglect and
abuse against TAMIKA and requested that she be given temporary custody of the Minor
Children in Nevada. The Court denied the request and stated that “/f Michigan CPS has
concerns, they shall submit documentation to this Court. The children shall return to Michigan

unless the Nevada or Michigan CPS ask the children remain in Nevada .
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On January 24, 2022, former counsel for KIMBERLY and counsel for TAMIKA had a
conference call with Supervisor, Elizabeth Rinke, with Michigan CPS who stated that they were
able to do an in person examination of XIONNE at TAMIKA’s home, and it was determined that
there were no signs of abuse, neglect or child endangerment of any kind, and although Michigan
CPS would be continuing their investigation, they had no intention of keeping the Minor
Children from TAMIKA and had no concerns regarding the two older Minor Children’s, XAIA
and XYSHONE, immediate return to their home in Michigan. Michigan CPS concluded its
investigation and determined that all of the fabricated allegations of physical abuse and neglect
against TAMIKA were unsubstantiated!

As Ordered in January 2022, FMC conducted the child interview on XYSHONE on
March 4, 2022, and the report was recently received and based on the findings there are no
indications of abuse or neglect by TAMIKA; however, there were lengthy notes about the
numerous Ex Parte communications between KIMBERLY and FMC Mediation regarding
KIMBERLY’s repeated demands that the Minor Child be interviewed in person and not in the
presence of his “abuser” (referring to TAMIKA). Furthermore, KIMBERLY acknowledges that
she inappropriately had discussed the interview with the XYSHONE and advised FMC
Mediation that “the child has told me he is willing to tell the truth about what is going on if mom
isn’t there and he wor't “get in trouble”. KIMBERLY also stated, “{'m trving all I can to help
these kids and everything I’'m trying isn’t working.” Clearly demonstrating that KIMBERLY is
doing whatever she can think of to misrepresent the facts and purposefully and maliciously
attempting to influence the Minor Children, mediators, CPS, law enforcement and the Court in
her continued effort to prove her unfounded claims that TAMIKA is unfit to have custody of the

Miner Children. At the January 20, 2022, hearing the Court ruled that an Evidentiary Hearing
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would proceed on the issues of grandparent visitation only and a trial date was set for July 22,
2022, The Tnal was continued at the June 16, 2022, hearing until February 3, 2023, at 9:00 a.m.
Lastly, the Court system was designed to protect parents from individuals such as KIMBERLY
and her abuse of the legal system terrorizing and emotionally traumatizing MOM and the Minor
Children should never be tolerated again by the Courts.

A\
LEGAL ARGUMENT

The touchstone of all child custody determinations is the best interest of the minor child.
NRS 125C.0035. As this Court is aware: “[i]n determining the question of custody of children,
the court’s paramount consideration should be the welfare of the child.” Culbertson v.
Culbertson, 91 Nev. 230, 533 P.2d 768, 770 (1975). “[T]he paramount guiding principle in the
exercise of judicial discretion, in these cases affecting the rights of children, 1s the best interest

and the welfare of each child whose rights are involved.” Fenkell v. Fenkell, 86 Nev. 397, 486

P.2d 701, 703 (1970). The foundations of these determinations are the facts and circumstances

of each case. Arnold v. Arnold, 95 Nev. 951, 604 P.2d 109 {1979).

A. CHILD CUSTODY

In its Order after Hearings on January 20 and 21 2022, the Court made formal findings
based upon DAD’s sworn Permission for Relocation with Minor Children and testimony in
Court that: THE COURT FURTHER FINDS: that natural father, CHRISTOPHER JUDSON
appeared at the hearing and confirmed that he authorized, natural mother, TAMIKA JONES and
his Minor Children, XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20, 2011, XATA JUDSON born
August 13, 2015, and XIONNE JUDSON born May 3, 2019 (“Minor Children™) to rclocate to
Michigan.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS AND ORDERS: that 1t is in the best interest of the

&
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Minor Children that TAMIKA JONES be awarded Temporary Sole Legal and Primary Physical
Custody of the Minor Children.

At the hearing on June 16, 2022, THE COURT FURTHER NOTED: It has always
looked at this as a grandparent’s rights case only, and if INTERVENOR thinks it is different that
is fine, but the record 1s that DAD has agreed that MOM shall have the children and gave
permission for her to relocate to Michigan; Michigan and Nevada has investigated and there have
been no substantiation of any 1ssues so INTERVENOR can file her Complaint if she has the
grounds [TIMESTAMP 11:06:22- 11:06:55].

DAD has given TAMIKA permission to relocate to Michigan which necessarily imnvolves
her having primary physical custody of the Minor Children. Additionally, TAMIKA will testify
that DAD has not provided financial support for the Minor Children or been involved in the care
and upbringing ot the Minor Children, including all medical and educational matters for years,
and TAMIKA is entitled to have a Final Decree of Custody entered awarding her Sole Legal and
Primary Physical Custody of the Minor Children.

With a primary custody arrangement, TAMIKA requests that the Court Order that
Defendant must pay child support for the three Minor Children in accordance with NAC 425, et
seq. TAMIKA will open a Child Support case with the District Attorney’s Office for
determination of the amount and enforcement. Plaintiff would also request the Court to Order
that the Minor Children remain on State Medicaid Programing, so long as insurance is not made
available through the Parties’ respective employers; and that both Parties equally divide any
unpaid or unreimbursed health care expenses incurred by the minor child, including any
deductibles and co-payments using the utilization of the “30/30 Rule” As this Court is aware,

the *30/30 Rule” finds: The incurring party for health care expenses for the minor child shall be
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responsible in providing a letter and copies of medical receipts evidencing such medical costs,
within thirty (30) days; failure to provide such documentation including receipts within the
allotted thirty (30) days shall be deemed waived; within thirty (30) days of receipt of said health
care costs the recerving party shall then have thirty (30} days within which to either provide
repayment of dispute said expense. TAMIKA is also entitled to an Order allowing her to claim
the Minor Children on her Federal Tax Returns every year.

B. GRANDPARENT VISITATION

When making a custody determination, the sole consideration is the best interest of the
child. NRS 125C.0035(1) ; Davis v. Ewalefo , 131 Nev. 445 451,352 P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015).

NRS 125C.050 Petition for right of visitation for certain relatives and other
persons states:

1. Except as otherwise provided 1n this section, if a parent of an unmarried minor
child:

(a} Is deceased;

(b) Is divorced or separated from the parent who has custody of the child,;

(¢} Has never been legally married to the other parent of the child, but cohabitated
with the other parent and is deceased or is separated from the other parent; or

(d) Has relinquished his or her parental rights or his or her parental rights have been
terminated, the district court in the county in which the child resides may grant to the great-
grandparents and grandparents of the child and to other children of either parent of the child a
reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority.

2. If the child has resided with a person with whom the child has established a
meaningful relationship, the district court in the county in which the child resides also may grant
to that person a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority, regardless of
whether the person 1s related to the child.

3. A party may seek a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority
pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 only if a parent of the child has denied or unreasonably restricted
visits with the child.

4, [If a parcnt of the child has denied or unreasonably restricted visits with the child,
there 1s a rebuttable presumption that the granting of a right to visitation to a party seeking
visitation 1s not in the best interests of the child. To rebut this presumption, the party seeking
visitation must prove by clear and convincing evidence that it is in the best interests of the child
to grant visitation,

14a
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5.  The court may grant a party seeking visitation pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 a
reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority only 1f the court finds that the party
seeking visitation has rebutted the presumption established in subsection 4.

6. In determining whether the party seeking visitation has rebutted the presumption
established in subsection 4, the court shall consider:

(a} The love, aftection and other emotional ties existing between the party seeking
visitation and the child.

{b) The capacity and disposition of the party seeking visitation to:

(1) Give the child love, affection and guidance and serve as a role model to the
child;

(2) Cooperate in providing the child with food, clothing and other material needs
during visitation; and

(3) Cooperate in providing the child with health care or alternative care
recognized and permitted under the laws of this State in lieu of health care.

(¢} The prior relationship between the child and the party seeking visitation,
including, without limitation, whether the child resided with the party seeking visitation and
whether the child was included in holidays and family gatherings with the party seeking
visitation.

(d) The moral fitness of the party seeking visitation.

(e} The mental and physical health of the party secking visitation.

(f) The reasonable preference of the child, if the child has a preference, and if the
child i1s determined to be of sufficient maturity to express a preference.

(g) The willingness and ability of the party seeking visitation to facilitate and
encourage a close and continuing relationship between the child and the parent or parents of the
child as well as with other relatives of the child.

(h) The medical and other needs of the child related to health as affected by the
visitation.

(1} The support provided by the party seeking visitation, including, without
limitation, whether the party has contributed to the financial support of the child.

(j} Any other factor arising solely from the facts and circumstances of the particular
dispute that specifically pertains to the need for granting a right to visitation pursuant to
subsection 1 or 2 against the wishes of a parent of the child.

Based upon the above statutory provisions, grandparents or other persons who have
resided with a child and established a meaningful relationship may petition the court for
reasonable visitation if the parents of the child have denied visitation. NRS 125C.050(1)-(3).
However, if a parent has denied visitation with the child, there is a rebuttable presumption that
granting visitation to the petitioner is not in the child’s best interest. NRS 125C.050(4). And to

rebut this presumption, the petitioner must demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that it

11
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is in the best interests of the child to grant visitation. /d. When determining whether the
petitioner has rebutted the presumption, the district court shall consider the factors enumerated in
NRS 125C.050(6).

As set forth above, imitially INTERVENOR cannot even meet the initial requirements for
allowing grandparent visitation. Although it 1s conceded that the Minor Children did live with
Intervenor for a short period of time, Intervenor has never established any type of meaningful
relationship with the youngest child, XIONNE JUDSON born May 3, 2019. Importantly,
Intervenor has not seen the Minor Children since Court Ordered July 2022 summer visitation,
has not requested her Court Ordered Winter Visitation, has not engaged in any Court Ordered
telephonic communication with the Minor Children since July 2022, provided any support
whatsoever for the Minor Children since July 2022; thus, essentially having no contact and
abandoning the Minor Children for 6 months!

Most importantly, neither of the natural parents of the Minor Children want Intervenor to
have anything to do with the Minor Children as it is not in their best interests, as they have
serious concerns about Maternal Grandmother’s willingness to facilitate and encourage a healthy
relationship between the Minor Children and their parents. Specifically, there is an extremely
high degree of animosity and conflict between the Parties, the Minor Children have been
constantly exposed to the conflict caused by Intervenor, subjected to needless interviews with
police and CPS, and hence it is not in the best interests of the Minor Children to continue a
relationship with Intervenor. In tact, as this Court is well aware, Intervenor has on numerous
occasions maliciously sought to remove the Minor Children from the custody of their natural
parents falsely claiming abuse and/or neglect to CPS and police of multiple states without a

single 1ota of any evidence or legitimate reason why she would be entitled to custody of the

12
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Minor Children needlessly forcing MOM to incur thousands of dollars she cannot afford to
recover the children and defend this vexatious action. Thus, Intervenor is not entitled to
grandparent visitation pursuant to NRS 125C.050 and well-established Nevada law, and any
visitation with the Minor Children should be at the sole discretion of MOM/TAMIKA.

C. ATTORNEY’S FEES

NRS 125C.250 Attorney’s fees and costs. Except as otherwise provided in NRS
125C.0689, in an action to determine legal custody, physical custody or visitation with respect to
a child, the court may order reasonable fees of counsel and experts and other costs of the
proceeding to be paid in proportions and at times determined by the court.

NRS 18.010 Award of attorney’s fees.

1. The compensation of an attorney and counselor for his or her services is governed by
agreement, express or implied, which is not restrained by law.

2. In addition to the cases where an allowance is authorized by specific statute, the court
may make an allowance of attorney’s fees to a prevailing party:

{a} When the prevailing party has not recovered more than $20,000; or

(b} Without regard to the recovery sought, when the court finds that the claim,
counterclaim, cross-claim or third-party complaint or defense of the opposing party was
brought or maintained without reasonable ground or to harass the prevailing party. The
court shall liberally construe the provisions of this paragraph in favor of awarding
attorney’s fees in all appropriate situations. It is the intent of the Legislature that the court
award attorney’s fees pursuant to this paragraph and impose sanctions pursuant to Rule
11 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure in all appropriate situations te punish for and
deter frivolous or vexatious claims and defenses because such claims and defenses
overburden limited judicial resources, hinder the timely resolution of meritorious claims
and increase the costs of engaging in business and providing professional services to the
public,

3. In awarding attorney’s fees, the court may pronounce its decision on the fees at the
conclusion of the trial or special proceeding without written motion and with or without
presentation of additional evidence.

4. Subscctions 2 and 3 do not apply to any action arising out of a writtcn instrument or
agreement which entitles the prevailing party to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees.
(Emphasis added.)

As illystrated from Plaintiff’s cgregious actions including wrongtully taking the
Minor Children away from their mother, school and life in Michigan and frivolously seeking

1z
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custody, fraudulently misrepresenting facts to police and CPS, and needlessly forcing MOM
to file numerous Motions in order to finally get custody of her own Minor Children,
Intervenor’s continued vexatious perpetration of this action in total abrogation of clear
Nevada law, warrants an award of all of her attorney’s fees under NRS 18.010 and
NRS 125C.250.

DATED this 29" day of January 2023.

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.

BY: /s/ Mark J McGannon

MARK J. McGANNON
Nevada State Bar No. 005419
7495 W. Azure Drive, Suite 110

Las Vegas, NV 89130
Ph.: (702)888-6606
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of the law office of McGANNON LAW

OFFICE, P.C. that service of the foregoing PRETRIAL MEMORANDUM was made on this

29" day of January 2023, pursuant to the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules

(NEFCR), EDCR 5.206, and EDCR Part VIII, ¢f seq., by electronic service via the Court’s E-

Filing System, or if not on the service list by depositing the same in the United States Mail in Las|

Vegas, Nevada, postage paid addressed as follows:

ATTORNEY/PARTIES

EMAIL

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR

Email: kwhite writer(@hotmail.com

Christopher Judson

1309 N 22" Street #3

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Detendant

s/ Mark J. McGannon

An employee or agent of McGANNON LAW
OFFICE, P.C.

1123




Electronically Filed
1/30/2023 4:53 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

ATEAR
Name: Kimberly White

Address: 10461 Hartford Hills Ave

Las Vegas, NV 89166

TelephOne; 702-882-0191

Email Address: kwhiet_writer@hotmail.com
In Proper Person

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones CASE NO.: d-19-594413-c
Plaintiff, DEPT: S

V8.
HEARING DATE: 2-3-2023

TIME OF HEARING:; 9:00 AM

Christopher Charles Judson vs. Kimberly White
Defendant,

VIDEO APPEARANCE REQUEST

(Your name)y Kimberly White . (K check one) QA Plaintiff
/ ™ Defendant, requests that the following person be allowed to testify by remote court
appearance via video conference, pursuant to Rule 4 of the Nevada Supreme Court’s Rules
Governing Appearance by Audiovisual Transmission Equipment: (X check one) ™ Myself /
0 Witness: Kimberly White . This request is for the hearing date and
time above for the (Xl check one):

O Motion Hearing O Trial Setting Conference
0 Case Management Conference O Other:
& Trial / Evidentiary Hearing

The person subject to this request has executed the Consent on the next page and agrees
to be bound by the cath given by the Court Clerk, Eighth Judicial District Court and to be
subject to the jurisdiction of this Court for purpeses related to this testimony.

(Your Name) Kimberly White agrees to provide all exhibits to the
witness in advance in the same form as have been or will be submitted to the Court Clerk.

Any objection to this request must be made in writing within two (2) judicial days of
service of this request.

€ 2020 Family Law Self-Help Center Request for Video Appearance
Page | of 3
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If the IT department wants to test and verify the functionality of the party/witness’s
video conference connectivity with the Court’s IT department, the contact information of the
party or witness for the test is:

Kimberly White

kwhiet_writer@hotmail.com

Name:

Email Address:

Phone Number: 702-982_0 1 91

DATED (today’s date) I -;_)2! )-2( )2:3 ,20
Submitted By: (Signature) » 'S/ Kimberly White
Printed Name: Klmbel’|v Wh|te

CONSENT
(to be signed by the person who wants to appear by video)

By making this request for Audiovisual Transmission Equipment Appearance, the
undersigned agrees to be bound by the oath given by the Court Clerk over the video conference
connection and to be subject to the jurisdiction of this Court for purposes related to this
testimony. I certify that the video connection has been successfully tested at
http://bluejeans.com/ 111, prior to submitting this application.

Pursuant to NRS 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true

and correct,

DATED (today’s date) 1-30 2023

st Kimberly White

(Signature of party or witness) »

Kimberly White

Printed Name:

€ 2020 Family Law Self-Help Center Request for Video Appearance

RAPLE



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, (our name) Kimberly White declare under penalty of perjury

under the law of the State of Nevada that I served the Audiovisual Transmission Equipment

Appearance and Audiovisual Transmission Equipment Consent in the following manner:

O Mail: By depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail in the State of Nevada, postage prepaid, on
the (day) of (month) , 20 addressed to:

(Print the name and address of the person you mailed the document to)

Name:

Address:

City/State/Zip:

X Electronic: Through the Court’s electronic service system on {dafe) 1-30-2023
at {time) 4:40 PM

O a.m. O p.m.

DATED (today s date) 1-30 ,2023

Submitted By: (Signature) » s/ Klmbel’|y Wh|te

€ 2020 Family Law Self-Help Center Request for Video Appearance
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Electronically Filed
1/31/2023 10:43 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF TH CO!Z
MOT '

Or. Kimberly White
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89166
702-982-0191

IN Pro Per
DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, Case No.: D-1%-584413-C
PLAINTIFF
DEPT.: &
vS.
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
DEFENDANT
Vs, NO HEARING REQUESTED
KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR

MOTION FOR THE COURT TO REQUEST RECORDS FROM NEVADA AND

MICHIGAN CPS REGARDING PLAINTIFF AND MINOR CHILDREN

INTERVENOR, Kimberly White, respectfully moves this Court to request records from Nevada
Child Protective Services and Michigan Child Protective Services regarding Tamika Jones, Plaintiff;
Xyshone Judson, minor child of Plaintiff; Xaia Judson, minor child of Plaintiff; Xionne Judson, minor child
of Plaintiff.

These records are vital to the case at bar and to either confirm or deny the allegations made by
the plaintiff's attorney regarding the plaintiff's actions, behavior, and statements. Plaintiff categerically
denies that CPS ever took any intervention or efforts concerning her or the minor children. Intervenor has
personal knowledge of at least two cases opened against the plaintiff and has contacted CPS multiple

times about obtaining these rececrds for this trial. CPS acknowledges the existence of these records;
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however, the intervenor is in a position of being unable to receive these records as CPS has replied
repeatedly that the only way these records can be released to the court is by a request of the judge, as
she is not a parent or attorney of the parent.

These records will rebut the claims and allegations that there has never been a CPS case cpened
against Tamika in Nevada. The plaintiff's attorney has repeatedly claimed the Michigan case was called in
by the intervencr, which is categorically untrue and a false allegation with no evidence to support the
claim. Plaintiff has shown no proof or documentation to this court of the outcome of the Michigan CPS
case. This is not the same as the case being closed and there are no findings against the plaintiff as is the
claim of the plaintiff's attorney. If there were an outcome in faver of the plaintiff, the plaintiff's attorney
would surely be more than anxious to present this to the court and the intervenor without delay.

It would be a miscarriage of justice and denial of the intervenor’s due process rights to be unable
to rebut the untrue rantings and accusations of the plaintiff's counsel.

THEREFORE, Intervenor asks this court to request the records from Nevada and Michigan CPS
to allow the intervenor to defend her case in this court. Anything less would enable the plaintiff's undue
bias and deny the intervenar the right to defend herself against the unsubstantiated claims of the plaintiff's

attorney.

Respectiully submitted this 315t of January 2023, by:

D, Rimberly Whete

Dr. Kimberly White, Intervenor
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89166

In Pro Per
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Electronically Filed
2{1/2023 4:59 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
o (Rrn B Ao

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff. D-19-594413-C
Vs, Department S

Christopher Charles Judson, Defendant.

CLERK’S NOTICE OF NONCONFORMING DOCUMENT

Pursuant to Rule 8(b)(2} of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules, notice is
hereby provided that the following electronically filed document does not conform to the
applicable filing requirements:

Motion for the Court to Request

Records from Nevada and

Michigan CPS Regarding Plantiff
Title of Nonconforming Document: and Minor Children

Party Submitting Document for Filing: Dr. Kimberly White

Date and Time Submitted for Electronic
Filing: 01/31/23 at 10:43 pm

Reason for Nonconformity Determination:

[ ] The document filed to commence an action is not a complaint, petition,
application, or other document that initiates a civil action. See Rule 3 of the
Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure. In accordance with Administrative Order 19-5,
the submitted document is stricken from the record, this case has been closed and
designated as filed in error, and any submitted filing fee has been returned to the
filing party.

[ ] The document initiated a new civil action and a cover sheet was not submitted as
required by NRS 3.275,

[ ] The document was not signed by the submitting party or counsel for said party.

[] The document filed was a court order that did not contain the signature of a
judicial officer. In accordance with Administrative Order 19-5, the submitted

order has been furnished to the department to which this case is assigned.
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<] Motion does not have a hearing designation per Rule 2.20(b). Motions must
include designation “Hearing Requested” or “Hearing Not Requested” in the
caption of the first page directly below the Case and Department Number.

Pursuant to Rule 8(b)(2} of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules, a
nonconferming document may be cured by submitting a conforming document. All documents
submitted for this purpose must use filing code “Conforming Filing — CONFILE.” Court filing
fees will not be assessed for submitting the conforming document. Processing and convenience

fees may still apply.

Dated this: 1st day of February, 2023

By: _ /s/ Francis Yanez

Deputy District Court Clerk
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that on February 01, 2023, T concurrently filed and served a copy of the
foregoing Clerk’s Notice of Nonconforming Document, on the party that submitted the

nonconforming document, via the Eighth Judicial District Court’s Electronic Filing and Service
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System.

By: _ /s/ Francis Yanez
Deputy District Court Clerk
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Electronically Filed
2{2f2023 3:14 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
[ ||PMEM Mﬁa‘“’"’

Dr. Kimberly White
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.
3 [|Las Vegas, NV 89166
702-982-0191

4 || IN Pro Per
5
6
DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
7
. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
g
10 || TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, Case No.: D-19-594413-C
PLAINTIFF
1 DEPT.: S

V5.

13 |[CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,

DEFENDANT TRIAL SCHEDULED FOR FEB 3, 2023, AT

s 9:00 AM

V8.
15
KIMBERLY WHITE,

16 ||IDR. WHITE
17

18

19 PRETRIAL MEMORANDUM

20

2! Comes now DR. WHITE, Kimberly White, and herby submits her pretrial memorandum.

23

24 L

25 STATEMENT OF FACTS

26 A. Names of the Parties:

27 1. Plaintift: TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES (hereinafter "TAMIKA™)

28
2. Defendant: CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JONES (hereinatter “FATHER™)
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3. Dr. White: KIMBERLY WHITE (hereinafter “DR. WHITE or
“KIMBERLY™)
B. Children of the Parties:
1. Xyshone Judson, DOB 11-20-2011
2. Xaia Judson, DOB 8-13-2015
3. Xionne Judson, DOB 5-3-2019
C. Resolved Issues:
There are no resolved issues at this time. Dr. White denies the plaintiff’s
allegation that any issues are resolved as of this time.
D. Unresolved Issues:
l. Grandparent Visitation
2. Allegations of abuse by Plaintift of minor children

3. Untrue allegations of Plaintiff regarding Dr. White

4. Proof of allegations of PTSD and trauma caused by pick-up from Michigan

5. Plaintiff’s attorney has not provided the Michigan CPS report

IT.

WITNESS LIST

Dr. White identifies the following witnesses:
1. Tamika Beatrice Jones — Plaintiff

2. Christopher Charles Judson — Defendant
3. Dr. Kimberly White — Intervenor

4. Geneva White — paternal great, great grandmother of minor children
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5. Regina Williams - Sister of Dr. White

All witnesses are expected to testify truthfully to all the facts and circumstances

surrounding this case

II.

LIST OF EXHIBITS

1. All transcripts of prior proceedings in this case
2. Pictures taken of the abused children by the physician and Dr. White
3. Reports from Michigan and Nevada CPS

4. Report from psychologist on Xyshone and Xaia

IV.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Dr. Kimberly White is the paternal grandmother of the three minor children. She has
supported the parcnts and provided for the grandchildren for many ycars, which has been proven
with documents submitted into evidence at the inception of this case in August 2019. Her
rclationship with the parents deteriorated when she refused to take sides in the couple’s squabble,
instead remaining neutral and focusing on the children’s needs. In August 2019, the plaintiff
called the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police and reported that the children's father, Christopher
Judson, had taken the children and was withholding them from her. This was determined not to

be true. They were residing at Dr. White’s home, as they always had. Dr. White stands by her
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decision to focus on the children's well-being, not get involved 1n a couple’s argument, and her
actions demonstrate this fact. The only stable and consistent home the children have ever had are
with Dr. White and their paternal great-grandparents. However, Ms. Jones has never understood
Dr. White’s refusal to intercede on her behalf. Instead, she 1s focused on punishing Dr. White by
destroying the relationships Dr. White has with her grandchildren and even her son. All
accusations directed at Dr. White are without merit and untrue in every regard. There 1s no
evidence or testimony to support the plaintiff’s characterizations of Dr. White. The plaintiff’s
attorney skillfully uses illusory of truth to tarnish Dr. White’s character to hide the underlying
deficits in his client’s parenting.
V.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. VISITATION

Dr. White continues her petition for visitation of her grandchildren. This has been argued
and determined in earlier proceedings; therefore, Dr. White will not waste the court’s time
rehashing the argument. It is advised that the plaintitf’s attorney review past hearing notes to
catch up on what has already been debated and decided previously. He will find in the first filing
of this case, by his client, the plaintift asks for sole custody but amends her wishes and requests
weekend visits with her three children, the father has the children during the week {while he
lived at Dr. White’s home), and Dr. White will be granted visitation rights. The district court
must determine the “fitness” of the parent or if there are "other extraordinary

circumstances." Litz v. Bennum, 111 Nev. 35, 38, 888 P.2d 438, 440 (1995); see ulso NRS

128.018 (defining an "unfit parent™); NRS 128.018 (providing factors to consider when
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determining neglect or fitness of parent). Extraordinary circumstances are those that "result in

serious detriment to the child.” Locklin, 112 Nev. at 1495-96, 929 P.2d at 934.

Other jurisdictions offer examples of fitness and best interests. Under New York law,
extraordinary circumstances are defined as "fault or omission by the parent seriously atfecting
the welfare of a child, the preservation of the child's freedom from serious physical harm, illness

or death, or the child's right to an education.” Bennett v. Jeffrevs, 40 N.Y.2d 543, 387 N.Y.S.2d

821,356 N.E.2d 277, 281 (1976). In Maryland, exceptional circumstances are those where the

non-parent has provided for the children’s emotional and physical needs over a significant length
of time. The children have formed a strong attachment to the non-parent, so there is a possible
emotional effect if custody is changed and the child is thriving under the current custody of the

non-parent. Burrows v. Sanders, 99 Md. App. 69, 635 A.2d 82, 85 (1994). In Wisconsin,

examples of extraordinary circumstances are "abandonment, persistent neglect of parental
responsibilities, or other similar extraordinary circumstances that would drastically affect the

welfare of the child." fn the Matter of the Guardianship of Jenae K.S., 196 Wis.2d 16, 539

N.W.2d 104, 106 (App.1995). Dr. White has presented medical records, the psychologist’s note,

and photos that justify further investigation into the children's physical, mental, and emotional
well-being. She has formally applied for the court to obtain the Michigan and Nevada CPS

Teports,

The plaintift’s attorney has claimed that the Michigan CPS report supports his client’s
parenting skills. Let him produce the document or an official summary eof this document, and all
issues of child abuse will be resolved. This would seem a simple thing to do since it would be so

helpful for his client.
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He also claims he had an ex-parte conversation with a Michigan CPS agent on January
24, 2022, and was told the children, who were in Nevada, were never interviewed via phone or in
person and were safe to return home. This requires further investigation of the veracity of his
account. The FMC (family mediation center) interview of the oldest child requires a review by
the court. Dr. White requested this interview when Michigan CPS contacted her about opening
an “emergency CPS case” regarding her three grandchildren. The interview was scheduled for
the child to go to FMC, a neutral location for the interview. Days before the interview, Dr. White
received an email stating that the plaintift called the FMC. She lied to them, saying she and her
children would not be in Las Vegas on that date and that the interview needed to be done via
phone. Learning this information, Dr. White recognized this action. As anyone who has worked
with abused children knows, the parent will attempt to sequester and coach the child before the
interview and try to be present so the child can see them. Dr. White contacted FMC to request
the interview be conducted in a way that ensured the child’s safety from retaliation, and as
always, emphasized the fact that the only thing important to her was keeping the children safe:
“I’'m trying all I can to help these kids, and everything [I’'m trying isn’t working.”

No decision regarding visitation or custody should be finalized until these reports are
reviewed, assuring the three minor children’s constitutional rights are being met. As it stands, the
children are in a hazardous situation. They remain in Michigan, where they were found after the
parental abduction. On serial encounters with the children, Dr. White, Geneva White, and Leon
White Sr. have witnessed escalating evidence of abuse. The primary living conditions of the
children are only known as transient. There 1s a question about school attendance. Mental health

follow-up is needed for the children. Court-ordered phone calls, when allowed, with Dr. White
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are disconnected after 60 seconds, further isolating the children from someone they trust to
report therr abuse to.

Tamika has never shown an ability to be stable and conduct her affairs without outside
help from others. In July 2019, she kicked Christopher and her children out on two occasions,
and they were forced to move back into Dr. White’s home. Even to this day, she and her children
are living with other family members in shared living conditions not conducive to the safety and
privacy of the children. She seeks financial help from the children’s paternal grandfather. She
has not been able to hold a steady job since returning to Michigan. This has been a consistent
pattern in Tamika’s life to this point. There is no evidence or proof of her living arrangements
and her ability to provide for her children.

Despite Dr. White’s repeated reports of abuse of the children as a grandmother and as a
mandatory reporter, there has been no investigation. This is unbelievable. Precisely what must
happen to the children before someone’s consciousness is activated? In Troxel v. Granville, 530
U.S. 57,120 S. Ct, 2054, 147 L. Ed. 2d 49 (2000), the Court, on numerous occasions,
acknowledged that children are possessed of constitutionally protected rights and liberties. One
of which 1s to be safe and protected from harm. Dr. White has petitioned the court for visitation
of her grandchildren, but every filing by the plaintiff and her attorney displays their cenfusion
about this fact.

Dr. White would like to give legal notice: when physical, mental, er emotional abuse of
one or more of the children is finally acknowledged by those who are legally and morally bound
to do so, Dr. White will file for custody or whatever legal remedies are available to keep the
children safe even if they need to be kept safe from the person who bore them biologically. This

is the same stance the biological borer should have had when she saw the first cigarette burn on
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her baby’s behind. In addition, it has been established that one may petition for custody when the
moving party seeks to itroduce evidence of domestic violence of which it was unaware at the

time of the oniginal custody decree. Castle v. Simmons, 120 Nev. 98, 105, 86 P.3d 1042, 1047

(2004).

The plaintiff’s attorney has diagnosed the children with PTSD. This requires further
investigation by a licensed medical protessional. Therefore, it is requested that Xy’ Shone Judson
and Xaia Judson have court-ordered psychological evaluations. In addition, for the safety of the
children, an assessment of parenting skills, and confirmation of the mental defect of the plamtitt,
it is also requested that the plaintiff undergo a mandatory psychological evaluation. Until these

reports are reviewed, the children should be appointed guardian ad litem.

B. ATTORNEY FEES

As noted by Judge Ochoa in previous hearings, none of this would be occurring if not for the
plaintiff’s destructive actions and disregard for the court’s orders. To order Dr. White to pay her
penalties is unconstitutional. There is not a single applicable statute that supports that position. In
earlier proceedings, Dr. White has already been awarded attorney’s fees from the plaintiff.
Plaintiff has not shown evidence in any form that there were or are any malicious, vexatious,
unreasonable, or any of the other conditions the plaintiff has put forth under section C of her
legal argument in her pre-trial memo. Nothing in fact or even close to evidence to meet the
standard set forth under NRS 125C.250 or NRS 18.010. The plaintiff has put in multiple and
repeated malicious claims, unethical and untrue filings, and representations to this court, causing

unnecessary waste of time and resources of the judicial system.
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C. CONCLUSION

Dr. White has produced evidence and documentation of every subject matter she put forth
to this court and never once has resorted to anything but following the court’s rules and the laws
of this state. All of her actions have followed the law and the orders of this court. That cannot be
said of the activities of the plaintiff, who has shown total disregard for the sanctity and authority
of this court. This has been documented multiple times in transcripts of the hearings and
testimony in this court.

As to the plaintiff’s allegation regarding grandparents’ visitation rights, it 1s well
established that it is a right in Nevada. Dr. White has repeatedly and consistently shown that she
has been the significant caregiver and had extensive interactions and bonding with them. As
discussed, Dr. White is only concerned with the well-being and safety of these children. It has
been the only goal since the plaintiftf opened this case, and Dr. White intervened. If the children
are unsafe, abused, or not cared for, as has been shown, then temporary custody is in the
children's best interests until they can be safe with their natural parents. Dr. White finds it very
disturbing that the plaintiff has never once mentioned the safety and well-being of the children.
The plaintiff seems to be only interested that Dr. White has nothing to do with the children and
nothing else matters. Not once has the interests of the children, the safety of the children, the
documentation that the children are safe and being provided for, or mention of the current living
conditions and the means she is using to survive and have a place to live been mentioned. If the
situation is so good and the living conditions were thought acceptable to a reasonable standard,

then in that case, there should be no hesitation to provide an address, pictures of the home, and
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documentation of how their needs are being met, which should be made front and center to prove
that the plaintiff has been able to make a safe home for the children in Michigan. Instead, this
case has turned into a matter of the plaintiff hiding her actual living situation while coaching the
children to dislike the grandmother with whom they've always had a close, loving relationship.

Dr. White displays no animosity. Not in word or deed. However, the plaintiff and her
family have sent numerous vile texts and emails to Dr. White. All have gone unanswered
because Dr. White has considered the plaintiff the only daughter she ever had.

Dr. White puts forth to this court that there are far too many unresolved and
uninvestigated issues that have been thoroughly documented to this court, on the record, to allow
the plaintiff full custody at this time or to relocate to Michigan with the children permanently.
Dr. White maintains that the purpose of this trial should be focused on what is best for these
children and their welfare.

Let Attorney McGannon be put on notice: He has repeatedly accused Dr. White of
making a false CPS report in Michigan. As a licensed provider in Michigan, Dr. White is legally
beholden to report child abuse and neglect. Since he has put her knowledge of the children’s
abuse on the court record, she will be submitting a report to Michigan CPS immediately. A
mandatory reporter who fails to report suspected child abuse or neglect is ““civilly liable for the
damages proximately caused by the failure.” MCL 722.633(1). In addition, a mandatory reporter
who fails to report suspected child abuse or neglect and “who knowingly fails to do so 1s guilty
of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment for not more than 93 days or a fine of not more
than $500.00, or both.” MCL 722.633(2).

Also, Attorney McGannon has knowingly made false statements with the intent to cause

direct damage to Dr. White’s professional reputation. As a medical professional, this has
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profound and lingering effects on current and future employment opportunities, as court
documents are reviewed during credentialing. Theretfore, these falsehoods have a direct impact
on her livelihood. Accordingly, attorney McGannon is notified that his practice of illusory of
truth 1s unacceptable, and sanctions will be sought to the fullest extent of the law.

Dr. White prays someone intervenes on behalf of the children before this case turns into
another television news story, a statistic. The most crucial issue, in this case, 1s the safety and

well-being of the children, and there has been no evidence to show that this is the case.

Dated this 1% day of February 2023 by:

D, Rinsbenty White

Dr. Kimberly White
10461 Hartford Hills Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89166

In Pro Per
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Electronically Filed
2/712023 11:18 AM

Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE CO
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA W ’32
Fkokok *
Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff. Case No.: D-19-394413-C
Vs,
Christopher Charles Judson, Defendant. Department S
NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Intervenor's Motion for the Court to Request Records from
Nevada and Michigan CPS Regarding Plaintiff and Minor Children in the above-entitled
matter is set for hearing as follows:

Date: March 14, 2023
Time: No Appearance Required

Location: Courtroom 07
Family Courts and Services Center
601 N. Pecos Road
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEQ/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Sylvia Fussell
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Sylvia Fussell
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Electronically Filed
2M2/2023 6:08 PM
Steven D. Grierson

DISTRICT COURT CLARK cm& OF THE cogﬁ

COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, Plaintiff,

Case No.: D-19-594413-C
Vs,

Dept. No.: S
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
Defendant
Vs,
KIMBERLY WHITE, Intervenor

MEMORANDUM:

PROPOSED GRANDPARENT VISITATION SCHEDULE

Date of Evidential Hearing: FEBRUARY 3, 2023
Time of Hearing: 9:00 am

WHEREAS Kimberly White (“grandparent™) is the paternal grandparent of Xy’ Shone C.
Judson, Xaia M. Judson, and Xionne R. Judson; AND the parties have come to an agreement
with respect to the grandparent’s visitation with the children and wish to set down in writing the
conditions which will govern those visits, the following 1s proposed.

1. The grandparent shall have the grandchildren for one month during their summer

vacation from school. The date shall be selected by the grandparent, and Tamika B
Jones and Christopher C Judson (“the parents”) will be notified in writing no later
than April 1* of each year.
2. The grandparent shall call the grandchildren Wednesday at 3:30 pm PT and Saturday
9:00 am PT. Any missed phone calls caused by the parents shall be made up Sunday
9:00 am. Any missed calls caused by the grandparent is not subject to makeup.

3. The grandparent shall have the children for four {(4) days during the Thanksgiving or
Christmas/New Year’s holiday school break. The parents shall notify the grandparent

of the selected date in writing no later than April 1% of each vear.

Page 1 of 2
1144

Case Number: D-19-594413-C




10

11

12

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

4. The grandparent shall have the children for one week (7 days) during winter and one

week (7 days) during spring school breaks.

5. Pick-up and drop-off times for visits will be included in the itinerary because of

varying transportation schedules and possible weather issues.

6. The grandparent will be responsible for providing the costs of transportation to/from

visitation, and all activities the children take place in.

The parents shall ensure the children are ready and available to spend time with the

grandparent, promptly and on time for each visitation period. Unless otherwise agreed upon in

the itinerary, the parents shall have a car seat and necessary clothing for each of the children

available for the visitation period. If the parents do not honor the itinerary or fail to show up at

the appointed visitation, the parents will be responsible for reimbursing the grandparent’s travel

and hotel costs.

DATED this 12" day of February 2023.

DATED this

day of

Pursuant to NRS 53.045, I declare under penalty of
perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

/s/ -.Zf/;fér’)'/y (}/Af/(’
Kimberly White

10461 Hartford Hills Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89166
702-982-0191

Kwhite writer@hotmail.com

20

E

{signature)

Tamika B Jones

Page 2 of 2
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Electronically File
03:/29/2023 2:17 D

s h s

CLERK OF THE COUR
FFCL
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, Case No.: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. §
PLAINTIFF,

V.
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
DEFENDANT,
V.
KIMBERLY WHITE,

INTERVENQCR.

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order

This matter came on for an evidentiary hearing regarding grandparent’s visitation,
Plaintift, Tamika Jones (hereinafter, “Plaintitf,” “Mom,” or “Tamika™)} appeared via BlueJeans
with her counsel of record, Mark McGannon, Esq. Intervener, Kimberly White (hereinafter,

T G

“Intervenor,” “Paternal Grandmother,” or “Kimberly”) appeared via BlueJeans selt-

represented.

The Court held an evidentiary hearing on February 03, 2023, at 9:00 AM. The Court
heard arguments of counscl and tecstimony of the partics. No exhibits were introduced or
admitted at trial. The Court, having heard the testimony of parties and other papers and

pleadings on file herein, and for good causc appearing now finds and orders as follows:

|

Statistically closeq:mR-FAM-Judgment Reached {Bench Trial) {Close Casq
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I. FINDINGS OF FACT

l.

This case mvolves three minor children: XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20,
2011 (age 11); XAIA JUDSON, born August 13, 2015 (age 7); and XIONNE
JUDSON, born May 3, 2019 (age 3).

Neither party disputes the jurisdiction of this Court to enter visitation orders regarding
the children in this case.None of the parties or the children were in Nevada at the time
of the hearing. Parents and children live in Michigan. Paternal grandmother was in
California but lives in Nevada.

Kimberly testified and introduced no exhibits. Tamika testified and introduced no
exhibits.

This case was initiated on August 12, 2019, when Tamika filed a Complaint for
Custody. The children’s father, Christopher Judson, filed an Answer on September 06,
2019.

a. At the hearing on September 19, 2019, the Court ordered per the parties’
stipulation that the parties would share joint legal custody and joint physical
custody of the minor children. Order filed Oct. 24, 2019.

b. At the hearing on December 05, 2019, as relevant here the Court ordered that
Tamika shall get Christopher’s permission or a Court order to relocate out of
state. Order filed Feb. 05, 2020.

¢. On December 19, 2019, Tamika filed a Motion for Permission to Relocate
Immediately, for Temporary Sole Physical Custody, and Related Relief.
However, the hearing and motion were vacated as Tamika failed to properly

serve Christopher with the motion.
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d.

At the return hearing on April 15, 2020, Tamika indicated that the parties had an
agreement regarding custody. However, Christopher was not present to confirm
the agreement. The Court referred the parties to mediation to place their
agreement in writing. However, mediation did not place because the parties
failed to appear.

On July 15, 2020, Kimberly filed a Motion to Intervene that included requests
for sole legal and primary physical custody of the children and thard party
visitation. Neither party filed an opposition or was present for the hearing on the
motion set for August 05, 2020. Kimberly was sworn in and testitied that she
believed that Tamika had fled to Michigan with the children and that she was
the children’s care taker. The Court granted Kimberly’s request to intervene,
granted Kimberly grandparent’s visitation, and indicated that a pick up ordered
would be 1ssued if necessary to bring the children back to Nevada. Order filed
Sep. 14, 2020.

Tamika and Kimberly were present for the hearing on August 31, 2020,
Christopher was not present. Tamika indicated that she and Christopher reside
together in Las Vegas. The parents and Kimberly were referred to mediation
regarding grandparent visitation and Kimberly was awarded temporary
grandparent visitation. Order filed Sep. 14, 2020.

On December 08, 2020, Kimberly filed a Motion to Enforce Visitation Order,
Motion for Contempt, Motion for Pick Up Order and Attorney’s Fees and Costs.
Neither parent was present for the motion hearing on February 24, 2021. The

court ordered that temporarily, Kimberly would have telephone contact with the
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children on Tuesdays and Thursdays and that if Tamika were to reside in
Michigan that Kimberly would receive visits for Spring Break, 2-3 weeks in the
summer, and one week in Winter Break. Further, a Pick Up Order would be
issued to effectuate visitation if necessary. Order filed Mar. 29, 2021. An Order
for Return of Children was filed on March 30, 2021.

On November 18, 2021, Tamika filed Motion to Stay for Return to Children. On
January 01, 2021, Kimberly filed an Opposition and Countermotion for an
Order to Show Cause. Tamika filed an Opposition to the Countermotion for an
Order to Show Cause on January 19, 2022. The hearing on the motion took
place on January 20, 2022, The Court reinforced that the Court was not
considering custody to Kimberly, only visitation. The hearing was continued to
the next day on January 21, 2022.

All parties appeared for the January 21, 2022 Hearing. Christopher was sworn
and testified and gave his permission for the children to relocate to Michigan
with Tamika. The Court ordered that temporarily, Kimberly would have
telephone contact with the children on Tuesday and Thursday at 6:00 PM or
6:30 PM Michigan time. Temporarily, Kimberly would have visitation with
children for 2-3 weeks in the summer, one week spring and one week in the
winter. The Court ordered for Xy’ Shone and Xaia to return to Michigan and an
evidentiary hearing regarding visitation was set for July 22, 2022. Order filed
Jan. 25, 2022,

On June 16, 2022, the Court heard Tamika’s request to continue the evidentiary

hearing. The hearing was continued to February 03, 2023. The Court again
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6.

clarified that a request for custody by Kimberly would not be considered in this
case. She would be required to file a new case for custody. Order filed Sep. 14,
2022.
The Court clarified that the burden was on Kimberly as the party petitioning for
grandparent’s visitation because at the beginning of trial she indicated several times
that the burden was on Tamika and that Tamika’s counsel requested trial.
Tamika most recently alleged that Christopher 1s not the children’s biological father.
However, Christopher is listed as the father on the children’s birth certificate. See
Tamika’s Complaint filed Aug. 12, 2019. Christopher is presumed to be the children’s
father and no evidence was presented to rebut the presumption.
Tamika 1s the children’s biological mother. Christopher is the children’s legal father.
Kimberly i1s Christopher’s mother and the children’s paternal grandmother.
At trial, Tamika and the children resided 1in Michigan. At trial, Kimberly appeared from
California and indicated that she had been released from the hospital there the day prior
to trial but that she lives in Nevada. Kimberly seemed to believe that the trial was based
upon Tamika’s request; however, the trial was set based upon Kimberly’s request for
grandparent visitation.
When the children return from visits with Kimberly, there often follows investigations
by CPS in Nevada and Michigan. However, none of the allegations of neglect and
abuse against Tamika were substantiated. After January 2022, Kimberly contacted the
Family Mediation Center and made allegations of abuse. Kimberly denied calling CPS

regarding abuse by Tamika.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The level of conflict between the parties 1s high. Although Kimberly verbahized that she
did not have animosity towards Tamika, her court pleadings and actions clearly show
otherwise. Kimberly tried to use the judicial process to usurp control over the children
from both parents. The Court clarified on multiple occasions that custody would not be
considered in this case. Kimberly filed a writ concerning the Court’s decision regarding
custody to the Nevada Court of Appeals; her writ was denied. Kimberly characterized
the conflict between the parties as one sided; however, it is clear the parties mutually
dislike each other. Kimberly frequently indicated that the parents “abducted” their own
children. Kimberly’s characterization of Tamika’s relationship and actions with her
own children have caused conflict in the parties’ relationship.

Kimberly and Tamika met in 2011. At that time, Tamika began residing with
Christopher at Kimberly’s house in Michigan. Tamika was pregnant with Xyshone at
that time.

Kimberly eventually moved to Las Vegas in 2013 and Tamika, Christopher, and
Xyshone also moved to Las Vegas. Tamika and Christopher eventually had Xaia in
2015 and Xionne in 2019.

The parents and children lived in Kimberly's home periodically until 2019. There were
periods where the parents would get their own housing; however, more often than not
lived with Kimberly. Even when the parents did not live in the home, the children spent
a significant of time at Kimberly’s home because Kimberly's mother and father
watched the children while the parents worked.

Kimberly provided for Tamika, Christopher, and the children while the parties lived

together. Kimberly helped care for the children. She provided transportation, food and
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

housing for Christopher, Tamika, and the children. Additionally, Kimberly was an
active participant in the children’s education; she provided transportation to school.
Kimberly's mother, whom also lived in the home, helped the children with their
schoolwork. Kimberly’s father also lived in the home with the children.

When Xyshone first entered school, Kimberly paid for him to attend private school at
Challenger School. Kimberly and Tamika both enrolled the child for school there.
Kimberly's mother and father also have a close and bonded relationship with the
children.

When Tamika moved out of Kimberly’s home in 2019, the children also moved out of
Kimberly’s home; however, Kimberly still saw the children frequently. She assisted
Tamika with transporting the children to school and saw the children 4-5 times a week.
Kimberly and Christopher have a poor relationship and do not speak to each other.
Kimberly has not spoken to him for over a year.

Kimberly has not spoken to Tamika for over a year. However, the parties previously
had a good relationship. Tamika considered Kimberly to be her “second mother™.
Tamika does not want Kimberly to have visitation with the children and does not
believe that it is in their best interest.

After Kimberly completed her direct testimony, Tamika’s attorney made an oral
motion for directed verdict and alleged that Kimberly failed to provide evidence to
rebut the presumption that granting her a right to visitation and that her visitation was
not in the best interests of the child. The Court denied the motion. “[A] directed verdict
may be entered when the evidence is so overwhelming for one party that any other

verdict would be contrary to the law.” Grosjean v. Imperial Palace, Inc., 125 Nev. 349,
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22.

23.

24.

25.

362,212 P.3d 1068, 1077 (2009). During the pendency of the case, the Court granted
Kimberly temporary visitation pending trial. The Court indicated that the Court would
make a decision after a full discussion. Tamika’s attorney again requested a directed
verdict after cross-examining Kimberly. The request was again denied.

Tamika and the children moved to Michigan in November 2020 where they currently
reside. Christopher was last known to have resided in Las Vegas, Nevada. The parties
had an understanding that Tamika would relocate to Michigan in November 2020 while
Christopher continued to reside in Nevada. This was corroborated by Christopher at the
hearing on January 21, 2022.

From the period of 2020 to March 2022, Xyshone and Xaia resided with Kimberly from
November 2021 {per the pick-up order issued by the Court) until Jannary 2022 (when
the Court ordered that children be returned to Tamika in Michigan). Kimberly refused
to allow Tamika telephone or video contact with Xyshone and Xaia when they resided
with her. Kimberly got a TPO issued against Tamika in December 2021 that was
eventually dissolved (T-21-219814-T). The Hearing Master found “The court had
issued a temporary order on allegations of harassment. [Tamika] contends that her
etforts to contact [Kimberly] related to her bona tide interest in having contact with her
children, and therefore does not constitute harassment. The court agrees.” Order filed
Jan. 10, 2022,

Kimberly did not see Xionne from 2020 to March 2022.

From March 2022 to November 2022, the parties followed the Court’s temporary

visitation orders.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Kimberly has not seen any of the children since July 2022. She last had phone contact
with the children in November 2022. She did not reach out toTamika regarding the
temporary visitation and telephone contact ordered by the Court. Kimberly allowed her
mother to have phone calls with the children beginning in November 2022.

There are no significant issues related to Kimberly’s mental and physical health, She
indicated she had to have an emergency appendectomy but was otherwise healthy.
Kimberly 1s employed full-time as a Nurse Practitioner at Intermountain Healthcare.
She has a doctor degree in nursing.

Xaia fears coming to Las Vegas. She recently has been acting out behaviorally in
school. Tamika has nightmares that Kimberly will try to take her children. She believes
that children are also having nightmares because they are afraid the Kimberly will try to
take them from Tamika. Tamika currently takes Lexapro for anxiety and depression.
She did not experience anxiety and depression prior to the children coming to Las
Vegas with Kimberly on a pick up order.

Tamika does not believe that visitation between Kimberly and the children are in their
best interests. From November 2021 to January 2022, Kimberly did not allow Tamika
to speak to the children even though Tamika attempted to do so. Kimberly did not
allow Tamika to speak to the children for Christmas and other holidays during that
time. Further, Tamika does not like that Kimberly has transported the children by car
for transportation while the last court ordered required Kimberly to previde
transportation by plane and provide the itinerary to her.

The court is aware that the parents agree in denying visits to Kimberly.
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II. ANALYSIS & CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Visitation

NRS 125C.050 Petition for right of visitation for certain relatives and
other persons.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, if a parent of an unmarried
minor child:

(a) Is deceased;

(b) Is divorced or separated from the parent who has custody of the child;

{c) Has never been legally married to the other parent of the child, but
cohabitated with the other parent and is deceased or is separated from the other
parent; or

{(d) Has relinquished his or her parental rights or his or her parental rights
have been terminated,
the district court in the county in which the child resides may grant to the great-
grandparents and grandparents of the child and to other children of either parent
of the child a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority.

2. Ifthe child has resided with a person with whom the child has established
a meaningful relationship, the district court in the county in which the child
resides also may grant to that person a reasonable right to visit the child during
the child’s minority, regardless of whether the person 1s related to the child.

3. A party may seek a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s
minority pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 only if a parent of the child has denied or
unreasonably restricted visits with the child.

4. If a parent of the child has denied or unreasonably restricted visits with
the child, there is a rebuttable presumption that the granting of a right to visitation
to a party seeking visitation is not in the best interests of the child. To rebut this
presumption, the party seeking visitation must prove by clear and convincing
evidence that it is in the best interests of the child to grant visitation.

5. The court may grant a party seeking visitation pursuant to subsection 1
or 2 a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority only if the
court finds that the party seeking visitation has rebutted the presumption
established in subsection 4.

6. In determining whether the party seeking visitation has rebutted the
presumption established in subsection 4, the court shall consider:

(a) The love, affection and other emotional ties existing between the party
seeking visitation and the child.

(b} The capacity and disposition of the party seeking visitation to:

(1) Give the child love, affection and guidance and serve as a role model
to the child;

(2} Coopcrate in providing the child with food, clothing and other
material needs during visitation; and

(3) Cooperate in providing the child with health care or alternative care
recognized and permitted under the laws of this State in lieu of health care.

10
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(c) The prior relationship between the child and the party seeking visitation,
including, without limitation, whether the child resided with the party seeking
visitation and whether the child was included in holidays and family gatherings
with the party seeking visitation.

(d} The moral fitness of the party seeking visitation.

(e) The mental and physical health of the party seeking visitation.

{f) The reasonable preference of the child, if the child has a preference, and
if the child is determined to be of sufficient maturity to express a preference.

(g} The willingness and ability of the party seeking visitation to facilitate and
encourage a close and continuing relationship between the child and the parent or
parents of the child as well as with other relatives of the child.

(h) The medical and other needs of the child related to health as affected by
the visitation.

(1} The support provided by the party seeking visitation, including, without
limitation, whether the party has contributed to the financial support of the child.

(i) Any other factor arising solely from the facts and circumstances of the
particular dispute that specifically pertains to the need for granting a right to
visitation pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 against the wishes of a parent of the child.

NRS 125C.050 does not explicitly require an independent action, and thus, a motion
filed within the existing custody action is sufficient. However, a party seeking grandparent
visitation must have intervened or joined in custody actions between the parents in order to for
the court to have jurisdiction to award grandparent visitation. /nlow v. Fifth Judicial Dist.

Court of State ex rel. Cnty. of Nye, 132 Nev. 983 (2016).

[1]f a parent has denied visitation with the child, there is a rebuttable presumption
that granting visitation to the petitioners is not in the child's best interest. NRS
125C.050(4). And to rebut this presumption, the petitioners must demonstrate by
clear and convincing evidence that it is in the best interest of the child to grant
visitation. When determining whether the petitioners have rebutted the
presumption, the district court shall consider the factors enumerated in NRS

125C.050(6).

Colt v. Plummer, 82662-COA, 2022 WL 214003, at *2 (Nev. App. Jan. 24,
2022)

The Court permitted Kimberly to intervene 1n this action regarding visitation only.

11
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During the evidentiary hearing, Tamika testified that the children visiting Kimberly was
not in their best interests.

Under NRS 125C.050 (1) — (2) thus Court may grant Kimberly a reasonable right of
visitation with the children. Kimberly is presumed to be children’s paternal grandmother.
Further, the children and Kimberly have a meaningful relationship and have resided together in
the past.

The love, affection and other emotional ties existing between the party seeking
visitation and the child; the capacity and disposition of the party seeking visitation to: give
the child love, affection and guidance and serve as a role model to the child, cooperate in
providing the child with food, clothing and other material needs during visitation, and
cooperate in providing the child with health care or alternative care recognized and
permitted under the laws of this State in lieu of health care; the prior relationship bebveen
the child and the party seeking visitation; and support provided by the party seeking
visitation, including, without limitation, whether the party has contributed to the financial
support of the child:.

Tamika disputed that the children were presently bonded to Kimberly. However, the
evidence suggests that love, affection, and other emotional ties exist between Kimberly and the
children. Kimberly provided a home for the children and helped care for educational and
emotions needs when the parents lived in her home. Further, Kimberly is employed and able to
provide the children food, clothing, and other material needs during visitation. Kimberly
provided for Xyshone’s financial needs by paying for private school education when he first

began school. Kimberly helped the parents by providing housing, transportation and food. The

children’s care with Kimberly is not the issue in this case.

These factors favor visitation to Kimberly.

The moral fitness of the party seeking visitation; the mental and physical health of
the party seeking visitation:

12
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There was no testimony at trial that Kimberly was morally unfit or had any mental
health or physical issues.

These factors favor visitation to Kimberly.

The reasonable preference of the child, if the child has a preference, and if the child
is determined to be of sufficient maturity to express a preference:

The children did not testify. They are not of sufficient age and maturity to express a

preference.

This factor is not applicable.

The willingness and ability of the party seeking visitation to facilitate and encourage
a close and continuing relationship between the child and the parent or parents of the child
as well as with other relatives of the child:

The primary issues in this care are tThe bad feelings are between the adults and
Kimberly over stepping her position as a grandmother and not the parent. Although Kimberly
indicated that that she does not have animosity towards Tamika; that she would do anything for
the parents, the evidence suggests that the parties mutually do not like each other. Kimberly
tried to usurp parental responsibility from Tamika which increased their contlict. Kimberly
refused to allow Tamika to speak to her Xyshone and Xaia while they were residing with her

from November 2021 to January 2022. This demonstrates that Kimberly does not have the

willingness to encourage the children’s relationship with their mother.

This factor docs not favor visitation to Kimberly.,

The medical and other needs of the child related to health as affected by the

visitation:

13
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The children do not have any medical needs that would affect visitation,

This factor 1s neutral.

Any other factor arising solely from the facts and circumstances of the particular
dispute that specifically pertains to the need for granting a right to visitation pursuant to
subsection 1 or 2 against the wishes of a parent of the child.

There is substantial conflict between Kimberly and the parents. Kimberly does not have
a good relationship with her son, Christopher, and had not spoken to him in over a year.
Kimberly does not have good relationship with Tamika due the ongoing litigation and related
1ssues.

This other factor does not favor visitation to Kimberly.

There is a rebuttal presumption that visitation is not in the children’s best interests.
Kimberly has the burden to overcome that presumption by clear and convincing evidence.

Most of the factors favor visitation between Kimberly and the children and the Court
remains concern regarding the level of conflict between Kimberly and the parents. However,
there are many ways in which visitation between Kimberly and the children would facilitate
their best interest. There are significant emotional ties between Kimberly and the children.
Kimberly improperly tried to usurp parental responsibility from Tamika; however, she whole
heartedly but also imprudently did so because she believed she was protecting the children in
some way.

The children have resided in Michigan with Tamika since November 2020. The
children appear apprehensive about returning to Nevada for visitation. However, the evidence
does suggest that it would be in their best interests to maintain some relationship with

Kimberly. Christopher does not appear to be actively involved in the children’s lives and the

14
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children would benefit by being able to maintain a consistent relationship with a paternal
relative.

Kimberly 1s granted visitation with the children on Labor Day and Memorial Day
weekends of each year. All visitation is to occur in Michigan where the children reside.
Kimberly shall not travel 100 miles outside of Ferndale, Michigan for visitation and shall not
leave the state for visitation. Visitation begins Friday evening at 6:00 PM EST and ends
Sunday at 6:00 PM EST. The children shall call Tamika at 10:00 AM EST on Saturday and
Sunday during Kimberly’s visitation. The parties may agree in writing if they wish for
Kimberly’s parents to also participate in visitation.

The parties may also agree in writing to additional visitation between Kimberly and the
children. The Court encourages the parties to do so as conflict between Kimberly and Tamika
hopefully will decrease as litigation ends.

Kimberly is granted telephone/video contact with the children every Sunday at 6:00 PM
EST. Kimberly is also granted telephone/video communication with the children on their
birthdays, Christmas, New Year each year. The phone contact shall be at least ten (10} minutes
in length. The children may call Kimberly as they freely desire.

Attormmev’s Fees

The parties shall bare the costs of their own attorney’s fees.

15
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ITI. ORDERS

Based on the foregoing Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, the Court enters the
tollowing orders:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Intervenor, Kimberly White, shall be granted
visitation with Xyshone Judson (borm 11/20/2011), Xaia Judson {(born 08/13/2015) and Xionne

Judson (born 05/03/2019) as follows:

Kimberly shall be granted visitation with the children on Labor Day and Memorial
Day weekends of each year. All visitation shall occur in Michigan where the children reside.
Kimberly shall not travel 100 miles outside of Ferndale, Michigan for visitation and shall not
leave the state for visitation. Visitation shall begin Friday evening at 6:00 PM EST and end
Sunday at 6:00 PM EST. The children shall call Tamika at 10:00 AM EST on Saturday and
Sunday during Kimberly’s visitation. The parties may agree in writing on Talking Parents if
they wish for Kimberly’s parents to also participate in visitation. The parties may also agree in
writing to additional visitation on Talking Parents. The children’s exchanges shall take place at

the police station where the children were exchanged prior.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Kimberly shall be granted
telephone/video/Skype/FaceTime contact with the children every Sunday at 6:00 PM EST.
Kimberly shall also be granted telephone/video/Skype/FaceTime communication with the
children on their birthdays, Christmas, and New Year's Day each year at 6:00 PM EST. The
contact shall bc at lcast ten (10) minutes 1n length, Kimberly shall imtiate the contact, The

children may call Kimberly as they freely desire.

16
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Kimberly and Tamika shall register for Talking
Parents and use the app to communicate regarding the children. Communication is limited to

once a week. The parties may only call or text each other regarding emergencies.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the following behavior order provisions shall apply
to all parties and they are put on netice the violations of these provisions may result in fines

and/or jail time:

1. No abusive contact (foul language, name calling, etc.) including telephone calls,
voicemails, letters, email, texts, all forms of social media, etc., to the other party or to the

children.

LIS

2. Avoid any unnecessary contact with the other party’s “significant other” and friends

not in common with you and do not initiate conflicts with them.

3. No unnecessary contact with other people associated with or to the other party for
purposes of discussing court proceedings or making negative/disparaging allegations against

the other party (this includes all forms of social media).

4. You will advise all of your friends, relatives and “significant other” not to disparage,
criticize or harass the other party, and that co-parenting requires facilitating a positive
relationship with the other party and that you may be sanctioned if the Court finds that you are

knowingly allowing them to violate the Behavior Order.

5. No harassment at the other party’s place(s) of employment, including contacting the
employer to make negative or disparaging allegations; or to send or drop off evidence as it

relates to these court proceedings that appears reasonably designed to put them, or likely to put

17
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them in a bad light or to get them fired, or to have them suffer negative consequences as a

result.

6. No providing copies of unsolicited documents (personal letters, court pleadings,
emails, texts, etc.) to anyone associated with a party (significant others, family members,
neighbors, employers, etc.) for the intended purpose of shedding the other party in a negative

light.

7. Neither party shall post, nor shall you allow significant others or family members on
social media to post, including, but not limited to, Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram,
TikTok, LinkedIn, Tumblr, and Google+, any negative or disparaging allegation against or

negative image of the other party or anyone associated with the other party.

8. Pursnant to EDCR 5.301, you will not discuss any of the court issues or proceedings
with the minor children; this includes showing them any part of the pleadings or
attachments/exhibits (including audio and video) thereto; you will take every precaution to

secure coples of pleadings safely away from the eyes of the children at all times.

9. Neither party shall interrogate the children as to the activities or events at the other
party’s residence, etc., and shall try to respect and not interfere with the children’s privacy and
relationship with the other party; do not place the children in a loyalty bind between yourself

and the other party.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND THE PARTIES ARE PUT ON NOTICE that
they arc subject to the requirements of NRS 125C.0045(6) and NRS 125C.0045(7.)

PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE ABDUCTION,
CONCEALMENT OR DETENTION OF A CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THIS
ORDER IS PUNISHABLE AS A CATEGORY D FELONY AS PROVIDED
IN NRS 193.190. NRS 200.359 provides that every person having a limited

18
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right of custody to a child or any parent having no right of custody to the child
who willfully detains, conceals or removes the child from a parent, guardian or
other person having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child in
violation of an order of this court, or removes the child from jurisdiction of the
court without the consent of either the court or all persons who have the right to
custody or visitation is subject to being punished for a category D felony as
provided in NRS 193.130.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
Dated this 29th day of March, 2023

e

FDA FO06 011F 3080
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge

19
1164




20

21

22

23

24

26

27

28

CSERY

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment was served via the
court’s electronic eFile system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled

case as listed below:

Service Date: 3/29/2023

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark@@mecgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean{@mcgannonlawoftice.com
Julio Vigoreaux Jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staft efile@mcgannonlawoftice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
Kimberly White kwhite writer@hotmail.com

It indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last

known addresses on 3/30/2023
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Hlhan Tindall

Mark McGannon

8447 Sequoia Grove AVE
Las Vegas, NV, 89149

3838 Raymert DR STE 20
Las Vegas, NV, 89121

McGannon Law Oftice, P.C.

7495 W. Azure Drive, Suite 110
Las Vegas, NV, 89130
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Electronically Filed
3/30/2023 9:48 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
NOE &«mﬁ EL’“‘"""

MARK J. McGANNON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 005419

McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320

Las Vegas, NV 89149

Telephone: (702) 888-6606

Facsimile: (725) 502-2376

E-mail: mark{@megannonlawoffice.com
Unbundled Attorney for Plaintift

DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, CASE NO.: D-19-594413-C

PLAINTIFF,
DEPT NO.: S

V.

)
)
)
)
)
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON, )
DEFENDANT, ; NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

)

)

)

)

V.

KIMBERLY WHITE,
INTERVENOR.

Please take notice that Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order were duly
entered in the above referenced case on the 29" day of March 2023, a copy of which is attached

hereto and by reference fully incorporated herein.

Dated this 29" day of March 2023. /s/ Mark J. McGannon
Mark J. McGannon, Esq.
Nevada Bar No.: 5419
McGANNON LAW OFFICE, P.C.
5550 Painted Mirage Rd., Suite 320
Las Vegas, NV 89149

1167

Case Number: D-19-594413-C




FoO VS T

WO =] ~1 == Lh

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of the law office of MCGANNON LAW
OFFICE, P.C. that service of the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was made on this
30™ day of March, 2023, pursuant to the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules
(NEFCR}, EDCR 5.206, and EDCR Part VIII, ef seq., by electronic service via the Court’s E-
Filing System, or if not on the service list by depositing the same in the United States Mail in Las

Vegas, Nevada, postage paid addressed as follows:

ATTORNEY/PARTIES EMAIL

KIMBERLY WHITE, Email: kwhite writer(@hotmail.com
INTERVENOR
Christopher Judson

1309 N 22" Street #3
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Defendant

24 Mark J McGannon

An employee or agent of MCGANNON LAW
OFFICE, P.C.
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
3/29/2023 2:26 PM Electronically File
03:/29/2023 2:17 D

s h s

CLERK OF THE COUR
FFCL
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TAMIKA BEATRICE JONES, Case No.: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. §
PLAINTIFF,

V.
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES JUDSON,
DEFENDANT,
V.
KIMBERLY WHITE,

INTERVENQCR.

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order

This matter came on for an evidentiary hearing regarding grandparent’s visitation,
Plaintift, Tamika Jones (hereinafter, “Plaintitf,” “Mom,” or “Tamika™)} appeared via BlueJeans
with her counsel of record, Mark McGannon, Esq. Intervener, Kimberly White (hereinafter,

T G

“Intervenor,” “Paternal Grandmother,” or “Kimberly”) appeared via BlueJeans selt-

represented.

The Court held an evidentiary hearing on February 03, 2023, at 9:00 AM. The Court
heard arguments of counscl and tecstimony of the partics. No exhibits were introduced or
admitted at trial. The Court, having heard the testimony of parties and other papers and

pleadings on file herein, and for good causc appearing now finds and orders as follows:

L
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I. FINDINGS OF FACT

l.

This case mvolves three minor children: XYSHONE JUDSON, born November 20,
2011 (age 11); XAIA JUDSON, born August 13, 2015 (age 7); and XIONNE
JUDSON, born May 3, 2019 (age 3).

Neither party disputes the jurisdiction of this Court to enter visitation orders regarding
the children in this case.None of the parties or the children were in Nevada at the time
of the hearing. Parents and children live in Michigan. Paternal grandmother was in
California but lives in Nevada.

Kimberly testified and introduced no exhibits. Tamika testified and introduced no
exhibits.

This case was initiated on August 12, 2019, when Tamika filed a Complaint for
Custody. The children’s father, Christopher Judson, filed an Answer on September 06,
2019.

a. At the hearing on September 19, 2019, the Court ordered per the parties’
stipulation that the parties would share joint legal custody and joint physical
custody of the minor children. Order filed Oct. 24, 2019.

b. At the hearing on December 05, 2019, as relevant here the Court ordered that
Tamika shall get Christopher’s permission or a Court order to relocate out of
state. Order filed Feb. 05, 2020.

¢. On December 19, 2019, Tamika filed a Motion for Permission to Relocate
Immediately, for Temporary Sole Physical Custody, and Related Relief.
However, the hearing and motion were vacated as Tamika failed to properly

serve Christopher with the motion.

1170




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

VINCESNT O HO
LASTRILT [TNRGT
FarIly DIVESION, TIRET 5
Fan STUAN MY syl 88

d.

At the return hearing on April 15, 2020, Tamika indicated that the parties had an
agreement regarding custody. However, Christopher was not present to confirm
the agreement. The Court referred the parties to mediation to place their
agreement in writing. However, mediation did not place because the parties
failed to appear.

On July 15, 2020, Kimberly filed a Motion to Intervene that included requests
for sole legal and primary physical custody of the children and thard party
visitation. Neither party filed an opposition or was present for the hearing on the
motion set for August 05, 2020. Kimberly was sworn in and testitied that she
believed that Tamika had fled to Michigan with the children and that she was
the children’s care taker. The Court granted Kimberly’s request to intervene,
granted Kimberly grandparent’s visitation, and indicated that a pick up ordered
would be 1ssued if necessary to bring the children back to Nevada. Order filed
Sep. 14, 2020.

Tamika and Kimberly were present for the hearing on August 31, 2020,
Christopher was not present. Tamika indicated that she and Christopher reside
together in Las Vegas. The parents and Kimberly were referred to mediation
regarding grandparent visitation and Kimberly was awarded temporary
grandparent visitation. Order filed Sep. 14, 2020.

On December 08, 2020, Kimberly filed a Motion to Enforce Visitation Order,
Motion for Contempt, Motion for Pick Up Order and Attorney’s Fees and Costs.
Neither parent was present for the motion hearing on February 24, 2021. The

court ordered that temporarily, Kimberly would have telephone contact with the
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children on Tuesdays and Thursdays and that if Tamika were to reside in
Michigan that Kimberly would receive visits for Spring Break, 2-3 weeks in the
summer, and one week in Winter Break. Further, a Pick Up Order would be
issued to effectuate visitation if necessary. Order filed Mar. 29, 2021. An Order
for Return of Children was filed on March 30, 2021.

On November 18, 2021, Tamika filed Motion to Stay for Return to Children. On
January 01, 2021, Kimberly filed an Opposition and Countermotion for an
Order to Show Cause. Tamika filed an Opposition to the Countermotion for an
Order to Show Cause on January 19, 2022. The hearing on the motion took
place on January 20, 2022, The Court reinforced that the Court was not
considering custody to Kimberly, only visitation. The hearing was continued to
the next day on January 21, 2022.

All parties appeared for the January 21, 2022 Hearing. Christopher was sworn
and testified and gave his permission for the children to relocate to Michigan
with Tamika. The Court ordered that temporarily, Kimberly would have
telephone contact with the children on Tuesday and Thursday at 6:00 PM or
6:30 PM Michigan time. Temporarily, Kimberly would have visitation with
children for 2-3 weeks in the summer, one week spring and one week in the
winter. The Court ordered for Xy’ Shone and Xaia to return to Michigan and an
evidentiary hearing regarding visitation was set for July 22, 2022. Order filed
Jan. 25, 2022,

On June 16, 2022, the Court heard Tamika’s request to continue the evidentiary

hearing. The hearing was continued to February 03, 2023. The Court again
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6.

clarified that a request for custody by Kimberly would not be considered in this
case. She would be required to file a new case for custody. Order filed Sep. 14,
2022.
The Court clarified that the burden was on Kimberly as the party petitioning for
grandparent’s visitation because at the beginning of trial she indicated several times
that the burden was on Tamika and that Tamika’s counsel requested trial.
Tamika most recently alleged that Christopher 1s not the children’s biological father.
However, Christopher is listed as the father on the children’s birth certificate. See
Tamika’s Complaint filed Aug. 12, 2019. Christopher is presumed to be the children’s
father and no evidence was presented to rebut the presumption.
Tamika 1s the children’s biological mother. Christopher is the children’s legal father.
Kimberly i1s Christopher’s mother and the children’s paternal grandmother.
At trial, Tamika and the children resided 1in Michigan. At trial, Kimberly appeared from
California and indicated that she had been released from the hospital there the day prior
to trial but that she lives in Nevada. Kimberly seemed to believe that the trial was based
upon Tamika’s request; however, the trial was set based upon Kimberly’s request for
grandparent visitation.
When the children return from visits with Kimberly, there often follows investigations
by CPS in Nevada and Michigan. However, none of the allegations of neglect and
abuse against Tamika were substantiated. After January 2022, Kimberly contacted the
Family Mediation Center and made allegations of abuse. Kimberly denied calling CPS

regarding abuse by Tamika.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The level of conflict between the parties 1s high. Although Kimberly verbahized that she
did not have animosity towards Tamika, her court pleadings and actions clearly show
otherwise. Kimberly tried to use the judicial process to usurp control over the children
from both parents. The Court clarified on multiple occasions that custody would not be
considered in this case. Kimberly filed a writ concerning the Court’s decision regarding
custody to the Nevada Court of Appeals; her writ was denied. Kimberly characterized
the conflict between the parties as one sided; however, it is clear the parties mutually
dislike each other. Kimberly frequently indicated that the parents “abducted” their own
children. Kimberly’s characterization of Tamika’s relationship and actions with her
own children have caused conflict in the parties’ relationship.

Kimberly and Tamika met in 2011. At that time, Tamika began residing with
Christopher at Kimberly’s house in Michigan. Tamika was pregnant with Xyshone at
that time.

Kimberly eventually moved to Las Vegas in 2013 and Tamika, Christopher, and
Xyshone also moved to Las Vegas. Tamika and Christopher eventually had Xaia in
2015 and Xionne in 2019.

The parents and children lived in Kimberly's home periodically until 2019. There were
periods where the parents would get their own housing; however, more often than not
lived with Kimberly. Even when the parents did not live in the home, the children spent
a significant of time at Kimberly’s home because Kimberly's mother and father
watched the children while the parents worked.

Kimberly provided for Tamika, Christopher, and the children while the parties lived

together. Kimberly helped care for the children. She provided transportation, food and
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

housing for Christopher, Tamika, and the children. Additionally, Kimberly was an
active participant in the children’s education; she provided transportation to school.
Kimberly's mother, whom also lived in the home, helped the children with their
schoolwork. Kimberly’s father also lived in the home with the children.

When Xyshone first entered school, Kimberly paid for him to attend private school at
Challenger School. Kimberly and Tamika both enrolled the child for school there.
Kimberly's mother and father also have a close and bonded relationship with the
children.

When Tamika moved out of Kimberly’s home in 2019, the children also moved out of
Kimberly’s home; however, Kimberly still saw the children frequently. She assisted
Tamika with transporting the children to school and saw the children 4-5 times a week.
Kimberly and Christopher have a poor relationship and do not speak to each other.
Kimberly has not spoken to him for over a year.

Kimberly has not spoken to Tamika for over a year. However, the parties previously
had a good relationship. Tamika considered Kimberly to be her “second mother™.
Tamika does not want Kimberly to have visitation with the children and does not
believe that it is in their best interest.

After Kimberly completed her direct testimony, Tamika’s attorney made an oral
motion for directed verdict and alleged that Kimberly failed to provide evidence to
rebut the presumption that granting her a right to visitation and that her visitation was
not in the best interests of the child. The Court denied the motion. “[A] directed verdict
may be entered when the evidence is so overwhelming for one party that any other

verdict would be contrary to the law.” Grosjean v. Imperial Palace, Inc., 125 Nev. 349,
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22.

23.

24.

25.

362,212 P.3d 1068, 1077 (2009). During the pendency of the case, the Court granted
Kimberly temporary visitation pending trial. The Court indicated that the Court would
make a decision after a full discussion. Tamika’s attorney again requested a directed
verdict after cross-examining Kimberly. The request was again denied.

Tamika and the children moved to Michigan in November 2020 where they currently
reside. Christopher was last known to have resided in Las Vegas, Nevada. The parties
had an understanding that Tamika would relocate to Michigan in November 2020 while
Christopher continued to reside in Nevada. This was corroborated by Christopher at the
hearing on January 21, 2022.

From the period of 2020 to March 2022, Xyshone and Xaia resided with Kimberly from
November 2021 {per the pick-up order issued by the Court) until Jannary 2022 (when
the Court ordered that children be returned to Tamika in Michigan). Kimberly refused
to allow Tamika telephone or video contact with Xyshone and Xaia when they resided
with her. Kimberly got a TPO issued against Tamika in December 2021 that was
eventually dissolved (T-21-219814-T). The Hearing Master found “The court had
issued a temporary order on allegations of harassment. [Tamika] contends that her
etforts to contact [Kimberly] related to her bona tide interest in having contact with her
children, and therefore does not constitute harassment. The court agrees.” Order filed
Jan. 10, 2022,

Kimberly did not see Xionne from 2020 to March 2022.

From March 2022 to November 2022, the parties followed the Court’s temporary

visitation orders.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Kimberly has not seen any of the children since July 2022. She last had phone contact
with the children in November 2022. She did not reach out toTamika regarding the
temporary visitation and telephone contact ordered by the Court. Kimberly allowed her
mother to have phone calls with the children beginning in November 2022.

There are no significant issues related to Kimberly’s mental and physical health, She
indicated she had to have an emergency appendectomy but was otherwise healthy.
Kimberly 1s employed full-time as a Nurse Practitioner at Intermountain Healthcare.
She has a doctor degree in nursing.

Xaia fears coming to Las Vegas. She recently has been acting out behaviorally in
school. Tamika has nightmares that Kimberly will try to take her children. She believes
that children are also having nightmares because they are afraid the Kimberly will try to
take them from Tamika. Tamika currently takes Lexapro for anxiety and depression.
She did not experience anxiety and depression prior to the children coming to Las
Vegas with Kimberly on a pick up order.

Tamika does not believe that visitation between Kimberly and the children are in their
best interests. From November 2021 to January 2022, Kimberly did not allow Tamika
to speak to the children even though Tamika attempted to do so. Kimberly did not
allow Tamika to speak to the children for Christmas and other holidays during that
time. Further, Tamika does not like that Kimberly has transported the children by car
for transportation while the last court ordered required Kimberly to previde
transportation by plane and provide the itinerary to her.

The court is aware that the parents agree in denying visits to Kimberly.
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II. ANALYSIS & CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Visitation

NRS 125C.050 Petition for right of visitation for certain relatives and
other persons.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, if a parent of an unmarried
minor child:

(a) Is deceased;

(b) Is divorced or separated from the parent who has custody of the child;

{c) Has never been legally married to the other parent of the child, but
cohabitated with the other parent and is deceased or is separated from the other
parent; or

{(d) Has relinquished his or her parental rights or his or her parental rights
have been terminated,
the district court in the county in which the child resides may grant to the great-
grandparents and grandparents of the child and to other children of either parent
of the child a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority.

2. Ifthe child has resided with a person with whom the child has established
a meaningful relationship, the district court in the county in which the child
resides also may grant to that person a reasonable right to visit the child during
the child’s minority, regardless of whether the person 1s related to the child.

3. A party may seek a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s
minority pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 only if a parent of the child has denied or
unreasonably restricted visits with the child.

4. If a parent of the child has denied or unreasonably restricted visits with
the child, there is a rebuttable presumption that the granting of a right to visitation
to a party seeking visitation is not in the best interests of the child. To rebut this
presumption, the party seeking visitation must prove by clear and convincing
evidence that it is in the best interests of the child to grant visitation.

5. The court may grant a party seeking visitation pursuant to subsection 1
or 2 a reasonable right to visit the child during the child’s minority only if the
court finds that the party seeking visitation has rebutted the presumption
established in subsection 4.

6. In determining whether the party seeking visitation has rebutted the
presumption established in subsection 4, the court shall consider:

(a) The love, affection and other emotional ties existing between the party
seeking visitation and the child.

(b} The capacity and disposition of the party seeking visitation to:

(1) Give the child love, affection and guidance and serve as a role model
to the child;

(2} Coopcrate in providing the child with food, clothing and other
material needs during visitation; and

(3) Cooperate in providing the child with health care or alternative care
recognized and permitted under the laws of this State in lieu of health care.

10
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(c) The prior relationship between the child and the party seeking visitation,
including, without limitation, whether the child resided with the party seeking
visitation and whether the child was included in holidays and family gatherings
with the party seeking visitation.

(d} The moral fitness of the party seeking visitation.

(e) The mental and physical health of the party seeking visitation.

{f) The reasonable preference of the child, if the child has a preference, and
if the child is determined to be of sufficient maturity to express a preference.

(g} The willingness and ability of the party seeking visitation to facilitate and
encourage a close and continuing relationship between the child and the parent or
parents of the child as well as with other relatives of the child.

(h) The medical and other needs of the child related to health as affected by
the visitation.

(1} The support provided by the party seeking visitation, including, without
limitation, whether the party has contributed to the financial support of the child.

(i) Any other factor arising solely from the facts and circumstances of the
particular dispute that specifically pertains to the need for granting a right to
visitation pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 against the wishes of a parent of the child.

NRS 125C.050 does not explicitly require an independent action, and thus, a motion
filed within the existing custody action is sufficient. However, a party seeking grandparent
visitation must have intervened or joined in custody actions between the parents in order to for
the court to have jurisdiction to award grandparent visitation. /nlow v. Fifth Judicial Dist.

Court of State ex rel. Cnty. of Nye, 132 Nev. 983 (2016).

[1]f a parent has denied visitation with the child, there is a rebuttable presumption
that granting visitation to the petitioners is not in the child's best interest. NRS
125C.050(4). And to rebut this presumption, the petitioners must demonstrate by
clear and convincing evidence that it is in the best interest of the child to grant
visitation. When determining whether the petitioners have rebutted the
presumption, the district court shall consider the factors enumerated in NRS

125C.050(6).

Colt v. Plummer, 82662-COA, 2022 WL 214003, at *2 (Nev. App. Jan. 24,
2022)

The Court permitted Kimberly to intervene 1n this action regarding visitation only.

11
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During the evidentiary hearing, Tamika testified that the children visiting Kimberly was
not in their best interests.

Under NRS 125C.050 (1) — (2) thus Court may grant Kimberly a reasonable right of
visitation with the children. Kimberly is presumed to be children’s paternal grandmother.
Further, the children and Kimberly have a meaningful relationship and have resided together in
the past.

The love, affection and other emotional ties existing between the party seeking
visitation and the child; the capacity and disposition of the party seeking visitation to: give
the child love, affection and guidance and serve as a role model to the child, cooperate in
providing the child with food, clothing and other material needs during visitation, and
cooperate in providing the child with health care or alternative care recognized and
permitted under the laws of this State in lieu of health care; the prior relationship bebveen
the child and the party seeking visitation; and support provided by the party seeking
visitation, including, without limitation, whether the party has contributed to the financial
support of the child:.

Tamika disputed that the children were presently bonded to Kimberly. However, the
evidence suggests that love, affection, and other emotional ties exist between Kimberly and the
children. Kimberly provided a home for the children and helped care for educational and
emotions needs when the parents lived in her home. Further, Kimberly is employed and able to
provide the children food, clothing, and other material needs during visitation. Kimberly
provided for Xyshone’s financial needs by paying for private school education when he first

began school. Kimberly helped the parents by providing housing, transportation and food. The

children’s care with Kimberly is not the issue in this case.

These factors favor visitation to Kimberly.

The moral fitness of the party seeking visitation; the mental and physical health of
the party seeking visitation:

12
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There was no testimony at trial that Kimberly was morally unfit or had any mental
health or physical issues.

These factors favor visitation to Kimberly.

The reasonable preference of the child, if the child has a preference, and if the child
is determined to be of sufficient maturity to express a preference:

The children did not testify. They are not of sufficient age and maturity to express a

preference.

This factor is not applicable.

The willingness and ability of the party seeking visitation to facilitate and encourage
a close and continuing relationship between the child and the parent or parents of the child
as well as with other relatives of the child:

The primary issues in this care are tThe bad feelings are between the adults and
Kimberly over stepping her position as a grandmother and not the parent. Although Kimberly
indicated that that she does not have animosity towards Tamika; that she would do anything for
the parents, the evidence suggests that the parties mutually do not like each other. Kimberly
tried to usurp parental responsibility from Tamika which increased their contlict. Kimberly
refused to allow Tamika to speak to her Xyshone and Xaia while they were residing with her

from November 2021 to January 2022. This demonstrates that Kimberly does not have the

willingness to encourage the children’s relationship with their mother.

This factor docs not favor visitation to Kimberly.,

The medical and other needs of the child related to health as affected by the

visitation:

13
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The children do not have any medical needs that would affect visitation,

This factor 1s neutral.

Any other factor arising solely from the facts and circumstances of the particular
dispute that specifically pertains to the need for granting a right to visitation pursuant to
subsection 1 or 2 against the wishes of a parent of the child.

There is substantial conflict between Kimberly and the parents. Kimberly does not have
a good relationship with her son, Christopher, and had not spoken to him in over a year.
Kimberly does not have good relationship with Tamika due the ongoing litigation and related
1ssues.

This other factor does not favor visitation to Kimberly.

There is a rebuttal presumption that visitation is not in the children’s best interests.
Kimberly has the burden to overcome that presumption by clear and convincing evidence.

Most of the factors favor visitation between Kimberly and the children and the Court
remains concern regarding the level of conflict between Kimberly and the parents. However,
there are many ways in which visitation between Kimberly and the children would facilitate
their best interest. There are significant emotional ties between Kimberly and the children.
Kimberly improperly tried to usurp parental responsibility from Tamika; however, she whole
heartedly but also imprudently did so because she believed she was protecting the children in
some way.

The children have resided in Michigan with Tamika since November 2020. The
children appear apprehensive about returning to Nevada for visitation. However, the evidence
does suggest that it would be in their best interests to maintain some relationship with

Kimberly. Christopher does not appear to be actively involved in the children’s lives and the
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children would benefit by being able to maintain a consistent relationship with a paternal
relative.

Kimberly 1s granted visitation with the children on Labor Day and Memorial Day
weekends of each year. All visitation is to occur in Michigan where the children reside.
Kimberly shall not travel 100 miles outside of Ferndale, Michigan for visitation and shall not
leave the state for visitation. Visitation begins Friday evening at 6:00 PM EST and ends
Sunday at 6:00 PM EST. The children shall call Tamika at 10:00 AM EST on Saturday and
Sunday during Kimberly’s visitation. The parties may agree in writing if they wish for
Kimberly’s parents to also participate in visitation.

The parties may also agree in writing to additional visitation between Kimberly and the
children. The Court encourages the parties to do so as conflict between Kimberly and Tamika
hopefully will decrease as litigation ends.

Kimberly is granted telephone/video contact with the children every Sunday at 6:00 PM
EST. Kimberly is also granted telephone/video communication with the children on their
birthdays, Christmas, New Year each year. The phone contact shall be at least ten (10} minutes
in length. The children may call Kimberly as they freely desire.

Attormmev’s Fees

The parties shall bare the costs of their own attorney’s fees.
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ITI. ORDERS

Based on the foregoing Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, the Court enters the
tollowing orders:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Intervenor, Kimberly White, shall be granted
visitation with Xyshone Judson (borm 11/20/2011), Xaia Judson {(born 08/13/2015) and Xionne

Judson (born 05/03/2019) as follows:

Kimberly shall be granted visitation with the children on Labor Day and Memorial
Day weekends of each year. All visitation shall occur in Michigan where the children reside.
Kimberly shall not travel 100 miles outside of Ferndale, Michigan for visitation and shall not
leave the state for visitation. Visitation shall begin Friday evening at 6:00 PM EST and end
Sunday at 6:00 PM EST. The children shall call Tamika at 10:00 AM EST on Saturday and
Sunday during Kimberly’s visitation. The parties may agree in writing on Talking Parents if
they wish for Kimberly’s parents to also participate in visitation. The parties may also agree in
writing to additional visitation on Talking Parents. The children’s exchanges shall take place at

the police station where the children were exchanged prior.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Kimberly shall be granted
telephone/video/Skype/FaceTime contact with the children every Sunday at 6:00 PM EST.
Kimberly shall also be granted telephone/video/Skype/FaceTime communication with the
children on their birthdays, Christmas, and New Year's Day each year at 6:00 PM EST. The
contact shall bc at lcast ten (10) minutes 1n length, Kimberly shall imtiate the contact, The

children may call Kimberly as they freely desire.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Kimberly and Tamika shall register for Talking
Parents and use the app to communicate regarding the children. Communication is limited to

once a week. The parties may only call or text each other regarding emergencies.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the following behavior order provisions shall apply
to all parties and they are put on netice the violations of these provisions may result in fines

and/or jail time:

1. No abusive contact (foul language, name calling, etc.) including telephone calls,
voicemails, letters, email, texts, all forms of social media, etc., to the other party or to the

children.

LIS

2. Avoid any unnecessary contact with the other party’s “significant other” and friends

not in common with you and do not initiate conflicts with them.

3. No unnecessary contact with other people associated with or to the other party for
purposes of discussing court proceedings or making negative/disparaging allegations against

the other party (this includes all forms of social media).

4. You will advise all of your friends, relatives and “significant other” not to disparage,
criticize or harass the other party, and that co-parenting requires facilitating a positive
relationship with the other party and that you may be sanctioned if the Court finds that you are

knowingly allowing them to violate the Behavior Order.

5. No harassment at the other party’s place(s) of employment, including contacting the
employer to make negative or disparaging allegations; or to send or drop off evidence as it

relates to these court proceedings that appears reasonably designed to put them, or likely to put
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them in a bad light or to get them fired, or to have them suffer negative consequences as a

result.

6. No providing copies of unsolicited documents (personal letters, court pleadings,
emails, texts, etc.) to anyone associated with a party (significant others, family members,
neighbors, employers, etc.) for the intended purpose of shedding the other party in a negative

light.

7. Neither party shall post, nor shall you allow significant others or family members on
social media to post, including, but not limited to, Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram,
TikTok, LinkedIn, Tumblr, and Google+, any negative or disparaging allegation against or

negative image of the other party or anyone associated with the other party.

8. Pursnant to EDCR 5.301, you will not discuss any of the court issues or proceedings
with the minor children; this includes showing them any part of the pleadings or
attachments/exhibits (including audio and video) thereto; you will take every precaution to

secure coples of pleadings safely away from the eyes of the children at all times.

9. Neither party shall interrogate the children as to the activities or events at the other
party’s residence, etc., and shall try to respect and not interfere with the children’s privacy and
relationship with the other party; do not place the children in a loyalty bind between yourself

and the other party.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND THE PARTIES ARE PUT ON NOTICE that
they arc subject to the requirements of NRS 125C.0045(6) and NRS 125C.0045(7.)

PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE ABDUCTION,
CONCEALMENT OR DETENTION OF A CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THIS
ORDER IS PUNISHABLE AS A CATEGORY D FELONY AS PROVIDED
IN NRS 193.190. NRS 200.359 provides that every person having a limited
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right of custody to a child or any parent having no right of custody to the child
who willfully detains, conceals or removes the child from a parent, guardian or
other person having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child in
violation of an order of this court, or removes the child from jurisdiction of the
court without the consent of either the court or all persons who have the right to
custody or visitation is subject to being punished for a category D felony as
provided in NRS 193.130.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
Dated this 29th day of March, 2023

e

FDA FO06 011F 3080
Vincent Ochoa
District Court Judge
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Tamika Beatrice Jones, Plaintiff.
VS,

Christopher Charles Judson,
Defendant.

CASE NO: D-19-594413-C

DEPT. NO. Department S

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment was served via the
court’s electronic eFile system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled

case as listed below:

Service Date: 3/29/2023

Kari Molnar kari@molnarfamilylaw.com
Mark McGannon mark@@mecgannonlawoffice.com
Jean McGannon jean{@mcgannonlawoftice.com
Julio Vigoreaux Jvigoreauxlaw(@gmail.com
Admin Staft efile@mcgannonlawoftice.com
Tamika Jones tamikaj8092(@gmail.com
Kimberly White kwhite writer@hotmail.com

It indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last

known addresses on 3/30/2023
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Christopher Judson

Hlhan Tindall

Mark McGannon

8447 Sequoia Grove AVE
Las Vegas, NV, 89149

3838 Raymert DR STE 20
Las Vegas, NV, 89121

McGannon Law Oftice, P.C.

7495 W. Azure Drive, Suite 110
Las Vegas, NV, 89130
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Las Vegas, NV 891
702-982-0191
kwhite writer@hot
Petitioner,

Vs.
THE EIGHTH JUI
THE STATE OF N
COUNTY .OF CLA
VINCENT OCHO¢

MARK J. McGAN]
Tamika Jones,

Christopher C Juds

Respondents.

Electronic
05/01/2

|

1 CLERK OF
THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN
DR. KIMBERLY WHITE, Pro se Sup}eme Court Case No.:
10461 Hartford Hills Ave | |

66 gth J:udicial District Court Case No.:

D594413

i
!

mail.com

DICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
EVADA, IN AND FOR THE
\RK; AND THE HONORABLE
A, DISTRICT JUDGE,

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPEAL

NON, Attorney for Plaintiff,

on, Defendant

Notice of Intent to
D594413 Dept. S.

Notice is hereby gi
Supreme Court of ]

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPEAL

Appeal to the Supreme Court From a Judgment of District Court case No.

ven that Kimberly White, Intervenor above named, hereby appeals to the
Nevada from the order entered in this action on the 29" day of March, 2023.

Pursuant to NRS 53.045, I declare under penalty of
perjyfy that t oregoing is frue and correct.

Kimbyzety White

10461 Hartford Hills Ave
Las Vegas, NV 89166
702-982-0191
kwhite_writer@hotmail.com
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